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FIRE SAFETY AND PROTECTION

VISION

Nitin Group of Companies shall be a market leader and growing engineering organization dedicated to
excellence through quality, creating value for customers, through innovation technology and
operational expertise. We are technology driven company at our core with an overriding commitment
fo quality and our primary measures of success are customer’s satisfaction and shareholders value. It is
our strategic vision to conduct business unth highest standard of ethics as we always believe * Honesty

and Integrityare milestones of Nitin Culture”.

® ®

MISSION

% Customer satisfaction is the highest priority. The company will make every effort to deliver the
lighest quality products and services in business.

* The Company has developed new strategies and plans based on customers driven philosophy for
gmning competitive advantage, needed to meet the business objectives.

H Customers and employees mput is actrvely sought and sirategically used for conlimuous
impravement of quality and to fulfill ongoing customer needs.

Strive to deal with our customers inan open and transparent manmner.

* %

Continual improvement of * Processes, Products, Services and People” shall be the norm in our
business.

Provide employees an environment, opportunity for growth and a safe healthy work environment
that is conducive to consistent peak performance.

Encourage employees fo pursue training and development opportunity.

Implement several environmental sensitive technologies to reduce pollution and restore ecological
balance around us.

* % % %

Strive to provide top of the time national & international certified product range.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR
NITIN CROUP OF COMPANIES



MR NITIN M. SHAH

CHAIRMAN & MAMAGRING DIRECTOR

ey Starehmiders,

It grves me great pleanise to imform you that our Company “Netin Fire Protection Industries Limited” contimued to see strong and profitable groweh
secrosy all marets dimven by good performance coveryg all fusimess sepmevey during the Tirancial Year 2000-1 1 and we fook forward to betaer growt i
potemtial,

The jpronps commidaded revenses ﬁ.u'l-!ﬁnﬂl-ﬂ I?_;.l 41.33% o T 45 11090 silloon emd the comunialod net pausfits have grown by 27 25% o T 51160
silficm. The Board af Directors ko recommendved a fimal drvidend of (50% ) T 1/ per hare whah is subject to the apprivalof the sharefivdders

Tour Compeny s a feadog fire protectwon equipment manufacturing tnstalisteon company in fndin, ond comtenuey to retam s adessfup panon
amaong the Jnduzm Fompasned in similar dene qfﬁlmnr.u. Tt s comtenued to win new customErs .nu.l'gmu'qmua_g n:l'::l'mmﬁ:p: iy tradicnal area qf
development, manufacturog wud distrebution of fire protection and electronsc security systems, CNG cascades, commassionong and installation of
safety and secursty sodictions anid enpcutaon of attnual mantenaios contraots for fire protection oistens, ¢ provader gatomated tater and gas Rased fore
nrppresston pystems alomg with foce drtection amd securicy mtm.ramm.lir? haris, The froaud e of products amd services enables the Company to
provide “end ta-end” services bo by castomers, conebimed with its spectfic md'u'i.r‘j Jocus wmd its geogragevical spredd, the Company irahle fo provide
mrrrpmﬁrqartf il .ﬁx_'ﬂ!ﬁ pafue adifed servnces 10185 customers B.I‘JHH a service prn ey, v fgur luPruq.udr a{fl.n watley serence .rl'.f.-il.ﬂr_ﬁ_.l.rd apprupIete
respona bo dny profilems forises that cusbomers requer,

ek techinological growt, advances and fong experience ine thie Bruineds field] we providy our customers fest solutions to tietr problems Geepang in

v L L T

‘e provede turnkey solichions and there fore every customer ts unsgue and theer requirements are unique. e huee therefore custom budl? and tarlor made
mfumm.uu’n.tmﬁrmﬁ customer, Curalfility to 2o so fas Beer e rean for our retatned growth and e,

T ane Rapyry to seport that we fte Been sucoessful in prividing e support fo our cistomess wiliof Rav reaulfted o sepett onders frome our saolsfind

Crsfoses

“Tle e prowed to eform biat vour Company Aas won Forfes ¥ Best Ulndrra Billion aveard which pertains to the Rapions Top 200 Swall and Madnze
Compuantes on November 25, "2010. Thir s the second” consecutive auand won fy your Comphany,

Duareg the pear the Company hats sude-drutded fre JJ.iurn_ﬁum{ J0/ each to T 2 eack, Nt Ventures FOE, URE ,ﬁ:rﬂﬂn fu!isi.ﬂ:r.l'p u_j_l'ir
Compary ingreasod il s ownerdiip suferest in New Age o, ELCNew Rge | resulting in New Nge becoming o sbep doun ifinadiary and also obtaimed 4
management contvol. The Company fias sali its part staky in Niten Cylinders Cimited wiich changed s name to Wortkington Witen Cvlinders Limsted
(VINCL ) ok s mow Brcome anassociate of the Company.

e wrsk to Sy rrnr'r thanfs curomestors, clients, vendir puriners, haatkers, ﬁl‘lﬁlh sl tmsietatanms fos ther sapiport. e also thunk the Government
of Indue, the stabe govermments, and other agemcies for thei support, and (vok forward Lo tieir continuows support s future. The J'J:m'l'wm.dﬁn place
on recond thetr deep appieciation of the contribution made By emplayees and thetr extended families at all feveli. The consistent groath of the Company
weszy mad poseible by tiewr Rard ook, fowaily, dedecerion, co-ordination and sypport.

Nitin M Shak
CHirirman ef Manageng Dsvector



Nitin Fire Protection Industries Limited
501, Delta Technology Streel, Hiranandani Gardens, Powai, Mumbai - 400 076, India.

Dear Shareholdar,
RE: Grean Initiativa in Corporate Governance: Go Paperless

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“‘Ministry”) has taken a “Green Initiative in Corporatle Governance” by allowing
paperess compllances by Companies through electronic mode. In accordance with the recant circular bearing No.
1772011 dated 21.04.2011 and 18/2011 dated 29.04 2011 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Companies can
now send various Notices/Documents (including notice calling Annual General Meeting, Audited Financial Statements,
Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report elc.) to their Sharehalders through elactronic mode, to the regislerad email
addrassas of the shareaholdar,

Itis a welceme move for the society al large, as this will reduce paper consumption lo a greal extent and allow public at
large lo contribute lowards a greener environmenL

This is also a golden opportunity for every shareholder to contribute to the Corporate Social Responsibility initiative of
the Company. All you have lo do is to register your e-mail id with the Company to receive communication through
abactronic mode.

ADVANTAGES OF REGISTERING FOR E-COMMUNICATION:

Receive communication promplly

Reduce paper consumplion and save lrees
Eliminate wastage of paper

Awvoid logs of documents/nolices in postal transil
Save costs on paper and on postage

® 8 8 8 B

The Board of Directors of your Company discussed this al its Board Meeling held on July 8, 2011 and decided thal from
next financial year Le. from 2011-2012 onwards, your Company will also starl sending all the above menlioned
correspandenca through a-maill,

In this ragard, we reques! you 1o please update your e-mail id to be registered, OR If you have nol provided please
register the same with your respective DFs, please do the same so that you will start getling the same promplly.

Please nole that as a shareholder, you are enlitied to receive all documents free of cost upon receipt of a requisition
from you, 50 il you still wish to get a physical copy of the communications. the Company undertakes lo provide the same

alno exira costto you on request.

Let's be part of this ‘Graen Iniliative".

Besl Ragards,

ForNitin Fire Protection Industries Limited

Nitin M. Shah
Chairman & Managing Direclor
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Fora fast-groveing company, i@ O smperateo ta Be well served fy net fist @ proven team of Dawctors a o Belm, St alivo o Giahly competent Gneaff
Masgpeme .

rarf prufile of vurDirectors
. Nibim M. Shak
Clarrman and Managing Directar

Thie founder and drving fosce belind the Comparny, e bolils o Diploma o Mechamcal Engeocering. A fler completing i edacation in 1975, ke poned
feis fameily Business acmely, Zenith Fere Servaces wliich was tnto manufactuning of fire extinguivkers. Sufireguently, he underwent teaming ot TR
Electromics, VLS, wiisek o one of tie langest manafoctusers of smody detectors it world We sncovporsiad Nt Fire Probection Indiitries
Lemcred pre J 985 ana oy move than 3 decader of experience in fore fuplieing equipment Gusemers 108 2 fandi-on monagernel style, fe i the guiding force
for the Compary

Afe. Rakicl N Shak
Exrentrve Derector

Hie o5 a commerce graduate and hold a Diploma i @wsoness Wanagement. He gained expenience o commaitog aod installat don of fire detection and
tlaram cyxhemrs ax el g ey supprecnion systems. e 1998 fie updervent trasming of WP 220F8 gees swpperearson: systems at Fiky SoutK-euse Auis Fre
Suggapore and in 1999 of addressable fire alarm rystems from Apolle Frre Detectors Lid, o UK, to nuprove the quality of fire alarm systems.

e Kbt W Vit inantfon
Non-Egpcuteve Director

e o a groedune o Meckaeica [ Engoeering with post grouuete sindaes in dndustral Engineerng. e S seore tian 559 yeors of expenienor tn vrnmous
emgneering fielids tncliuding about 26 years in the area of Righ peecrure seamless cylinders and affied equipments. He far fandled many progects and fis
fatest asgnmend bergt working with Everesd Kagnto Clindess Comited. e lus Been oustrumentul i implementong dhe prapect of TWNCE and all
muatbers related to cyfinder applications. We (it responabl for all techmical nepotsstions with oylinder suppiiess as weil as the customers for cyfisdersand
allaed stems,

O, Suremdva Dane
Independent Director

Hee 25 a VD, inEromomics and i 2 totalexperience of 49 years im financs, banking and sscurivies lew, Currenthy, ke (s on board of vartous companies
ained s ot wowek e puisure weth RBJ, Industrial Developaent Bunk of Trilia, SEBT and Unit Trust of Tdia, We sas @ founder chutrman of SEBTand
arlve thie charrmuen of Uit Trus of fodis from whese e aetoed i 1896 Dr Do iy Seen puonociofed wirk parivus commetters of e Government of
i dealiong with reforms in L capitalmarket, mutuel fundy/onnence sector and persion fundi

Ay, Kyiderea Wk Piia
Independent Divector

He eva Mechameal Engimeer and s member of the Fellow of Trstitution of Engneers (FIEL india. Previous(y, be was an'Exeeutive Derector (Wealih,
Safery & ‘Emvironment} of Gax Authanity of fndia Coeted (GAIL) and Bas a total experience of 41 years In the dreas of profrct mansgesment,
uperiztions and maintenancy, administration and fealth, safeey sudenvisonmens religted acsivities

Mr. RamaKarmt M. Nayak
Independent Director

Wi fas degrees tn senevece wnd v and @ Diploma v Macketing ond Advertiomg, He oabo a certified avocate member of the Fmfuan Fratitute of
Renking, hie has an expenence of £4 years 1 the area of wevestmens afviory and commerciod benkng mdustry, Mr. Nk Aoy been goocated ara
clasrmarn with varows bankng and advisory companies suck as Yun Global Investments Limited, Londor, Sun Capual Advisory, Lond K niskna Bank
{Now menped with WD Bank Lomcted) and Laksbim Viles Bank dirough uhich fe contrfuted in the arras of Ranfing. findnce, econonty, fummen
resources, Suanes stratogy and ik management.

Mr. Kumal N Shak
Non-Fppoutsey Chrecior

e &5 Wachelor of Engpineereng i Eleceronics and Tele Communteations and o experience in assembling, texting, and functioning of ONG dispenser
o OV froel webaicies.



Corporate
Social
Responsibility

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) s a form of
corporate self-regulation integrated into a business
model, Nitin Fire’s CSR policy functions as a built-in,
self-regulating mechanism whereby business
monitors and ensures its active compliance with the
spirit of the law, ethical standards, and international
norms. The goal of Nitin Fire"sCSR is to embrace
responsibility for the Company's actions and
encourage a positive impact through its actlvities on
the environment, consumers, employees,
communities, stakeholders and all other members of
the public sphere. Nitin Fire has a rich history of
CSR, which has grown and evolved to meet the
complexities of today's business warld and the
challenges of a social society. It means investing in
and enriching our communities.

As a member of today's rapidly changing global
community, we are striving to adapt to the evalving
needs of society and contribute to the overall health
and wellness of our society. Nitin Firehas retained a
collective focus on various areas of corporate



responsibility that impact people, the environment and society at large.
Founded on the philanthropic philosophy, the Company, across its various
operations, s committed to making a positive contribution In a
meaningful/tangible manner.

The product range of the Nitin Fire'sbusiness model itself relates to the
safety and welfare of the society at large, However the Company believes
that good corporate concern for CSR and good business performance go
hand in hand and always nurture each other.

The policy of inclusive development is not just a policy on paper, but a
value ingrained in the system through years of amalgamating social
changes with industrial changes and the same has been proved and
validated by a senes of awards in both business and community service
activities,

The idea of inclusive development continues to drive the Company's C5R
activities in education, health, environment and other social spheres.

Education

Nitin Fire believes that education is a basic human right that must be
provided to all. The Company's social outreach program in education field
Is not confined to the children of the Company employees but also covers
children of villages in and around the project sites by way periodic financial
contribution.

Health

With emphasis on improving the health and welfare of employees and
local communities, the Company is contributing financially to hospitals.
The health centres have good infrastructure to provide medical care to the
workers, their families and also to the people of surrounding area. The
Company also conducts medical camps for health screening of employees,
their families and also to the people of areas near the project sites. Such
camps create awareness on lifestyle diseases among the participants.

Health, Safety and Environment (HSE)

Nitin Fire is committed to ensuring minimum, preferably zero harm to
its employees, contractors and communities in which it operates. This is
integral to the Company’s business process and is laid down in Company's
health, safety and environment policies. HSE is a key performance
indicator and a major driver of the Company’s corporate vision for CSR.




The Company has been taking significant measures to minimize pollution
to avoid adverse impact on the environment. A HSE committee comprising
senior executives and non-executives is constituted to carry out detailed
periodical reviews.

Sports

Nitin Fire believes that sports is an ideal platform for engaging youth
and a good training tool 1o develop a team building capability for harmany
in work place and society at large. It is ane of the key factors in producing
well-rounded leaders in the industry and society. With this viewpoint, the
Company intends to support a wide range of sporting activities as a part of
its CSR policy.

The Company's commitment, efforts and concern for good business
practices and CSR activities have been recognized and has received the
following awards:

Corporate Awards

Wational Lidyog Ratna Awad

Amand By Coundl far
Far Businegs Prachces in the year 2006 Lite Time Udyog Excslence Awand




Awards for Excellence in CSR

EDUCATION SOCIAL SPORTS

2 &

, | O

Shikeha Jagrull Abkiyan Shiksha  Jain Jagruli Cerder. NITIE NITEE Crickint Cup 146 Crickat Tounament
Jagruti Higher Educaton Dandiya 010
Abbiyan Prosact 2010 Raas

Achievements and Honours

210

L i o T At

Farbes Asia best under & Bilion Awand. Consacudve Calender Years 20049 and 2010

{

Irernational Fire Expo -
EUROCNG sucesasiul Listing Hanoufed by Apolia Lite Time Udyog Expslancy fuvard
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COMPANY INFORMATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(As of July 8, 2011)
Mr. Nitin M. Shah - Chairman & Managing Director
Mr. Rahul N. Shah - Executive Director
Mr. Kailat H. Vaidyanathan - Non Executive Director
Mr. Kunal N. Shah - Non Executive Director (from May 29, 2011)
Mr. Krishna Kant Jha - Independent Director
Dr. Surendra A. Dave - Independent Director
Mr. Ramakant M. Nayak - Independent Director
REGISTERED OFFICE AUDITORS REGISTRAR &
501, Delta, Technology Street, Haribhakti & Co. SHARE TRANSFER AGENTS
Hiranandani Gardens, Chartered Accountants Bigshare Services Private Limited
Powai, Mumbai - 400 076. E-2, Ansa Industrial Estate,
Mabharashtra, India. COMPANY SECRETARY Sakivihar Road, Saki Naka,
Tel.: +91 22 4045 7000 Abhishek Shrivastava Andheri (E), Mumbai - 400 076.
Fax: +91 22 2570 1110 Maharashtra, India.
Website: www.nitinfire.com Tel.: +91 22 4043 0200

Fax: +91 22 2847 5207
Website: www.bigshareonline.com

PLANT LOCATIONS
A-117, TTC Industrial Area, Shed-6, Phase-1,
Pawana Village, Duvvada VSEZ,
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BANKERS
IDBI Bank Limited

Axis Bank Limited
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 16" Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company will be held on Thursday, August 11,2011, at 12.30
p-m. at Kamalnayan Bajaj Hall, Bajaj Bhavan, Ground Floor, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg, 226, Nariman Point, Mumbai-400 021to transact the
following business:

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt Audited Balance Sheet as at March, 31 2011 and Profit & Loss Account for the year ended on that date,
together with the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To declare a dividend for the Financial Year ended March 31,2011.
To appoint a director in place of Dr. Surendra A. Dave, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

4.  To appoint Auditors and to fix their remuneration and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED that Haribhakti & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Registration Number: 103523 W), be and is hereby appointed
as Auditors of the Company, to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company on such remuneration as shall be fixed by the Board of Directors.”

Special Business:
5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
To appoint Mr. Kunal N. Shah as a director of the Company and liable to retire by rotation.

Mr. Kunal N. Shah was appointed by the Board as an Additional Director of the Company. He is eligible for reappointment. The Company
has received a notice in writing from a member signifying his intention to propose the candidature of Mr. Kunal N. Shah as a director of the
Company and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED that in accordance with the provisions of Section 257 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 1956 or
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, Mr. Kunal N. Shah who was appointed as an Additional Director pursuant to the
provisions of Section 260 of the Companies Act, 1956, be and is hereby appointed as a director of the Company and liable to retire by
rotation.”

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:
To consider the issue of further shares by the Company

“RESOLVED that in accordance with Section 81(1A) and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 1956, as amended
and also provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 (the
“SEBI Regulations”), as amended, the provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, as amended, and rules and regulations
made hereunder, including the Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer and Issue of Securities by a Person Resident Outside India)
Regulations, 2000, as amended, if applicable, any other applicable law or laws, rules and regulations (including any amendment thereto or
reenactment thereto or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and enabling provisions in the Memorandum and Articles of
Associations of the Company and the Listing Agreement, entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchanges where the shares of the
Company are listed and subject to the approval of, if applicable, Government of India, Reserve Bank of India, Securities and Exchange
Board of India and/or all other authorities, institutions or bodies, within or outside India, and subject to such conditions as may be
prescribed by any of them while granting such approval, the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as “Board” which include any
committee thereof, whether constituted or to be constituted) of the Company are hereby authorized to create, offer, issue and allot in one or
more tranche(s), in the course of domestic and/or international offerings and/or Qualified Institutional Placements (“QIP”), with or without
an over allotment/green shoe issue option, in one or more foreign markets or domestic markets, to domestic institutions, foreign
institutions, non-resident Indians, Indian public, companies, corporate bodies, mutual funds, banks, insurance companies, pension funds,
individuals, qualified institutional buyers or other persons or entities, whether shareholders of the Company or not, through a public issue
and/or on a private placement basis and/or qualified institutional placement within the meaning of the SEBI Regulations and /or preferential
issue and/or other kind of public issue and /or private placement or through a combination of the foregoing as may be permitted under
applicable law from time to time, with or without an over allotment/ green shoe option, equity share, secured or unsecured debentures,
bonds or any other securities whether convertible into equity share or not, including, but not limited to, Foreign Currency Convertible
Bonds (“FCCBs”), Optionally Convertible Debentures (“OCD”), Bonds with share warrants attached, Global Depository Receipts
(“GDRs”), American Depository Receipts (“ADRs”), Rights Issue, Issue of Warrants or any other equity related instruments of the
Company or a combination of the foregoing including but not limited to a combination of equity shares with bonds and/or any other
securities whether convertible into equity shares or not (hereinafter referred to as “securities”) for a value upto USD 100 Million (United
States Dollars Fifty Million Only) or its Indian Rupee equivalent, inclusive of such premium, as may be finalized by the Board, whether to
be listed on any stock exchanges inside India or any international stock exchanges outside India, through an offer document and/or
prospectus and/or offer letter, and/or offering circular, and/or on public and/or private or preferential basis, whether rupee denominated in
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foreign currency at such time or times, at such price or prices in such manner and on such terms and conditions including security, rate of
interest etc, as may be decided by and deemed appropriate by the board as per applicable law, including the discretion to determine the
categories of investors to whom the offer, issue and allotment shall be made, considering, the prevailing market conditions and other
relevant factors wherever necessary in consultation with its advisors, as the Board in its absolute discretion may deem fit and appropriate.

RESOLVED FURTHER that in addition to all applicable Indian laws, the securities issued in pursuance of this resolution shall also be
governed by all applicable laws and regulations of any jurisdiction outside India where they are listed or that may in any other manner apply
to such securities or provided in the terms of their issue.

RESOLVED FURTHER that the unsubscribed securities may be disposed off by the Board in its absolute discretion in such manner, as the
Board may deem fit and as permissible by the law.

RESOLVED FURTHER that in case of a QIP/Rights Issue/Preferential Allotment pursuant to the provisions of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009, the allotment of securities and the relevant
date for the determination of the price of the equity shares to be issued, shall be the date on which the board decides to open the issue of
securities or such other time as may be allowed by SEBI Regulations from time to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER that in case of an issuance of FCCBs/ADRs/GDRs, the relevant date for the determination of the issue price of
the securities offered, shall be determined in accordance with the Issue of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds and Ordinary shares
(through Depository Receipt Mechanism) Scheme, 1993 as may be amended from time to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER that the issue of securities shall be subject to the following terms and conditions:

a)  Thesecurities shall be subject to the provisions of Memorandum and Articles of Associations of the Company and in accordance with
the terms of the issue; and

b)  Thenumber and/or price of the securities shall be appropriately adjusted for corporate actions such as bonus issue, rights issue, stock
split, merger, demerger, transfer of undertaking, sale of division or any such capital or corporate restructuring.

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Common Seal of the Company, if required to be affixed in India and/or outside India on any agreement,
undertaking, deed or other document, the same be affixed in the presence of any one of the Directors of the Company or any one of the
officers of the Company in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER that subject to the applicable laws, the Board and/or the Committee authorised by the Board be and is hereby
authorized to do such acts, deeds and things as the Board in its absolute discretion deems necessary or desirable in connection with the issue
of'the securities, including, without limitation of the following;

a)  Decide the date for the opening of the issue of securities;

b)  Decide the price band for the issue;

c) Finalization of the issue price;

d)  Finalization ofthe allotment of the securities on the basis of the subscriptions received;

e)  Finalization of, signing of and arrangement for the submission of the preliminary and final offering circulars/prospectus(es)/offer
document(s), and any amendments and supplements thereto, along with supporting papers needed to be filed for seeking listing
approval with any applicable government and regulatory authorities, institutions or bodies as may be required;

f) Deciding the pricing and terms of the securities, and all other related matters, including taking any action on two-way fungibility for
conversion of underlying equity shares into FCCBs/ GDRs/ ADRs, as per applicable laws, regulations or guidelines;

g)  Appoint, in its absolute discretion, managers (including lead manager), investment bankers, merchant bankers, underwriters,
guarantors, financial and /or legal advisors, depositories, custodians, principal paying/transfer/conversion agents, listing agents,
registrars, trustees and all other agencies, whether in India or abroad, entering into or execution of all such
agreements/arrangements/MoUs/documents with any such agencies, in connection with the proposed offering of the securities;

h)  Approval of the Deposit Agreements(s), the Purchase/Underwriting Agreement(s), the Trust Deed(s), the Indenture(s), the
Master/Global GDRs/ADRs/FCCBS/Other Securities, Letters of Allotment, Listing Application, Engagement Letter(s),
Memoranda of Understanding and any other agreements of documents, as may be necessary in connection with the issue/offering
(including amending, varying or modifying the same, as may be considered desirable or expedient), in accordance with all applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines;

i) Settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in regards to the issue, offer or allotment of securities and utilization of the
proceeds of the issue in such a manner and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may in its absolute discretion deem fit.

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board and/or the Committee authorized by the Board be and is hereby authorized to accept any
modifications in the proposals as may be required by the authorities involved in such issues but subject to such conditions as the
SEBI/Gol/RBI or such other appropriate authorities may impose at the time of their approval and as agreed to by the Board;

RESOLVED FURTHER that without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, issue of the securities may be done upon all or any terms
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or combination of terms in accordance with international practices relating to the payment of interest, additional interest, premium on
redemption, prepayment or any other debt service payments and all such terms as are provided customarily in an issue of securities of this
nature.

RESOLVED FURTHUR that the Company may enter into any arrangement with any agency or body authorized by the Company for the
issue of depository receipts representing the underlying equity shares issued by the Company in registered or bearer form with such features
and attributes as are prevalent in international capital markets for instruments of this nature and to provide for the tradability of free
transferability thereof as per international practices and regulations (including listing on one or more stock exchange(s) inside or outside
India) and under the forms and practices prevalent in the international markets.”

For and on behalf of the Board

Mumbai Sd/-
July 8,2011 Abhishek Shrivastava
Company Secretary
Notes:
a. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (the “Meeting”) and is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on

e o

]

apoll instead of himselfand the proxy need not be a member of the Company. The instrument appointing the proxies in order to be effective
must be received at the Company's registered office not less than forty-eight hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to send to the Company a
certified copy ofthe Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

The relevant explanatory statement pursuant to Section 173 of the Companies Act, 1956, is annexed thereto.
Members are requested to bring their attendance slip along with their copy of the Annual Report to the Meeting.
In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder which is higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote.

Documents relating to any of the items mentioned in the Notice and the Explanatory Statement thereto are open for inspection at the
Registered Office of the Company on working days during business hours up to the date of the Meeting.

The dividend on equity shares, if declared, will be payable within five days from the date of Annual General Meeting on or after August 11,
2011, to those members whose names stand on the Register of Members of the Company.

The Register of Members and Transfer Book of the Company will remain close from Saturday, August 6, 2011 to Thursday, August 11,2011
(both days inclusive).

Members are requested to intimate to the Company, queries, if any, regarding the accounts/notices at least seven days before the Annual
General Meeting to enable the management to keep the information ready at the meeting.

Members are requested to notify immediately of any change in their address to the Company. Members holding shares in electronic form
are advised to notify any change in their address to the concerned depository participants.

Pursuant to Section 205 A of the Companies Act, 1956, the Company is not having any unclaimed or unpaid dividends liable to be
transferred to the Investors Education and Protection Fund.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every
participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their depository
participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details
to the Company.

Members desirous of making a nomination in respect of their shareholding in the Company, as permitted under Section 109 A of the
Companies Act, 1956 are requested to submit the prescribed Form 2B duly completed to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the
Company.

As per Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the stock exchanges the following particulars of Directors who are appointed /re-appointed
is being provided as below;

Dr. Surendra A. Dave is Ph.D. in Economics and has a total experience of 48 years in finance, banking and securities law. Currently, he is
on board of various companies and has got work exposure with RBI, Industrial Development Bank of India, SEBI and Unit Trust of India.
He was a founder chairman of SEBI and also the chairman of Unit Trust of India from where he retired in 1996. Dr. Dave has been associated
with various committees of Government of India dealing with reforms in the capital market, mutual funds/insurance sector and pensions.

Mr. Kunal N. Shah, 26 years is a Bachelor of Engineering in Electronics and Tele Communications. He has experience in assembling,
testing, and functioning of CNG dispensers for CNG fuel vehicles.

Members / proxies should bring the attendance slips filled in for attending the Meeting.
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Annexure to the Notice
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 173 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956.
Item No.5

Mr. Kunal N. Shah was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company at the Board meeting held on May 29, 2011. He holds the office until
the conclusion of this meeting. The Company had received a Notice under the provisions of Section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956 with requisite
fees signifying the intention for appointment of Mr. Kunal N. Shah as a Director of the Company. Mr. Kunal N. Shah being eligible, offers himself
for appointment.

The Directors of the Company recommend the passing of the Ordinary Resolution at Item No. 5 of the Notice. None of the Board of Directors
except Mr. Kunal N. Shah, Mr. Nitin M. Shah and Mr. Rahul N. Shah are interested in the resolution.

Item No. 6
To consider issue of further share capital by the Company

The Company proposes to raise funds upto USD 100 Million (United States Dollars Fifty Million Only) or its Indian Rupee equivalent, inclusive
of such premium, as may be finalized by the Board in one or more trenches through public issues and/or on a private placement basis and/or QIP
within the meaning of the SEBI Regulations and/or preferential issue and/or any other kind of public issue and/or private placement as may be
permitted under applicable law form time to time. The resolution contained in the business of the Notice related to a proposal by the Company to
create, offer, issue and allot equity shares and/or such other securities as stated in the Special Resolution (the “Securities”) which seeks to
empower the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as “Board” which include any Committee thereof, whether constituted or to be
constituted) to undertake such issue or offer of securities.

1. Objects of the issue
° To acquire or establish company/companies in India and/or abroad,
° To repay its debt obligations and strengthen the capital base of the Company,
° For green field projects,
° For new products development, and
. General corporate purposes.
2. Pricing

In case of an issue of Securities to Qualified Institutional Buyers/Preferential Allotment, pursuant to the SEBI Regulations, the issue price
of Securities shall be at a price, being not less than the price calculated in accordance with the SEBI Regulations as may be amended from
time to time and the Relevant Date in this regard shall be the date on which the Board decides to open the issue of securities or such other
time as may be allowed by SEBI Regulations from time to time.

In case of a QIP pursuant to Chapter VIII of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009, the allotment of Securities shall be completed within twelve
months from the date of passing of this shareholders resolution.

In case of issue of ADRs/GDRs the issue price shall be at a price, being not less than the price calculated in accordance with applicable law
including the Issue of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds and Ordinary Shares (through Depository Receipt Mechanism) Scheme, 1993,
as may be amended from time to time.

3. Instruments and other terms and conditions

The detailed terms and conditions for the offer will be determined by the Board in consultation with Advisors, Lead Manager(s)/Book
Runners, Underwriters and such other authority or authorities as may be required to be consulted by the Company considering the
prevailing market conditions and other relevant factors.

The issue/ allotment/ conversion would be subject to the availability of regulatory approvals, if any. The conversion of Securities, held by
foreign investors, into shares would be subject to the applicable foreign investment limits.

The Special Resolution seeks to give the Board and/or Committee authorized by the Board powers to issue Securities in one or more tranche
or tranches, at such time/times, and to such person(s) including institutions, incorporated bodies and/or individuals or otherwise as the
Board may in its absolute discretion deem fit.

The consent of the shareholders is being sought pursuant to the provisions of Section 81(1A) and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 and in terms of the provisions of the Listing Agreement executed by the Company with Stock Exchanges where the
Equity Shares of the Company are listed.

Section 81(1A) of the Companies Act, 1956 and the relevant clause of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges where the Equity
Shares of the Company are listed provides, inter alia, that when it is proposed to increase the issued capital of a company by allotment of
further shares, such further shares shall be offered to the existing shareholders of such company in the manner laid down in Section 81
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unless the shareholders in a general meeting decide otherwise. Since the Special Resolution proposed in the business of the Notice results in
the issue of shares of the Company otherwise than to the members of the Company, consent of the shareholders is being sought pursuant to
the provisions of Section 81(1A) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and the Listing Agreement.

The Special Resolution, if passed, will have the effect of allowing the Board and/or the Committee authorized by the Board to issue and allot
Securities to the investors who may or may not be the existing shareholders of the Company and the Board and/or the Committee authorized
by the Board will have the power to decide the date of opening of the issue.

For reasons aforesaid, an enabling resolution is proposed for consideration of the shareholders to give adequate flexibility and discretion to
the Board to finalize the terms of the issue of Specified Securities.

The Board believes that the issue of Specified Securities to investors who are not shareholders of the Company is in the interest of the
Company and therefore recommends the resolution for your approval.

None of the directors of the Company are concerned or interested in the resolution except to the extent of their shareholding is affected.

The Directors recommend the special resolution for your approval.

For and on Behalf of the Board

Mumbai Sd/-
July 8,2011 Abhishek Shrivastava
Company Secretary
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
To the Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Sixteenth Annual Report together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended
March31,2011.

FINANCIALRESULTS
Accounting Policy

The Company follows the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India, applicable accounting standards/provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 for the preparation of its financial statements. The Company also follows accrual basis of accounting except in cases of
revaluation of assets and impairment losses, if any.

Summarised Profit and Loss Statement (R in lacs)
Particulars Standalone Consolidated
For the year | For the year | For the year | For the year
2010-11 2009-10 2010-11 2009-10
Sales & other income 16,226.99 9,425.05 45,330.91 31,625.94
Profit before depreciation/amortisation & tax 2,855.33 1,489.79 6,822.36 4,999.92
Depreciation/amortisation 28.33 48.36 534.30 415.21
Profit before tax 2,827.00 1,441.43 6,288.06 4,584.71
Provision for income tax including deferred tax 349.20 207.26 375.62 808.71
Provision for wealth tax 0.07 0.15 0.82 1.25
Tax adjustments of earlier years (net) 105.91 58.92 110.39 75.73
Profit after tax 2,371.82 1,175.10 5,801.23 3,699.02
Less: Share of minority interest in income - - 122.85 -
Add: Share of (loss)/profit in an associate - - (342.36) 481.46
Add: Prior period adjustments - - - 12.80
Profit brought forward from previous year 2,362.28 1,863.26 9,538.48 6,021.28
Profit available for appropriation 4,734.10 3,038.36 14,874.50 10,214.56
APPROPRIATIONS
Transferred to General Reserve 237.50 160.00 280.00 160.00
Proposed dividend 630.15 441.11 630.15 441.11
Corporate dividend tax on proposed dividend 44.10 74.97 102.23 74.97
Surplus carried forward to Balance Sheet 3,822.35 2,362.28 13,862.12 9,538.48
DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors encouraged with the above financial performance of the Company, recommends dividend of ¥1/- per share on 6,30,15,705
Equity Shares of ¥2/- each (Previous year X 3.50 per share on 1,26,03,141Equity Shares of I10/- each)

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, the Company has sub-divided (split) its shares from ¥ 10/- each to ¥ 2/- each. There was no change in the paid up share capital of
the Company during the year.

TRANSFERTO RESERVES

The Company proposes to transfer ¥ 237.5 lacs to the General Reserve out of the amount available for appropriations and an amount of X 3,822.35
lacs is proposed to be retained in the Profit and Loss Account

RESERVE AND SURPLUS

Reserves and Surplus stood atto X 11,380.32 lacs as at March 31, 2011 compared to ¥ 9,693.60 lacs as at March 31, 2010. The increase was due to
retained earnings.

OPERATION RESULTS AND BUSINESS

The Company continued to see strong and profitable growth during the Financial Year 2010-11 across all markets driven by good performance
across all business segments.
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The performance of your Company during the year under report has registered an improvement over the previous year. Total income during the
year ended March 31, 2011 stood at ¥ 16,226.99 lacs registering an increase of 72% as compared to the previous year. As per the Consolidated
Financial Statements, total income was ¥ 45,330.91 lacs registering an increase of 43.33% as compared to the previous year. The working of the
Company is considered satisfactory. Barring unforeseen circumstances, the Board of Directors are hopeful of better performance of the Company
during the current year.

The Company is among the leading fire fighting equipment manufacturing companies in India, and continues to retain its leadership position
among the Indian companies. It has continued to win new engagements and grow existing relationships in the traditional area of development,
manufacturing and distribution of fire protection and electronic security systems, CNG cascades, commissioning and installation of safety and
security solutions and execution of annual maintenance contracts for fire protection systems. It provides automated water and gas based fire
suppression systems along with fire detection and security systems on turnkey basis. The broad range of products and services enables the
Company to provide “end to-end” services to its customers, combined with its industry focus and its geographical spread, the Company is able to
provide comprehensive and high value added services to its customers. Considering the need to deepen relationships with customers in the
industry, to acquire new customers in the markets where your Company is already a significant force and to expand in emerging markets.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

Your Company has six subsidiaries, namely' Alert Fire Protection Systems Private Limited, India Eurotech Cylinders Private Limited, India,
Logicon Building Systems Private Limited, India, Nitin Venture FZE, UAE, New Age Company LLC, UAE and Nitin Global Pte Limited,
Singapore. One domestic subsidiary i.e. Nitin Cylinders Limited has become associate of the Company which has changed its name to
Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited. A Foreign associate Company i.e. New Age LLC, UAE, has become a step down subsidiary with the
holding being through a foreign subsidiary.

We believe that the presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements presents a more comprehensive picture rather than the Standalone
Financial Statements of the Company and each of its subsidiaries. As per terms of general exemption, a summary of financial information of each
subsidiary regarding Capital, Reserves, Total Assets, Total Liabilities, Details of Investment, Turnover, Profit before Taxation, Provision for
Taxation, Profit after Tax and Proposed Dividend have been separately furnished forming part of this Annual Report.

AlertFire Protection Systems Private Limited, India (Alert)

Alert is in the business of purchase and supply of fire alarm and detection equipments, control panels and related components/spare parts which
are mainly sourced from a U.K. based Company viz. Apollo Fire Detectors and Fire Fighting Enterprise.

Eurotech Cylinders Private Limited, India (ECPL)

ECPL is in the business of purchase and supply of high pressure seamless and valves. The Company's products are sold under the brand name
'EURO' and basically cater to domestic markets. ECPL supplies the above products to dealers of industrial/medical gases, fire fighting
equipments.

Logicon Building Systems Private Limited, India (Logicon)

Logicon is in the business of setting up of turnkey contracts for intelligent building management systems, clean agent and fire detection alarm
systems including water based hydrant systems, CCTV and security systems including designing, integration, installation of such systems and
maintenance services. Such systems are used for security and building automation of all kinds of buildings, be it . T. complexes, shopping malls,
industrial plant buildings, hospitals, hotels, banks, data centers etc.

Nitin Venture FZE, UAE (NV)

NVissetup in the free trade zone at Jebel Ali, Dubai to meet the demands of international customers and provides simple, standalone conventional
to intelligent, integrated fire protection solutions backed by a product portfolio consisting of complete spectrum of fire and safety products with
international approvals. NV is strategically placed to be an international one stop source to discerning customers for conventional to intelligent
standalone/integrated fire detection systems, water and gas based fire extinguishing systems, gas detection systems, CCTV, access control &
intrusion detection systems, high pressure storage cylinders & accessories and integrated building management systems.

New Age Company LLC, UAE (NA)

NA was established in 1976 at UAE. NA has got offices and representations in Abu Dhabi, Dubai, and Sharjah with experience in installation in all
the seven emirates.

NA is professional fire protection engineering company providing equipments, fire protection system, fire detection system, emergency lighting
system and water mist fire protection systems.

NA has taken several projects for Municipality, Airport Development Board, Port Authority, Industrial Warehouses, Commercial Warehouses,
Electricity Board etc and also other government bodies.

Nitin Global Pte Limited, Singapore (NGPL)

NGPL was incorporated in July 2009 to meet the demands of South-East Asian markets and for providing simple, standalone conventional to
intelligent, integrated fire protection solutions backed by a product portfolio consisting of complete spectrum of fire and safety products with
international approvals. NGPL is strategically placed to be an international one stop source to discerning customers for conventional to intelligent
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standalone / integrated fire detection systems, water and gas based fire extinguishing systems, gas detection systems, CCTV, access control &
intrusion detection systems, high pressure storage cylinders & accessories and integrated building management systems.

There has been no other material change in the nature of the business of the subsidiaries. A statement containing brief financial details of the
subsidiaries is included in the Annual Report

PROPOSED AMALGAMATION OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES WITH THE COMPANY

The Board of Directors of the Company in its board meeting held on February 11, 2011 has approved the amalgamation with itself of Alert Fire
Protection Systems Private Limited and Logicon Building Systems Private Limited with April 1, 2010 being the appointed date. In this regard,
your Company has received an in principle approval from both the stock exchanges. Your Company has since filed a joint petition before the
Hon'ble High Court of Bombay for the sanction of the scheme and approval is awaited.

ANNUALREPORT OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

In terms of general exemption given by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, vide General Circular No. 2/2011 dated February
8,2011 under section 212(8) of the Companies Act, 1956, a copy of Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account, Report of the Board of Directors and
the Auditors of the above mentioned six subsidiary companies for the year ended March 31,2011 have not been attached with the Annual Report of
the Company. We believe that the presentation of the Audited Consolidated Financials present a true and fair picture of the state of affairs and the
financial conditions.

The Company has also annexed a statement at the end of this Annual Report pursuant to general exemption granted given by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Government of India under section 212(8) of the Companies Act, 1956, related to its subsidiary companies for the year ended
March 31,2011.

The Company shall make available these documents/details upon request by any shareholder of the Company interested in obtaining the same.
The annual accounts of the Company and its subsidiary companies are also available for inspection by the shareholders during business hours at
the registered office of the Company.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standard 21 'Consolidated Financial Statements',
Accounting Standard 23 'Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements' and Accounting Standard 27 'Financial
Reporting of Interest in Joint Ventures'. Your Directors have pleasure in attaching the Consolidated Financial Statements which form part of the
Annual Report.

FIXED DEPOSITS

The Company has not invited/accepted any public deposits and, as such, no amount on account of principal or interest on public deposits was
outstanding on the date of the Balance Sheet.

DIRECTORS

Dr. Surendra A. Dave, shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company and being eligible, offers himself for
reappointment.

Mr. Kunal N. Shah was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company at meeting of the Board held on May 29, 2011. Mr. Kunal N. Shah is
holding office of Director until the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Company had received Notice and requisite fee from a
shareholder for proposing appointment of Mr. Kunal N. Shah in the Board.

Brief particulars and expertise of these Directors have been given in the Report on the Corporate Governance and in the Notice of the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.

Insurance
The properties of the Company viz. building, plant and machinery and stocks have been adequately insured.
EMPLOYEES

None of the employees of the Company has received remuneration exceeding the limits prescribed under Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act,
1956 read with the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975.

Employee's relations remained cordial during the year under review.
INTERNALCONTROLSYSTEMSAND ITSADEQUACY

The Company has adequate internal control systems and procedures in place for effective and smooth conduct of business and to meet exigencies
of operation and growth. The key business processes have been documented. The transactions are recorded and reported in conformity with
generally accepted accounting practices. The Company has an in house internal audit system and procedures to ensure reliability of financial
reporting, compliance with the Company's policies and practices, governmental regulations and statutes.
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RISKAND CONCERNS

Indian Economy has been on a growth track again. The growth is expected to accelerate during the current year. However, excess liquidity and
inflation induced by supply constraints and anxiety about the eventual withdrawal of stimulus continue to cause concern. The Company had
reported good growth in the Financial Year's 2009-10 and 2010-11.

The Management continues to monitor the risks concerning the Company and take actions as appropriate to the situation.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

The Company is not required to furnish the prescribed information under Section 217(I) (e) of the Companies Act, 1956 relating to conservation of
energy, as the Company does not fall under the industries included in the Schedule to relevant rules. However, your Directors report that
operations of the Company do not involve much use of energy. The Company makes every possible effort to conserve energy at all levels of its
operations. Statement of particulars of the conservation of energy forms part of this Report

TECHNOLOGYABSORPTION

The Company is presently carrying its business with in-house Indian technology. Statement of particulars of the technology absorption forms part
of'this Report

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGSAND OUTGO
Statement of particulars of the foreign exchange earnings and outgo forms part of this Report
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, with respect to the Directors' Responsibility Statement, the
Directors confirm that:

i. In the preparation of the annual accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2011, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed and no material departures have been made from the same,

ii.  Appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently, and have made judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2011 and of the Profit & Loss Account for
the year than ended.

iii.  Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities, and

iv.  Theannual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.
AUDITORS

The Auditors of the Company, Haribhakti & Co, Chartered Accountants retire at the conclusion of ensuing Annual General meeting of the
Company and being eligible offer themselves for re-appointment as statutory auditors for the Financial Year 2011-2012.

The Company has received a letter from Haribhakti & Co, Chartered Accountants to the effect that their appointment if made, would be within the
prescribed limits under Section 224(1B) of the Companies Act, 1956 and that they are not disqualified within the meaning of Section 226 of the
said Act.

Members are requested to consider their appointment, on a remuneration to be decided by the Board of Directors thereof for the ensuing Financial
Yeari.e.2011-2012.

The Notes to the Financial Statements referred to in the Auditor's Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any further comments.
AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board has duly examined the statutory Auditor's Report to the financial statements and clarifications, wherever necessary, have been included
in the Notes to the Financial Statements section of the Annual Report.

EXPLANATION TOAUDITORS OBSERVATIONS:
Reply to qualifications given by the auditors in the Auditors Report:

Auditors Qualification: Para 5(a) of the Auditors Report: The Company executes composite contracts with its customers for the supply and
installation of fire protection system. Based on the nature of the activity, execution of work and the contracts entered into by the company, the
contract revenue and contract costs need to be accounted by adopting the percentage of completion method as prescribed under AS - 7
“Construction Contracts”. However, the Company has accounted revenue as per AS - 9 “Revenue Recognition” based on dispatch of material and
on completion of installation work. The impact due to above is presently not ascertainable.

Managements Reply: The Company is under the process of implementing an ERP system and accordingly will ensure compliance with
Accounting Standard-7 “Construction Contracts” in the subsequent financial years.
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Auditors Qualification: Para 5(b) of the Auditors Report: As stated in note 21 of the Schedule O, the Company is in dispute with a bank for a
claim made by the bank for ¥ 50,133,481 excluding interest on a derivative contract entered into by its erstwhile subsidiary, the liability for which
has been taken over by the Company. The erstwhile subsidiary is now an associate based on a sale of its 40% share and increase in paid up capital of
the associate. The Company has not determined the quantum of mark to market losses as of the balance sheet date on the above contract and have
relied on a legal opinion in the matter mentioning that no liability is expected. Pending final settlement of the matter, we are unable to quantify the
extent of provision required, if any in this regard.

Managements Reply: Consequent to part sale of equity stake in Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited in December 2010, the Company has taken
over the outstanding claim of a derivative contract amounting to ¥ 50,133,481 (excluding interest). The Company has obtained a legal opinion
mentioning that the said contract is in violation of the RBI regulations and hence, no liability is expected. Further, the Company has filed a petition
inthe Hon'ble High Court of Bombay challenging the legality of the contract. Pending decision, no provision is made in the books of account.

Auditors Qualification: Para 5(c) of the Auditors Report: As stated in note 6 of the Schedule O, the Company is in process of obtaining details
regarding identification of creditors registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

Managements Reply: The Company is in the process of obtaining necessary information relating to the registration status of suppliers under the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Hence, the information required under the said Act, could not be compiled and
disclosed. However, the Company since obtained few confirmations to this effect.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONAND ANALYSIS
AReport on Management Discussion and Analysis is annexed and same forms part of this Report.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has adopted the best possible Corporate Governance norms and it has been our endeavor to comply and upgrade to the changing
norms.

A separate section on corporate governance and a certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary regarding compliance of conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the stock exchanges form part of this Report.

In terms of sub-clause (v) of the Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, a certificate of the Managing Director inter alia, confirming the correctness
of'the financial statements, adequacy of the internal control measures and reporting to matters to the Audit Committee in terms of the said Clause,
isalso enclosed as a part of this Report.
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The Board acknowledges with appreciation the efforts put in by its employees during the year under review. The Company is grateful to its
customers, shareholders, suppliers, financial institutions, bankers, Central and State Governments for their constantsupport to the Company The
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was made possible by their hard work loyalty, dedication, co-ordination and support.

For and on behalf of the Board

Mumbai Sd/-
July 8, 2011 Nitin M Shah
Chairman & Managing Director
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ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS' REPORT

INFORMATION UNDER SECTION 217(1)(e) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 READ WITH THE COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS IN
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS) RULES, 1988 AND FORMING PART OF DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2011

A. CONSERVATION OFENERGY:

Energy conservation measures taken;

»  The Company has been taking from time to time such measures as deemed necessary and advisable for conservation of power.
> Impact of above measures: This enables the Company to reduce energy consumption, which intern helps to reduce the production

costs.
> Total energy consumption per unit of production in prescribed Form - A
Form A
Sr. Particulars For the year For the year
No. 2010-11 2009-10
[A]| Power and fuel consumption
1. Electricity
a) Purchased units 9,933 12,207
Amount (3 ) 46,180 53,540
Rate/Unit (¥ ) 4.65 4.39
b) Own Generation Nil Nil
2. Coal Nil Nil
3. Fuel Furnace Oil + Light Diesel Nil Nil
4. Other/Internal Generations Nil Nil
[B]| Consumption per unit N.A. N.A.
Electricity per Unit N.A. N.A.

B. TECHNOLOGYABSORPTION,ADOPTIONAND INNOVATION
1. Research & Development (R&D):
> Improvement/ modification of processes and technology
> Reduction in consumption of material
»  Development of new products
2. Benefits derived as aresult of above R&D:
»  Costreduction
»  Technology up gradation
3. Future plan of action & expenditure on R&D:
> The development process is a part of operations
> Expenditure on R&D is not specifically identifiable
4. Technology Adaptation and Innovation:
> The technology has been developed by the Company itself
> There has been no purchase or import of technology
C. FOREIGNEXCHANGE EARNINGSAND OUTGO
a. Initiatives taken to increase exports and exports plans

Your Company has been in constant touch with various customers around the world. We do hope that our regular follow up will result
in increase business from other countries.

b. Development of new export markets

Your Company is consistently exploring possibilities of exporting its products to new markets. This is an on going process.

c. Total Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo : R inlacs)
Particulars For the year For the year
2010-11 2009-10
Earnings 8,849.63 4,519.09
Outgo 8,324.72 1,450.57
Expenditure in foreign currency 53.33 67.99
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

(Annexure to the Sixteenth Directors' Report for the Financial Year 2010-11)

PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Strong corporate governance standards are vital not only for the healthy and dynamic Corporate Sector growth, but also for inclusive
growth of the economy. Good corporate governance practices enhance Company's value and stakeholders' trust resulting into strong and
healthy development of the economy.

The Company is committed towards implementing best corporate governance practices, wherever possible. The Company's philosophy on
Corporate Governance is to create value for its shareholders and to conduct its affairs in a manner which is transparent, clear and evident to
those who deal with and have a stake in the Company viz. lenders, creditors, employees and shareholders. The commitment to good
corporate governance practices reflects in the Company's value statement comprising of the following:

. Right and equitable treatment of shareholders;

. Protection of interest of other stakeholders;

Ll Integrity and ethical behavior;

. Timely disclosures and transparencys;

= Best sustainable profit performance;

. Safety, health and environmental responsibility ; and

. Integrity

The Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance is thus concerned with the ethics, values and morals of the Company and its
Directors, who are expected to act in the best interest of the Company and remain accountable to shareholders and other beneficiaries for
their action.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(i) Composition

The Board of Directors (the 'Board') of the Company represents an optimum mix of persons with experience and expertise in their
respective fields. As at March 31, 2011, the Board of the Company consisted of six Directors, of which two are Executive Directors
one Non-Executive Director and three are Non-Executive Independent Directors. Further, the Company has appointed one more
Non-Executive Director on the Board on May 29,2011, and now the Board of the Company consists of seven Directors, of which two
are Executive Directors, two Non-Executive Director and three are Non-Executive Independent Directors. None of the Directors of
the Company is a member of the Board of more than 15 companies, in terms of section 275 of the Companies Act, 1956, and amember
of more than 10 Committees or Chairman of more than 5 Committees (as specified in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement). The Board
is primarily responsible for the overall management of the Company's business. The composition of the Board is as under:

Sr. Name of the Director Nature of Number of Membership in Chairmanship
No. Directorship Directorship’s of other Board in other Board
other public Committees Committees
companies
1. Mr. Nitin M. Shah Chairman and 1 Nil Nil
Managing Director
2. Mr. Rahul N. Shah Executive Director Nil Nil Nil
3. Mr. Kailat H. Non-Executive Director Nil Nil Nil
Vaidyanathan
4. Dr. Surendra A. Dave Independent Non- 9 11 1
Executive Director
5. Mr. Krishna Kant Jha Independent Non- 1 Nil Nil
Executive Director
6. Mr. Ramayana M. Independent Non- 10 ] >
Nayak Executive Director

@
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(ii) BriefResume of Directors seeking appointments/reappointments

Dr. Surendra A. Dave is Ph.D. in Economics and has a total experience of 48 years in finance, banking and securities law. Currently,
he is on board of various companies and has got work exposure with RBI, Industrial Development Bank of India, SEBI and Unit Trust
of India. He was a founder chairman of SEBI and also the chairman of Unit Trust of India from where he retired in 1996. Dr. Dave has
been associated with various committees of Government of India dealing with reforms in the capital market, mutual funds/insurance
sector and pension funds.

Mr. Kunal N. Shah, is a Bachelor of Engineering in Electronics and Tele Communications and has experience in assembling,
testing, and functioning of CNG dispensers for CNG fuel vehicles.

(iii) Board Meetings:

The Company prepares the schedule of the Board Meetings in advance to assist the Directors in scheduling their program. The agenda
ofthe meeting is circulated to the members of the Board well in advance along with necessary papers, reports, recommendations and
supporting documents, so that each Board member can actively participate on agenda items during the meeting. Details of meetings
held and attended by the respective board members are as under:

Sr. Name of the Director No. of meetings No. of meetings Last AGM
No. held attended attended
1. Mr. Nitin M. Shah 8 7 Yes

2 Mr. Rahul N. Shah 8 7 Yes

3 Mr. Krishna Kant Jha 8 2 Yes

4. Dr. Surendra A. Dave 8 6 Yes

5 Mr. Kailat H. Vaidyanathan 8 8 Yes

6 Mr Ramakant M. Nayak 8 6 Yes

During the Financial Year 2010-11, eight Board Meetings were held on April 12,2010, July 10, 2010, August 13,2010, August 17,
2010, October 19, 2010, November3, 2010, December 16, 2010 and February 11, 2011 respectively. The interval between two
meetings was less than four months.

(iv) Information supplies to the Board

The Board has complete access to any information within the Company. At Board Meetings employees who can provide additional
insights into the items being discussed are invited:

° Quarterly results for the Company, its subsidiary companies, its associate and an unincorporated joint venture;

. Minutes of meeting of the Board, Committees, resolutions passed by circulations and minutes of the meeting of the Board of
the subsidiary companies;

° Quarterly compliance certificates with the exception reports which includes non-compliance, if any, of any regulatory,
statutory nature or listing requirements and shareholders service;

° Disclosures received from the Directors;

. Related party transactions;

° Regular business updates;
° Report on action taken on the previous Board Meeting decisions;

° Other information as mentioned in Annexure 1A to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement;

3.  BOARD COMMITTEES
For effective and efficient functioning of the Company, the Board has formed the following Committees:
° Audit Committee
° Shareholders/Investors' Grievance Committee

° Remuneration Committee
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The Audit Committee consists of two Independent and one Executive Director. Mr Krishana Kant Jha, Chairman of the committee, having
knowledge of Accounts, Finance and Company Law. At present, the committee comprises of the following Directors:

1. Mr. Krishna Kant Jha - Chairman, Independent Non executive Director
2. Mr.Ramakant M. Nayak - Member, Independent Non Executive Director
3. Mr. Rahul N. Shah - Member, Executive Director

During the year under review, the committee met five times on April 12,2010, August 13,2010, August 17, 2010, November 3, 2010, and
February 11,2011 respectively.

The role and terms of reference of the Audit Committee covers the following areas mentioned under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement:

a)  Discussion with the auditors periodically of internal control systems, scope of audit, observations of auditors and review of quarterly,
halfyearly and annual financial statements;

b)  Review ofthe Company's financial reporting process and disclosure of'its financial information.
¢)  Reviewing with management the annual financial statements before submission to the Board;

d)  Review the adequacy of internal control systems with the management, statutory and internal auditors, and structure & staffing of
internal audit system;

e)  Discussion and reviewing of any significant finding of any internal investigations by the in house internal control system into matters
where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the
Board and follow up thereon;

1) Discussion with the statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit
discussions to ascertain any areas of concern;

g)  Review the Company's financial and risk management policies;

h)  Recommending the appointment and removal of statutory auditors, fixation of audit fees and also approve payment for any other
services, ifany;

1) Investigate into any matters as specified in Section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956 or any matter referred to it by the Board;
1) Other functions as mentioned in Clause 49(11) (D) of the Listing Agreement.
SHAREHOLDER'S/INVESTOR'S GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE:

The Shareholder's/Investors' Grievance Committee consists of two Independent and one Executive Director. The committee comprises of
the following Directors:

1. Dr. SurendraA. Dave - Chairman, Independent Non Executive Director
2. Mr. Krishna Kant Jha - Member, Independent Non Executive Director
3. Mr. Rahul N. Shah - Member, Executive Director

The Committee looks into the redressing of shareholders and investor complaints like transfer of shares, non-receipt of annual
report/dividend etc.

During the year under review, the committee met regularly to monitor and resolve grievances of the shareholders and met four times on
April 12,2010, August 13,2010, November 3,2010, and February 11, 2011 respectively.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee consists of three Independent Directors. The Committee comprises of the following Directors:

1. Mr. Krishna Kant Jha - Chairman, Independent Non Executive Director
2. Dr. SurendraA. Dave - Member, Independent Non Executive Director
3. Mr. Ramakant M. Nayak - Member, Independent Non Executive Director

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for implementing the remuneration policy of the Company.

The remuneration policy of the Company for managerial personnel is primarily based on the following:-

° To address the policy on remuneration packages for Executive Directors and their service contracts;

° To prepare performance link remuneration package and other benefits;

° To formalize guidelines for out sourcing skills and capabilities for new opportunities from the external competitive environment.

The Board of Directors will decide remuneration to Non Executive Directors. The Company is not paying any commission to its Non-
Executive Directors.
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4. DIRECTOR'S REMUNERATION & SITTING FEES

a)  Thedetails of remuneration paid to the Managing Director during the Financial Year 2010-11 as approved by the Board was as under:

)
Particulars Salary & Contribution to Commission Total
bonus provident fund
Mr. Nitin M. Shah 3,511,779 259,200 1,800,306 5,571,285
Note:

The employee wise break up of liability on account of gratuity, based on estimation is not ascertainable and hence not considered
above.

b)  Details of payment for sitting fees:

Sr. No.| Particulars Sitting fees ()
1. Mr. Krishna Kant Jha 22,000
2. Dr. Surendra A. Dave 66,000
3. Mr. Krishna Kant Jha 66,000
Total 154,000

5.  DISCLOSURES
Related Party Transactions

Details of material significant related party transactions i.e. transactions of the Company of material nature with its promoters, the
Directors, its subsidiaries, relatives of the Director, etc. are presented under Note 14 (b) in Schedule O to the Financial Statements. All
details on the financial and commercial transactions which may have a potential interest are provided to the Board. The interested directors
neither participate in the discussion, nor vote on such matters.

Accounting treatment in preparation of financial statements

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared and presented in accordance with the Indian Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP), under the historical cost convention (except for revaluation of certain fixed assets) and on accrual basis of accounting.
GAAP comprises mandatory accounting standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) issued
by the Central Government in exercise of the power conferred under sub-section (I) (a) of section 642, the relevant provisions of the Act and
guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India. GAAP also includes other relevant pronouncements of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).

Compliances by the Company

The equity shares of the Company were listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited, Mumbai and Bombay Stock Exchange
Limited, Mumbali, for the entire year and there were no penalties or restrictions imposed on the Company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI for
any matter.

6. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

° Website: The Company's website www.nitinfire.com contains a separate dedicated section as “Investors Area” where shareholders
information is available. Full Annual Report is also available on the website in a user friendly and downloadable form. Apart from
this, official news releases, presentations etc. are also displayed on the Company's website.

° Financial Results: The quarterly, halfyearly and annual results are regularly uploaded by the Company on its website. These are also
submitted to the stock exchanges in accordance with the Listing Agreement and published in English and Marathi news papers.

° Annual Report: Annual Report containing infer alia Audited Annual Accounts, Directors' Report, Auditors Report and other
important information is circulated to the Members and others entitled thereto. The Management's Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A) Report forms part of the Annual Report.

° Corporate Filing: Announcements, quarterly results, shareholding pattern etc. of the Company are regularly filed by the Company,
also available on the website of the National Stock Exchange of India Limited www.nseindia.com, Bombay Stock Exchange
Limited-www.bseindia.com, and Corporate Filling & Dissemination Systems website www.corpfiling.co.in.

[15)
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7. SHAREHOLDER'S MEETINGS
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Details of the location of the previous three AGMs, and the details of the resolutions passed or to be passed by postal ballot are as under:

a. Particulars of previous three Annual General Meetings:
Meeting Year Venue Date Time

AGM 2010 | Mini Theatre, P.L. Deshpande Maharashtra Kala Academy, September 21, 2010| 3.30 p.m.
Sayani Road, Prabha Devi, Mumbai 400 025

AGM 2009 | Centre for Excellence in Telecom Technology and Management Hall, July 16, 2009 430 p.m.
Technology Street, Hiranandani Gardens, Powai, Mumbai 400 076

AGM 2008 | Centre for Excellence in Telecom Technology and Management Hall, | August 22,2008 | 3.00 p.m.
Technology Street, Hiranandani Gardens, Powai, Mumbai 400 076

b.  Noresolution requiring Postal Ballot as recommended under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement has been placed for shareholders'
approval at the above meetings.

8. GENERALSHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

° Annual General Meeting

Day and date| Thursday, August 11, 2011

Time 12.30 p.m.

Venue Kamalnayan Bajaj Hall, Bajaj Bhavan, Ground Floor, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg, 226, Nariman Point, Mumbai-400 021

Book closure | Satuday, August 6, 2011 to Thursday, August 11, 2011 (both days inclusive)

° Financial Calendar(tentative and subject to change)

April 1, 2011 to March 31, 2012 for the Financial Year 2011-2012, quarterly un-audited/annual audited

Financial year

First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter
Annual Audited

results will be announced by:
Second week of August 2011
Last week of October 2011
Lastweek of January 2012
Mid of May 2012
August2012

° Listing on Stock Exchanges:

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed with National Stock Exchange of India Limited, (NSE) and the Bombay Stock

Exchange Limited (BSE)..
Exchange Code/trading symbol ISIN
NSE NITINFIRE
BSE 532854 INE489H01012
NITINFIRE

° Payment of Listing Fee:

Listing Fees for the Financial Year 2011-12 has been paid, to the above stock exchanges where the Company's equity shares are listed.
° CEO/CFO Certification:

The Chairman and Managing Director and the Vice President - Finance of the Company have given the annual certification of
financial reporting and internal controls to the Board in terms of Clause 49 (V) of the Listing Agreement.

° Certificate of Corporate Governance

A certificate from Bharat V. Pathak & Co. Company Secretaries, confirming compliance with the conditions of Corporate
Governance in terms of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement forms part of this Report.

[16)
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° Code of Conduct

The Code of Conduct for Directors and Management Personnel (‘the Code'), adopted by the Board, is a comprehensive Code
applicable to all Directors and management personnel.

A copy of Code of Conduct has been put on the Company's website.

The Code of Conduct has been circulated to all the members of the Board and management personnel and the compliance of the same
is confirmed by them annually.

A declaration signed by the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company forms part of this Report.
Share Transfer System

A shareholder's request is normally attended and a reply is sent within 10-20 days time. The certificates after the transfer of shares are
returned within a period of one month except in the cases which face problems due to technical reasons. Shares are being transferred
and demat option letter in this respect are dispatched within 15 days from the date of receipt, as long as the documents are clear in all
respects.

The Board of Directors has delegated the power of share transfer to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) viz Bigshare
Services Private Limited, Mumbai, who attends to the same once in a fortnight.

Investor Service and Grievance Handling Mechanism

All share related transactions viz. transfer, transmission, transposition, nomination, dividend, change of name/address/signature,
registration of mandate/power of attorney, replacement/split/ consolidation of share certificates/demat/remat of shares, issue of
duplicate share certificates etc. are being handled by the RTA which performs its functions effectively, efficiently and expeditiously.

Investors are requested to correspond directly on all share related matters with Bigshare Services Private Limited at E-2, Ansa
Industrial Estate, Sakivihar Road, Saki Naka, Andheri (E), Mumbai 400 076, and for any other query to the Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer at the Registered Office of the Company at 501 Delta, Technology Street, Hiranandani Gardens, Powai, Mumbai
400076, and for prompt response, shareholders/investors may send correspondences which do not require signature verification for
processing, through e-mail at cs@nitinfire.com.

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted a Shareholders'/Investors Grievance Committee comprising of Dr. Surendra
A. Dave, Mr. Krishana Kant Jha and Mr. Rahul N. Shah directors which inter alia approves issue of duplicate certificates and
oversees and reviews all matters connected with securities transfers and other processes. The Committee also reviews the redressal of
shareholders' complaints related to transfer of shares, non receipt of Annual Report, non-receipt of dividends etc. The Committee
overseas performance of the RTA and recommends measures for overall improvement in the quality of investor services. A summary
of'investor related transactions and details are also considered by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Investor Relations

There were only 4 complaints received during the year and all were attended by the Company. Therefore no complaints were pending
asatMarch31,2011.

PAN Requirement for Transmission of Shares in Physical Form

Vide SEBI Circular (MRD/DOP/Cir-05/2009 dated May 20, 2009), it shall be mandatory to furnish a copy of the PAN card to the
Company/RTA's in the following cases:

1)  Deletion ofthe name of the deceased shareholder(s), where the shares are held in the name of two or more shareholders,
2)  Transmission of shares to the legal heir(s), where deceased shareholder was the sole holder of shares, and

3)  Transposition of shares when there is a change in the order of names in which physical shares are held jointly in the names of
two or more shareholders.

In case of mismatch in PAN card details as well as differences in maiden name and current name (in case of women) of the investors,
the RTAs can collect the PAN card as submitted by the transferee(s). However, this would be subject to RTAs verifying the veracity of
the claim of such transferee(s).

Change of Address

1)  Shareholders are required to inform the Company in writing of any change in their address, quoting their folio number for
shares in physical form, ifany

2) Change of address is effected only when the signature of the first registered holder on the request letter matches with the
specimen signature recorded with the Company.

3)  Change ofaddress for shares held in demat form should be notified only to the concerned Depository Participant (DP).
4)  Requests for change of address should be accompanied by any address proof like electricity bill, telephone bill, bank

@



NITIN FIRE PROTECTION INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Aunnal Repore 2010-2077

statement, driving license, voter ID card etc.

5)  Therecanbe only one registered address for one folio.

Status of unclaimed and unpaid dividend

1 & EH EH H .

(R in lacs)
Year ended Amount of dividend Unclaimed and unpaid dividend as % of unclaimed and
at March 31, 2011 unpaid dividend
March 31, 2008 252.06 0.45 0.18
March 31, 2009 378.09 0.86 0.23
March 31, 2010 441.11 0.94 0.21

Shareholders whose dividend remains unpaid are requested to claim the same before it is transferred to the Investor and Education
and Protection Fund as and when due.

Compulsory De-materialized Trading

As the shareholders are aware, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), has included equity shares of the Company for
compulsory dematerialised trading for all investors with effect from July 24, 2000. The Company has already entered into
agreements with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) to enable
members of the Company to select the depository of their choice for holding and dealing in shares in electronic form. The
shareholders may also note that 99.9998969% holding of the Company is in demat form.

Distribution of shareholders

Distribution of shareholding as at March 31, 2011

Range (in 3) Number of % of Number of | Amountin T % of paid
shareholders shareholders shares up capital
1-5,000 13,105 97.6164 3,143,106 6,286,212 4.9878
5,001 -10,000 154 1.1471 603,877 1,207,754 0.9583
10,001 - 20,000 79 0.5885 575,352 1,150,704 0.913
20,001 - 30,000 22 0.1639 272,516 545,032 0.4325
30,001 - 40,000 10 0.0745 189,305 378,610 0.3004
40,001 - 50,000 3 0.0223 66,592 133,184 0.1057
50,001 -100,000 18 0.1340 657,506 1,315,012 1.0434
100,001 - 99,999,999 34 0.2533 57,507,451 115,014,902 91.2589
13,425 100.00 63,015,705 126,031,410 100.00

Shareholding pattern as at March 31, 2011

Sr. No. Category of shareholders No. of shares held % of shareholding
1 Promoters, Directors & Relatives 44,274,879 70.2601
2 Mutual Funds/ UTI Nil Nil
3 Foreign Institutions/ Banks 3,617,460 5.7406
4 Foreign Institutional Investors 6,595,344 10.4662
5 Bodies Corporate 2,533,775 4.0209
6 NRI/OCBs 163,871 0.26
7 Trusts 275 0.0004
8 Clearing Members 18,414 0.0292
9 Directors/Employees 25,625 0.0407
10 Public 5,786,062 9.1819

Total 63,015,705 100.00
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° Price Data
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Share prices during the Financial Year 2010-11 at the NSE & the BSE for one equity share as under:

Month Share Prices - NSE Share Prices - BSE
High ) Low ?) [Volume (nos) High () Low ) Volume (nos)
Apr-10 405.00 344.15 40,81,919 413.00 343.00 33,08,326
May-10 409.30 360.00 26,99,121 408.80 360.10 19,03,026
Jun-10 396.50 343.50 13,006,310 399.00 364.00 10,63,,119
Jul-10 395.00 343.85 10,30,970 389.90 348.05 5,32,288
Aug-10 390.80 296.15 63,10,623 390.90 297.00 43,69,425
Sep-10 344.55 301.00 30,23,842 341.00 301.60 18,52,595
Oct-10 352.00 306.00 17,01,523 352.90 306.50 11,80,812
Nov-10* 362.00 326.65 7,63,585 362.00 329.70 6,94,105
91.25 68.00 87,62,560 91.40 67.55 61,37,609
Dec-10* 86.65 67.10 1,03,78,982 86.60 66.00 62,61,926
Jan-11%* 80.90 66.00 16,31,263 80.85 65.50 9,33,139
Feb-11* 75.85 57.50 13,22,259 75.80 57.20 4,86,325
Mar-11%* 81.40 71.00 14,70,255 81.45 71.20 6,40,755
Note: *Company has sub-divided its shares from X 10/- to ¥ 2/- each w.e.f November 8, 2010.
NSE
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Note: *Company has sub-divided its shares from< 10/- to X 2/- each w.e.f November 8,2010.
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Mumbai
July 8,2011

Note: *Company has sub-divided its shares from < 10/- to ¥ 2/- each w.e.f November §,2010.
Liquidity:

Shares of the Company are actively traded on the NSE and the BSE as is evident from the volume of shares indicated in the table
containing stock market data and hence ensures good liquidity for the investors.

Dematerialisation of shares:

Almost 100% of the equity shares of the Company have been de-materialised with only 15 shares being in physical form as at
March 31, 2011.

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, Conversion date and likely impact on equity:

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible Instruments. No amounts were outstanding on account
ofthe same as at the date of the Balance Sheet.

Locations of manufacturing plants:-

A-117, TTC Industrial Area, Shed -6, Phase- I,
Pawana Village, Duvada VSEZ,
Navi Mumbeai, Vishakapatnam,
Mumbai, Andhra Pradesh.
Mabharashtra.

Contact Person Mr. Abhishek Shrivastava

Email: cs@nitinfire.com
Registrar & Share Transfer Agents

Our RTAs, viz Bigshare Services Private Limited has recently launched Gen-Next Investor Interface Module”i'Boss" the most
advanced tool to interact with investors. Please login into i'Boss (www.bigshareonline.com] and help them to serve you better."

Address: - Bigshare Services Private Limited
E-2/3, Ansa Industrial Estate,

Sakivihar Road, Sakinaka,

Andheri (E),

Mumbai - 400 072.

Contact Person: Mr.Ansar Sheikh

Tel No. +91 22 28470652 / 40430200
Fax no. +91 22 28475207

Email - investor@bigshareonline.com

website - www.bigshareonline.com

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-
Nitin M. Shah
Chairman & Managing Director
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION &ANALYSIS

Annexure to the Director's Report

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENT:

Fire is the rapid oxidation of a material in the chemical process of combustion, releasing heat, light, gases and various reaction products. Fire in its
most common form can result in conflagration, which has the potential to cause physical damage through burning and inhalation of harmful gases
to humans and property. Fire creates highly poisonous atmosphere and longer the fire burns, higher the concentration of these gases prevails in the
surroundings. The loss of life can also happen due to the inhalation of such gases. The significance of a detection system is that it raises alarm just
after the outbreak of fire. Therefore, the stress is not on putting out the fire after it rages on, but to detect it and suppress it at the inception.

With rapid urbanization and industrialization, fire detection systems are being installed across the sectors and has become an integral part any new
project. Improved end-user awareness about life safety, security, and asset management has helped the market grow significantly, but the Indian
market is highly fragmented, unlike its counterparts in developed countries.

OPPORTUNITIES SUSTAINEDALTHOUGHAT ASLOWER PACE:

India is on growth path , and is one of the emerging economies of the world , India has made rapid strides in the field of IT , Pharmaceuticals ,
Manufacturing , and is considered to be a favorite business destination . The growth in the industrial activities and frenetic pace of construction
of commercial units are creating a vast market for fire protection industry in India.; industrial sectors such as power generation, oil and gas,
petrochemicals, metals, manufacturing (electronics and automotive); and transportation sectors such as airports, metro railway stations, and
seaports present a plethora of opportunities for fire protection industry. The Government of India with its stress on industrial growth,
encouragement of special economic zones and increasing investment by big foreign players in the country; the fire industry has truly great
potential.

FUTURE OUTLOOK:
Growth in the Indian economy: Picking up of domestic consumption

Stringent government norms: The market will also get a leg up from regulations regarding the environment and fire safety in buildings, as well as
the need for asset protection and life safety.

End-user awareness: Improved end-user awareness about life safety, security, and asset management.
Strong emergence of new/high growth verticals: Malls, multiplexes, retail chains, manufacturing plants, I'T, BPOs, & Data centers.

Increased demand: Stemming from the industrial and retail segment, primarily due to growth of industrial sectors, chemical zones, IT, data
centers and retail metros.

Fire Act: Being considered and to be implemented strongly across the country starting with Maharashtra.
Refurbishment of obsolete equipments: Need to upgrade to higher technology of safety & security solutions.
INTERNAL CONTROLSYSTEM:

The Company has in place a well defined organisational structure and adequate internal controls for efficient operations. The team has in place
internal policies, and is cognizant of applicable laws and regulations, particularly those related to protection of property, recourses and assets and
the accurate reporting of financial transactions. The Company continually upgrades these systems. The internal control is supplemented by an
extensive internal audits, review by management and audit committee, documented polices, prescribed guideline, rule & procedure all activities
of the Company covered by the in house internal control system, the scope of internal audit covers scrutiny of work order, purchases , sales ,
expenses, inventory & taxation. The internal audit system is designed specifically to cover financial & other records, financial statements and
maintaining accountability of the assets.

HUMAN RESOURCES

People have always been central to organizations, but their strategic importance is growing in today's knowledge-based business world like never
before. We understand that the organization's success increasingly depends on the knowledge, skills, and abilities of'its employees. Particularly as
they help establish a set of core competencies which distinguish one organization from its competitors.

The Company provides a stable work environment with equal opportunity for learning and personal growth. The Company communicates in a
candid and fair manner with the diverse work force from which it derives its strength. The Company also offers attractive remuneration, conducive
working atmosphere and profit sharing plan to its key employees. The Company is also planning to set-up staff welfare fund with major thrust on
training and motivation of employee.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:

Certain statement as discussed and mentioned in the Management Discussion & Analysis and elsewhere, constitute forward-looking statements
articulated as the management's expectations for the future business prospects of the Company. However, there are risks and uncertainties,
associated due to the general economic conditions in which the Company operates. Also, the factors like foreign currency fluctuations, regulatory
initiatives, tender processes in the Government, public sector and other large undertakings, competition etc. are not in the control of the Company.
Such uncontrollable factors are crucial for success of the Company's business plans or predictions, which may cause the actual results to
materially differ from the performance or achievements, discussed or implied by such forward looking statements.

(21]
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FIRE SAFETY AND PROTECTION

Declaration regarding compliance by the Board Members and the Senior Management personnel
with the Company's Code of Conduct

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including the Managing Director and the Executive
Directors. In addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Non- Executive Directors.

I confirm that the Company has received a declaration of compliance of the Code of Conduct from the senior management team of the Company
(wherever applicable) in respect of the Financial Year ended March 31, 2011. For the purpose of this declaration, senior management team means
employees in the Executive Vice President cadre and above and the Company Secretary as at March 31,2011.

Sd/-
Mumbai Nitin M. Shah
July 8,2011 Chairman & Managing Director
Report on Corporate Governance
(By Practicing Company Secretary)
To, Company Reg. No.: 11-92323

Nominal Capital: Rs 600,000,000
The Members of
Nitin Fire Protection Industries Limited

We have examined the relevant records of Nitin Fire Protection Industries Limited (the ‘Company’) for the purpose of certifying compliance of
the conditions of Corporate Governance under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and the National
Stock Exchange of India Limited for the financial year ended March 31,2011. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of certification.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to a review of the
procedures and implementation thereof. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

On the basis of our examination of the records produced, explanations and information furnished, we certify that the Company has complied with
all the applicable mandatory conditions of the said Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

For BharatV. Pathak & Co
Practicing Company Secretary

Sd/-

Bharat V. Pathak
Company Secretary
CPNo.: 829
FCSNo.: 1234

Mumbai
July 2, 2011
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FIRE SAFETY AND PROTECTION

Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Certification
To,

The Members
Nitin Fire Protection Industries Limited

We, the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Managing Director and Vice President - Finance of NITIN FIRE PROTECTION
INDUSTRIES LIMITED (“the Company”), to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that:

a)  Wehave reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended on March 31, 2011 and based on our knowledge
and belief, we state that:

L these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain any statement that might be
misleading;

II.  these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting
standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b)  We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, that there are no transactions entered into by the Company during the year,
which are fraudulent, illegal or violate the Company's Code of Conduct.

c¢)  We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls and for evaluating the effectiveness of the same over the financial
reporting of the Company and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design of operation of internal
controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps have been taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies, if any.

d)  Wehaveindicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that:

L there has not been any significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year under reference;

II.  there has not been any significant changes in the accounting policies during the year requiring disclosure in the notes to the financial
statements; and

III.  wearenotaware of any material instances during the year of significant fraud and the involvement therein, if any, of the management
or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control systems over the financial reporting.

For Nitin Fire Protection Industries Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Nitin M. Shah Bharat K. Shah
Chairman & Vice President - Finance
Managing Director

Mumbai

July 8,2011
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AUDITORS' REPORT

To

The Members of Nitin Fire Protection Industries Limited

1. Wehave audited the attached Balance Sheet of Nitin Fire Protection Industries Limited ('the Company') as at March 31,2011, the Profitand
Loss account and Cash Flow Statements for the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003, (CARO), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section
(4A) of Section 227 of "'The Companies Act, 1956, we enclose in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of

the said Order.
4. Further to our comments in the paragraph 3 above, we report that:

i. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit;

ii.  Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination of
those books;

iii.  The balance sheet, profit and loss account and cash flow statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

iv.  In our opinion, the balance sheet, profit and loss account and cash flow statement dealt with by this report comply with the
accounting standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956,

V. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors, as on March 31, 2011, and taken on record by the Board of
Directors, we report that none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2011 from being appointed as a director in terms of
clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956.

5. (a)  The company executes composite contracts with its customers for the supply and installation of fire protection system. Based on the
nature of the activity, execution of work and the contracts entered into by the company, the contract revenue and contract costs need
to be accounted by adopting the percentage of completion method as prescribed under AS 7 “Construction Contracts”. However,
the company has accounted the revenue as per AS 9 “Revenue Recognition” based on the dispatch of material and on completion of
installation work. The impact due to above is presently not ascertainable.

(b)  As stated in note 21 of the Schedule O, the Company is in dispute with a bank for a claim made by the bank for X 50,133,481 on a
derivative contract entered into by its erstwhile subsidiary, the liability for which has been taken over by the Company. The erstwhile
subsidiary is now an associate based on a sale of its 40% share and increase in paid up capital of the associate. The Company has not
determined the quantum of mark to market losses as of the balance sheet date on the above contract and have relied on a legal
opinion in the matter wherein no liability is expected. Pending the final settlement of the matter, we are unable to quantify the extent
of provision required, if any in this regard.

(c)  Asstated in note 6 of the Schedule O, the Company is in process of obtaining details regarding identification of creditors registered
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

6. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, subject to the effects of our observations
given in the paragraph 5 above, the said accounts give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required and
give atrue and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India;

a)  inthecaseofthe balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2011;

b)  inthecase ofthe profitand loss account, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and

c) in the case of the cash flow statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.
For Haribhakti & Co.

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 103523W

Sd/-

Sarah George

Partner

Membership No.: 45255
Mumbai
May 29,2011




NITIN FIRE PROTECTION INDUSTRIES LIMITED N —
Awnaal Beport 2010-2011 ¢

ANNEXURE TOAUDITORS' REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 3 of the Auditors' Report of even date to the members of Nitin Fire Protection Industries Limited on the financial
statements for the year ended March 31,2011]

(1) (@)  The company has not maintained full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets, and is in the process
of updating its fixed assets register.

(b)  The fixed assets are not being physically verified by the management during the year. Hence we are unable to comment on the
discrepancies, if any.

(¢)  There was no substantial disposal of fixed assets during the year.

(i1) (a)  Theinventory has been physically verified by the management at the end of the year. In our opinion, the frequency of verification
isreasonable.

(b)  The procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the
size of the Company and the nature of its business.

(¢)  The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

(iii) (a)  Asinformed, the Company has not granted or taken any loans, secured or unsecured to/from companies, firms or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

Accordingly, clauses (iii) (b), (c) and (d) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) are not applicable to the
Company and hence, not reported upon.

@iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there exists an adequate internal control system
commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business with regard to purchase of inventory, fixed assets and with
regard to the sale of goods. During the course of our audit, no major weakness has been noticed in the internal control system in respect of
these areas. During the course of our audit, we have not observed any continuing failure to correct major weakness in internal control
system of the company.

v) The Company does not have any transaction with 301 parties, hence clause (v) (a) and (b) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,
2003 (as amended) are not applicable to the Company.

(vi) The company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 58A and 58AA of the Act and the rules
framed there under.

(vii) The Company has an internal audit system, the scope and coverage of which, in our opinion requires to be enlarged to be commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

(viii))  To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government of India has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under
clause (d) of sub-section (1) of Section 209 of the Companies Act, 1956 for the products of the company.

(ix) (a)  Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax, customs duty,
excise duty, service tax, cess and any other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities.

Further, since the Central Government has till date not prescribed the amount of cess payable under section 441A of the
Companies Act,1956, we are not in a position to comment upon the regularity or otherwise of the company in depositing the
same.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund,
employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax, customs duty, excise duty, service tax, cess and any other
undisputed statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(¢)  According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of provident fund, employees' state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax, customs duty, excise duty, service tax, cess and any other statutory dues which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

(25)
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(x) The company does not have accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and has not incurred cash losses in current and

immediately preceding financial year.

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to
banks.
(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and records produced to us, the Company has not

granted loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.

(xiii)  Inour opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi / mutual benefit fund / society. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4(xiii) of the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) are not applicable to the Company.

(xiv) In our opinion, the Company is not dealing in or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 4(xiv) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) are not applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has given guarantees for loans taken by subsidiaries from
banks. The terms and conditions whereof are, not prejudicial to the interests of the Company.

(xvi)  The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year.

(xvii))  According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report
that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term investment.

(xviii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties and
companies covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Act, hence, clause (xviii) of paragraph 4 of the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 is not applicable and not reported upon.

(xix) The Company did not have any outstanding debentures during the year.
(xx) The Company has not raised any money by public issue during the year.

(xxi) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial statements and as per the
information and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported
during the course of our audit.

For Haribhakti & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN:103523W

Sd/-

Sarah George

Partner

Membership No.: 45255

Mumbai
May 29,2011
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2011

Schedule

Reference

SOURCES OF FUNDS :
Shareholders' Funds :
Share capital

Reserves and surplus

= >

Loan Funds :
Secured loans C
Unsecured loan D

Deferred Tax Liablity
(Refer Note 8, Schedule O)
Total Funds Employed
APPLICATION OF FUNDS :
Fixed Assets :
Tangible assets: E-1
Gross block
Less : Accumulated depreciation
Net block
Intangible assets: E-2
Gross block
Less :Accumulated amortisation
Net block

Investments F
Current Assets, Loans and Advances:

Current Assets : G
Inventories

Sundry debtors

Cash and bank balances

Other current assets

Loans and Advances H

Less : Current Liabilities and Provisions : 1
Current liabilities
Provisions

Net Current Assets
Total Funds Utilised

Notes to the Financial Statements (0]
The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.
In terms of our attached report of even date

' l - E EEN
RSN
As at As at
March 31, 2011 March 31, 2010
3 3
126,031,410 126,031,410
1,138,032,090 969,360,300

1,264,063,500

1,095,391,710

479,081,775 367,370,398

- 25,000,000
479,081,775 392,370,398
2,053,725 787,747
1,745,199,000 1,488,549,855
75,152,032 78,677,436
50,114,935 48,253,339
25,037,097 30,424,097
10,367,274 9,126,009
8,617,488 9,118,863
1,749,786 7,146
638,392,736 867,600,778
394,515,387 190,568,660
825,369,687 520,933,601
46,070,381 5,879,424

- 88,244
1,265,955,455 717,469,929
275,985,816 183,124,018
1,541,941,271 900,593,947
387,325,809 258,383,266
74,596,081 51,692,847
461,921,890 310,076,113
1,080,019,381 590,517,834
1,745,199,000 1,488,549,855

For Haribhakti & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sd/- Sd/-

Sarah George Nitin M. Shah

Partner Chairman &
Managing Director

Mumbai Mumbai

May 29, 2011 May 29, 2011

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Rahul N. Shah

Wholetime Director

Sd/-

Abhishek Shrivastava
Company Secretary
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Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2011

FIRE SAFETY AND PROTECTION

For the year For the year
Schedule 2010-11 2009-10
Reference 3 3
INCOME:
Turnover 1,465,039,949 938,945,353
Other operating income J 11,668,797 3,202,927
Other income K 145,989,920 356,735
Total Income 1,622,698,666 942,505,015
EXPENDITURE:
Purchase of goods for resale 176,386,496 440,291,231
Materials and components L 982,268,375 220,943,829
Manufacturing, installation and other expenses M 128,079,159 109,386,700
Interest and finance charges N 50,432,022 22,904,698
Depreciation of tangible assets 3,740,447 4,654,324
Less: Charged to Revaluation Reserve 1,085,115 1,255,843
2,655,332 3,398,481
Amortisation of intangible assets 177,675 1,437,062
2,833,007 4,835,543
Total Expenditure 1,339,999,059 798,362,001
Profit Before Tax 282,699,607 144,143,014
Provision for Taxation
Current (Refer Note 23, Schedule O) 33,660,632 21,015,000
Deferred 1,265,978 (274,024)
Tax adjustment of earlier years (net) 10,590,727 5,892,379
Profit After Tax 237,182,270 117,509,659
Add:Balance brought forward from prevous year 236,228,177 186,326,175
Amount Available for Appropriation 473,410,447 303,835,834
APPROPRIATIONS :
Proposed dividend of ¥ 1.00 (X 3.50 of ¥ 10 each) on equity shares of ¥ 2 each 63,015,705 44,110,994
Corporate dividend tax on proposed dividend 4,409,660 7,496,663
(Refer Note 26, Schedule O)
Transferred to General Reserve 23,750,000 16,000,000
Surplus Carried Forward to Balance Sheet 382,235,082 236,228,177
Basic and diluted earnings per share 3.76 1.86
(Refer Note 13, Schedule O)
Notes to the Financial Statements (0}
The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.
In terms of our attached report of even date
For Haribhakti & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Sarah George Nitin M. Shah Rahul N. Shah Abhishek Shrivastava
Partner Chairman & Wholetime Director ~Company Secretary
Managing Director
Mumbai Mumbai
May 29, 2011 May 29, 2011
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2011

For the year For the year
2010-11 2009-10
3 3

Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before taxation 282,699,607 144,143,014
Adjustments for:
Depreciation* and amortisation 2,833,007 4,835,543
(* Net of transfer from revaluation reserve)
Unrealised foreign exchange difference-net (gain)/loss 2,472,747 (6,878,013)
Interest income (gross) (1,584,133) (90,225)
Interest and finance charges 50,432,022 22,904,698
Bad debts/balances written off 11,334,328 4,763,327
Credit balances appropriated (11,588,374) (2,928,168)
(Surplus) on sale of fixed assets (170,945) (266,510)
Proceeds on sale of stake in a domestic subsidiary (net of expenses) (108,223,342) -
Dividend income (35,011,500) -
Miscellaneous expenditure to the extent written off - 3,150,000
Operating profit before working capital changes 193,193,417 169,633,666
Adjustments for:
Inventories (203,946,727) (86,215,887)
Sundry debtors (318,750,370) (385,414,975)
Other current assets 88,244 731,663
Loans and advances (94,759,246) (45,380,136)
Current liabilities 135,656,206 89,667,350
(Decrease)in working capital (481,711,893) (426,611,985)
Cash (used in) operations (288,518,476) (256,978,319)
Taxes paid (net of refunds, if any) (35,011,963) (24,472,816)
Net cash (used in) operating activities (323,530,439) (281,451,135)
Cash flow from investing activities
Payment for purchase of fixed assets (2,232,818) (3,730,369)
Investment in an un-incorporated joint venture (17,831,316) (15,807,724)
Interest received 1,304,907 90,225
Proceeds on maturity of margin money with banks 242,643 6,364,137
Proceeds on sale of fixed assets 2,130,000 596,000
Proceeds on sale of stake in a domestic subsidiary (net of expenses) 360,068,561 -
Dividend income 35,011,500 -
Formation of/investment in a wholly owned foreign subsidiary - (4,761,000)
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities 378,693,477 (17,248,731)
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For the year For the year
2010-11 2009-10
3 3

C  Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from secured borrowings (net) 112,012,696 340,174,492
(Repayment of)/proceeds from unsecured borrowings (25,000,000) 25,000,000
Interest and finance charges paid (50,220,933) (22,904,698)
Dividends distributed (including corporate dividend tax) (51,521,201) (39,897,877)
Miscellaneous expenditure - (3,150,000)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (14,729,438) 299,221,917
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 40,433,600 522,051
Cash and cash equivalents, (opening) 4,855,384 4,333,333
Cash and cash equivalents,(closing) 45,288,984 4,855,384
Net increase as disclosed above 40,433,600 522,051

Notes:

1. Brackets indicate a cash outflow or deduction.

2. Cash and cash equivalents include unclaimed/unpaid dividends amounting to I 225,796
(X 139,340) not available for use by the Company.

As at As at
March 31, 2011 March 31,2010
3 3
3. Components of cash and cash equivalents (closing):
Cash balance on hand 2,684,577 743,125
Bank balances:
With scheduled banks on:
- Current accounts 6,658,607 3,972,919
- Fixed deposits (including interest accrued thereon) 781,397 1,024,040
- Unclaimed and unpaid dividend accounts 225,796 139,340
- EEFC current account in US dollar 35,720,004 -
46,070,381 5,879,424
Less:Fixed deposits (pledged) 781,397 1,024,040
45,288,984 4,855,384
The schedules A to O form an integral part of the financial statements.
In terms of our attached report of even date
For Haribhakti & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Sarah George Nitin M. Shah Rahul N. Shah Abhishek Shrivastava
Partner Chairman & Wholetime Director ~Company Secretary
Managing Director
Mumbai Mumbai
May 29, 2011 May 29, 2011
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Schedules forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2011

As at As at
March 31, 2011 March 31, 2010
3 3
Schedule A : Share Capital
(Refer Note 3, Schedule O)
Authorised :
300,000,000 Equity shares of X 2 each 600,000,000 600,000,000
(60,000,000 Equity shares of ¥ 10 each)
Total 600,000,000 600,000,000
Issued and Subscribed:
63,015,705 Equity shares of ¥ 2 each fully paid up 126,031,410 126,031,410
(12,603,141 Equity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid up)
Per Balance Sheet 126,031,410 126,031,410
Note:
Equity shares issued and subscribed includes following issues for consideration other than cash:
a. 900,000 (180,000 of% 10 each) Equity shares of % 2 each fully paid up were issued pursuantto a
contract.
b. 5,000,000 (1,000,000 of% 10 each) Equity shares ofR 2 each fully paid up were issued as bonus
shares by capitalisation of free reserves to the shareholders in the ratio of 1:4 equity share for
every share held in2001-02.
Schedule B: Reserves and Surplus
Asset Revaluation Reserve :
Balance, beginning of the year 9,078,748 10,334,591
Less : Charged to depreciation of tangible assets 1,085,115 1,255,843
Balance, end of the year 7,993,633 9,078,748
Securities Premium Account :
Balance, beginning of the year 669,388,375 669,388,375
Balance, end of the year 669,388,375 669,388,375
General Reserve :
Balance, beginning of the year 54,665,000 38,665,000
Add:Transferred from Profit and Loss Account 23,750,000 16,000,000
Balance, end of the year 78,415,000 54,665,000

Profit and Loss Account :

Balance carried from Profit and Loss Account 382,235,082 236,228,177
Per Balance Sheet 1,138,032,090 969,360,300

Schedule C: Secured Loans

(Refer Note 5, Schedule O)

From banks :

Working capital loans 170,854,895 176,134,075

Foreign currency loans* 308,226,880 191,236,323
Per Balance Sheet 479,081,775 367,370,398

(*buyers line of credit availed by the Company-short term)

Schedule D: Unsecured Loan

Short term loan and advance:

From the Managing Director - 25,000,000
Per Balance Sheet - 25,000,000

[32]
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Schedules forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2011

As at As at
March 31, 2011 March 31, 2010
3 3
Schedule F : Investments
(Refer Note 2 (C), Schedule O)
1.  In Subsidiaries:
(i) Domestic :
a. 10,000 of Alert Fire Protection Systems Private Limited 10,100,000 10,100,000
(10,000)
b. 10,000 of Eurotech Cylinders Private Limited 100,000 100,000
(10,000)
c. 17,500 of Logicon Building Systems Private Limited 350,000 350,000
(17,500)
10,550,000 10,550,000
(ii) Foreign :
a. 1 of Nitin Ventures FZE , UAE 10,874,622 10,874,622
(1)
Equity Share of 1,000,000 Dhs each
b. 100,000 of Nitin Global Pte Limited, Singapore 4,761,000 4,761,000
(100,000)
Ordinary shares, with no par value in SGD
15,635,622 15,635,622
2. In Equity Shares of a Company : (Quoted)
2,300 of Andhra Bank 23,000 23,000
(2,300)
3. In a Non-integrated Un-incorporated Joint Venture for Crude Oil Block 151,029,333 128,392,156
(Investment of Rs.22,637,177 made during the year)
4. In an Associate
2,336,496 of Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited* 461,154,781 713,000,000
(3,612,500)
(1,276,004 sold during the year)
Per Balance Sheet 638,392,736 867,600,778
Notes :
Aggregate book value of unquoted investments 638,369,736 867,577,778
Aggregate book value of quoted investments 23,000 23,000
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 347,185 248,630
Notes:
1. All investments are in equity shares, fully paid up and with a face value of ¥ 10 each, unless otherwise stated.

2. Allinvestments are long term, other than trade, stated at cost and unquoted except otherwise stated.
3. * Domestic subsidiary as at March 31, 2010 and formerly known as Nitin Cylinders Limited. (Refer Note 20 b, Schedule O)

[34)
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Schedules forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2011

As at As at
March 31, 2011 March 31, 2010
3 3
Schedule G : Current Assets
Inventories:
(Refer Note 2(D), Schedule O)
Materials and components 394,515,387 190,568,660
394,515,387 190,568,660
Sundry Debtors:
(Unsecured and considered good)
Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months 371,840,873 48,670,247
Other debts 453,528,814 472,263,354
825,369,687 520,933,601
Cash and Bank Balances:
Cash balance on hand 2,684,577 743,125
Bank balances:
With scheduled banks on:
- Current accounts 6,658,607 3,972,919
- Fixed deposits (including interest accrued thereon) 781,397 1,024,040
( Deposited with the sales tax department and also refer Note 4(i), Schedule O)
- Unclaimed and unpaid dividend accounts 225,796 139,340
(As per contra- Schedule I)
- Exchange Earners Foreign Currency (EEFC) current account in US dollar 35,720,004 -
46,070,381 5,879,424
Other Current Assets:
(Considered good)
DEPB Licence - 88,244
- 88,244
Per Balance Sheet 1,265,955,455 717,469,929
Schedule H : Loans and Advances
(Unsecured and considered good)
Loans to domestic subsidiaries 110,252,982 55,000,000
(Refer Note 19, Schedule O)
Advances given to a foreign subsidiary towards equity 91,333,503 91,333,503
Loans to bodies corporate 15,000,000 -
Loans to employees 1,840,270 1,066,300
Advances to suppliers 36,438,522 13,592,668
Other advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 21,093,912 20,069,883
Advance payments against taxes* 26,627 2,038,860
Deposit with excise authorities - 22,804
Per Balance Sheet 275,985,816 183,124,018

(* net of provision for tax)

[35)
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Schedules forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2011

As at As at
March 31, 2011 March 31, 2010
3 3
Schedule I : Current Liabilities and Provisions
Current Liabilities:
Sundry creditors 235,988,373 224,370,965
(Refer Note 6, Schedule O)
Dues to subsidiaries 35,919,731 19,432,440
Advances from customers 107,178,311 5,793,964
Investor Education and Protection Fund in respect of:*
- Unclaimed and unpaid dividends 225,796 139,340
(As per contra- Schedule G)
Other liabilities 6,558,498 7,607,332
Interest accrued but not due on loans 211,089 -
Dues to the managing director 1,244,011 1,039,225
387,325,809 258,383,266
Provisions:
For income tax** 7,163,716 -
For wealth tax** 7,000 25,000
For fringe benefit tax** - 60,190
For dividend (proposed) 63,015,705 44,110,994
For corporate dividend tax on proposed dividend 4,409,660 7,496,663
74,596,081 51,692,847
Per Balance Sheet 461,921,890 310,076,113

( * The figure reflects the position as of March 31, 2011. The actual amount
to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund in this
respect shall be determined on the due date).

(** net of payments)
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Schedules forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2011

For the year For the year
2010-11 2009-10
3 3
Schedule J: Other Operating Income
Credit balances appropriated 11,588,374 2,928,168
Debts written off in earlier years, Realised 80,423 274,759
Per Profit & Loss Account 11,668,797 3,202,927

Schedule K : Other Income

Interest received on fixed deposits and others -Gross 1,584,133 90,225
(TDS : % 141,637; (Rs.Nil))

Dividends received on long term investments:*

- From domestic subsidiaires 35,000,000 -

- Others 11,500 -
Profit on sale of stake in a domestic subsidiary (net of expenses) * 108,223,342 -
Gain on sale of fixed assets (net) 170,945 266,510
Miscellaneous receipts 1,000,000 -

Per Profit & Loss Account 145,989,920 356,735

( * other than trade)

Schedule L : Materials and Components
(Refer Note 2 (E) (v), Schedule O)

Opening inventories 190,568,660 104,352,773
Add:Purchases 1,186,215,102 307,159,716
1,376,783,762 411,512,489

Less:Closing inventories 394,515,387 190,568,660
Per Profit & Loss Account 982,268,375 220,943,829

Schedule M :Manufacturing, Installation and Other Expenses
Manufacturing and Installation Expenses:

Sub-contract charges and site expenses 11,516,135 7,243,508
Electricity charges 258,900 53,540
Water charges 8,958 8,491
Repairs- Factory building - 7,496
- Machinery 1,580 9,888

1,580 17,384

11,785,573 7,322,923
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Schedules forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2011

For the year For the year
2010-11 2009-10
3 3
Schedule M : (Contd...)
Operating Expenses:
Conveyance and travelling 11,017,580 10,612,296
Miscellaneous expenses 8,382,822 6,267,523
Rent and lease rent 2,287,730 1,968,754
Repairs - Buildings - 621,596
- Other assets 3,150,145 196,212
3,150,145 817,808
Insurance premium 546,273 229,650
Payments to auditors 992,700 551,500
Legal and professional fees 12,393,007 12,875,441
Donations and charity 3,209,302 2,900,611
Vehicle expenses 1,175,195 1,013,748
Sitting fees to Non Executive Directors 154,000 99,000
Miscellaneous expenditure to the extent written off - 3,150,000
43,308,754 40,486,331
Personnel Expenses:
Salaries, wages and bonus 34,885,805 28,867,076
Contribution to provident®, gratuity and other funds 1,172,357 1,363,566
(*including administrative charges)
Employees welfare 1,297,449 1,515,207
Director's remuneration 5,571,285 4,485,275
42,926,896 36,231,124
Sales and Distribution Expenses:
Sales promotion and advertisement 6,871,324 7,312,674
Discount, commission, rebates etc. 6,402,307 7,999,485
Bad debts written off 11,311,524 4,763,327
Distribution expenses (net) 4,110,682 2,276,612
Rates and taxes 1,362,099 2,994,224
30,057,936 25,346,322
Per Profit & Loss Account 128,079,159 109,386,700
Schedule N-Interest and Finance Charges
Interest:
On cash credit facility 19,540,857 13,442,056
Others (including interest on buyers line of credit) 4,494,397 2,124,752
24,035,254 15,566,808
Loan processing and other financial charges 35,736,970 16,263,338
(Gain) on foreign exchange fluctuations (net) (9,340,202) (8,925,448)
Per Profit & Loss Account 50,432,022 22,904,698
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Schedule O

Forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2011

Notes to the Financial Statements

1.

(A) Background and nature of operations:

®)

Nitin Fire Protection Industries Limited (NFPIL or the 'Company') was incorporated in Mumbai, India on September 4, 1995 as a
public limited company under the 'Companies Act, 1956' (the 'Act'). The Company's business activity is that of manufacturing fire
fighting equipment (gas based and water based fire extinguishers) under the brand name 'NITIE' (also certified by the Bureau of
Indian Standard (BIS)), providing turnkey solutions including procurement, designing, system integration, commissioning and
installation of safety and security solutions, manufacturing compressed natural gas (CNG) cascades and execution of annual
maintenance contracts for fire protection systems. The Company undertakes above activities from Maharashtra, Andhra Pradesh and
Himachal Pradesh and has marketing offices in Maharashtra and Tamil Nadu. As part of its business activities, the Company has
formed/acquired domestic/foreign subsidiaries (including a step down foreign subsidiary), has a stake in an associate and has entered
into a non-integrated un-incorporated joint venture for oil exploration block. NFPIL is a ISO 9001:2000 certified Company, is
authorised to use LPCB mark for its various fire fighting systems and some of its products used in fire fighting systems are UL
approved.

The Company made an initial public offer ('[PO') in May 2007 and its shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and
the National Stock Exchange Limited.

Basis of preparation of financial statements:

(1)  The accompanying financial statements have been prepared and presented in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP), under the historical cost convention (except for revaluation of certain fixed assets) on accrual
basis of accounting. GAAP comprises mandatory accounting standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006 (as amended) issued by the Central Government in exercise of the power conferred under sub-section (I) (a) of
section 642, the relevant provisions of the Act and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India. GAAP also
includes other relevant pronouncements of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). Accounting policies have
been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard, if initially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. Management evaluates all recently issued or
revised accounting standards on an ongoing basis.

(ii)) The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the management make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting periods. These estimates are based upon the
management's best knowledge of current events and actions. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Accounting policies:

Significant accounting policies are summarised below:

[A]

[B]

Fixed assets:

(i)  Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition/installation or at revalued amounts, net of accumulated depreciation, amortisation
and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and other attributable costs of bringing the asset to their
working condition for their intended use.

(ii))  Machinery spares which can be used only in connection with an item of fixed asset and whose use is not of regular nature are
capitalised and written off over the estimated useful life of the relevant asset. The written down value of such spares is charged
to the Profit and Loss Account on issue for consumption.

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment:
(i)  Depreciation-tangibles:

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on written down value method in accordance with the provisions of Section 205(2) (b)
of the Act in the manner and at the rates specified in Schedule XIV to the Act. Depreciation on additions/deductions is
calculated pro rata from/to the number of days of additions/deductions. In respect of an asset for which impairment loss is
recognised, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the assets over its remaining useful life. In case of
revalued assets, depreciation is computed on such revalued amounts and an appropriate amount transferred from revaluation
reserve to profit and loss account. Cost of leasehold land is amortised in proportion to the period of lease. Individual assets
costing less than Rs.5,000 are depreciated in full in the year of acquisition.

(ii)) Amortisation-intangibles:

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost and amortised so as to reflect the pattern in which the asset's economic benefits
are consumed.

Expenditure on computer software and technical know how fees are amortised on straight line method over a period of two

years.
(39
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[C]

[D]

[E]

[F]

[G]

(iii) Impairment of assets:

The carrying amounts of fixed assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss will be recognized wherever the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets net selling price and value in use. In
assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to the present value by using weighted average cost of
capital. A previously recognised impairment loss is further provided or reversed depending on changes in circumstances.
However, the carrying value after reversal is not increased beyond the carrying value that would have prevailed by charging
usual depreciation if there was no impairment.

Investments:

Trade investments are investments made to enhance the Company's business interests. Investments that are readily realisable and
intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term
investments.

Long term investments including investments in subsidiaries (profit/loss earned or sustained by subsidiaries is not recognized in the
books of account), an associate and in a non-integrated un-incorporated joint venture are carried at cost and provisions recorded to
recognize any declines, other than temporary, in the carrying amount of each investment. Cost of overseas investment comprises the
Indian Rupee Value of the consideration paid for the investment.

Inventories:
Inventories are valued as follows:

Materials and components are valued at lower of cost, computed on FIFO basis and net realisable value. Such costs include
material cost and other costs incurred in bringing the goods to their present location and condition.

Goods in transit are valued at cost, which represents the costs incurred upto the stage at which the goods are in transit.
Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and it can be reliably
measured.

(i)  Revenue from domestic sales is recognised on dispatch, which coincides with transfer of significant risks and rewards to
customers and stated net of taxes and returns, as applicable. Revenue from exports is recognised on the date of bill of lading and
includes foreign exchange fluctuation on exports.

(i)  Income from services rendered on project related activities is recognised on due dates of the relevant contracts and is exclusive
of service tax, wherever recovered.

(iii) Liquidated damages/penalties, are provided based on management's assessment of the estimated liability, as per contractual
terms and/or acceptance.

(iv)  Surplus on sale of investments in subsidiaries is computed on the basis of the average carrying amount of the investment. Other
income is accounted on accrual basis as and when the right to receive arises.

(v)  The Company is entitled to refund of Special Additional Duty paid on imported goods traded or consumed in Company's
activities within the prescribed time limit. Accordingly, refund is accrued on sale/consumption of such goods.

Taxation:
(i)  Taxexpense comprises current tax including wealth tax and deferred tax charge or credit.

(a)  Current tax including wealth tax are measured at the amounts expected to be paid to the Tax Authorities in accordance
with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 prevailing for the relevant assessment year.

(b) Deferred tax charge or credit is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date. Deferred tax charge or credit is recognised, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing
differences, being the difference between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are
capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods in the profit and loss account and the cumulative effect thereofis
reflected in the Balance Sheet. In respect of deferred tax charge or credit resulting from timing differences, which
originate during the tax holiday period but is expected to reverse after such tax holiday period, is recognised in the year
in which the timing differences originate using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date.

(i1) Tax on distributed profits payable is as per the provisions of Section 1150 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 is in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Accounting for Corporate Dividend Tax regarded as tax on distribution of profits issued by the ICAI and
is not considered in determination of the profits for the year.

Cash flow statement:

The cash flow statement is prepared by the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of

[40)
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anon-cash nature and presents the cash flows by operating, investing and financing activities of the Company. Cash and cash
equivalents presented in the cash flow statement consist of cash balance on hand and balances with banks.

Foreign currency transactions and balance:
(1)  Initial recognition:

Transactions for import/export of goods are recorded at a rate notified by the customs authorities for invoice purposes. Other
foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange
rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

(i1))  Conversion:

Monetary items are translated at the closing exchange rate as on the date of the balance sheet and non-monetary items are
reported using the exchange rate that existed on the date of the transaction.

(iii) Exchange Differences:

Exchange differences arising on settlement of monetary items or on reporting monetary items at rates different from those at
which they were initially recorded during the year or reported in the previous financial statements are recognised as income or
expenses in the year in which they arise, taken to the relevant revenue heads in the profit and loss account and disclosed as a net
amount in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Retirement benefits:

(i)  Employee Benefits such as salaries, allowances, non-monetary benefits and employee benefits under defined contribution
plans such as provident and other funds, which fall due for payment within a period of twelve months after rendering service,
are charged as expense to the profit and loss account in the period in which the service is rendered.

(ii)) Employee Benefits under defined benefit plans, gratuity which fall due for payment after a period of twelve months from
rendering service or after completion of employment, are measured by the projected unit cost method, on the basis of actuarial
valuations carried out by third party actuaries at each balance sheet date. The Company's obligations recognized in the balance
sheet represent the present value of obligations as reduced by the fair value of plan assets, where applicable. Actuarial Gains
and losses are recognised immediately in the Profit and Loss Account.

Earnings per share:

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting
attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) and
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares, except where the results are anti-dilutive. The number of shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share
splits.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets:

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of
past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in
the Notes to the Financial Statements. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Operating leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased assets are classified as
operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Profit and Loss Account on a straight line basis over
the lease period unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the users benefit.

Accounting for interest in a joint venture:

Interest in a non-integrated un-incorporated joint venture being in the nature of an investment, is accounted as specified in AS-13
'Accounting for Investments'.

Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing cost attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets, as defined in Accounting Standard 16 on
“Borrowing Costs” are capitalized as part of the cost of such assets upto the date when the asset is ready for its intended use. Other
borrowing costs are expensed as incurred

Proposed dividend:

Dividend proposed by the directors as appropriation of profits is provided for in the books of account, pending approval of
shareholders at the annual general meeting.

Miscellaneous expenditure:

Miscellaneous expenditure is charged to revenue in the year of its occurrence.

D
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3.

Sub division of shares

1 & EH EH H .

Effective November 8, 2010 the Company has subdivided the face value of equity shares from ¥ 10 each to T 2 each (sub division), after
obtaining shareholders' approval vide special resolution passed in the 15" Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 21,
2010. The basic and diluted earnings per share disclosed (Refer Note 13 below) have been computed for the current year and recomputed for
the previous year based on the revised face value of ¥ 2 each.

Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of:
(Other than attributable to a joint venture (Refer Note 17, below)

Sr. No. Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2011 March 31, 2010
®) R®)
(6] Performance/bid-bond guarantees 7,949,105 59,034,403
(fixed deposits deposited T 433,915 (T 713,915) and mortgage of
fixed assets provided).
(i1) Un-expired letters of credit 2,411,100 Nil
(iii) Corporate financial guarantees provided on behalf of domestic
Subsidiaries
- Limit 325,000,000 1,206,000,000
- Outstanding 189,876,359 662,512,542
@iv) Standby letter of credit provided on behalf of foreign subsidiaries
(including a step down subsidiary) and an associate
- Limit 1,130,000,000 240,000,000
- Outstanding 1,095,417,500 232,471,000
) Income tax matter disputed in an appeal Nil 593,529

Note: Contingent liabilities in respect of above matters arising in the ordinary course of business, it is anticipated that no material liabilities
will arise.

Details of secured loans:

Sr. no.

Name of the lender

Security created/credit facilities availed

(@

IDBI Bank Limited

Security created:

Primary:

First charge on inventory and book debts

Collateral:

Second charge on: the fixed assets of the Company at its factory at A-117, TTC Industrial
Area, Pawana Village, Navi Mumbai and office premises at 501/502 Delta, Technology
Street, Hiranandani Gardens, Powai, Mumbai 400076, equitable mortgage (first charge) of
premises belonging to a domestic subsidiary viz. Eurotech Cylinders Private Limited located
at EL-29, TTC Industrial Area, Mahape, Navi Mumbai 400 701.

Personal guarantees of the Managing Director and a Whole time director aggregating to
%1,070,000,000 (% 600,000,000).

Credit facilities availed:

Working capital loan, stand by letter of credit and other non-fund based facilities.

(b)

Axis Bank Limited

Security created:

Primary :

Pari passu charge on the current assets of the Company, negative lien on the receivables of a
foreign subsidiary viz. Nitin Ventures Fze, second charge on the current and fixed assets of the
Company.

Collateral :

Pari passu charge on the fixed assets of the Company and pledge of 7,500,000 (500,000 of% 10
each) shares of the Company (belonging to the promoters of the Company) and personal
guarantees of the Managing Director and a Whole time director aggregating to
$1,220,000,000 (% 340,000,000).

Credit facilities availed:

Working capital loan, stand by letter of credit and other non-fund based facilities.

[42]
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(c) Yes Bank Limited Security created:

First exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on the specific goods purchased and debtors
arising out of sale of such goods and on the underlying debtors of post shipment in foreign
currency.

Personal guarantees of the Managing Director and a Whole time director aggregating to
200,000,000 (T Nil).

Credit facilities availed:

Letters of undertaking for buyers credit and post shipment credit in foreign currency.

6. Disclosure under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The Company is in the process of obtaining necessary information relating to the registration status of suppliers under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Hence, the information required under the said Act, could not be compiled and disclosed.

7. Information in terms of provisions of paragraphs 3,4C and 4D of PartII of Schedule VI to the Act:
(a) Licensed and installed capacity: Not applicable.

(b)  The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India vide its General Notification No. S.0.301 (e) dated February 8, 2011 issued
under section 211 (3) of the Act has exempted certain classes of companies from disclosing certain information in their profit and loss
account. The Company being an export oriented unit is entitled to the exemption. Accordingly, disclosures mandated by paragraphs
3(i) (a), 3 (ii) (), 3 (ii) band 3 (ii) d of Part IT of Schedule VI to the Act have not been disclosed.

(c) Valueofimports calculated on CIF basis:

Particulars For the year For the year
2010-11 2009-10
&) <)
Materials and components 1,126,695,459 145,057,022
Total 1,126,695,459 145,057,022
(d) Expenditure in foreign currency on account of (on accrual basis):
Sr. No. Particulars For the year For the year
2010-11 2009-10
() &)
@) Travelling 291,550 334,800
(ii) Financial expenses 4,476,446 1,868,666
(iii) | Professional/licence fees 564,721 4,595,835
Total 5,332,717 6,799,301
(e) Value of consumption ofimported and indigenous materials and components and percentage to total consumption:
For the year For the year
Particul 2010-11 2009-10
articulars z % 3 %
Materials and components
Imoprted at landed cost 832,472,448 84.75 145,057,022 65.65
Indigenously obtained 149,795,927 15.25 75,886,807 34.35
Total 982,268,375 100.00 220,943,829 100.00

Note:

The values of materials and components consumed have been arrived on the basis of opening inventories plus purchases less closing
inventories. The consumption is net of adjustments for shortages/excess, if any.

(f) Earningsin foreign exchange (on accrual basis):

Particulars For the year For the year
2010-11 2009-10
) )
Export sales at FOB (including exchange differences) 884,963,435 451,908,626
Total 884,963,435 451,908,626

(23]
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Deferred taxation:
Component As at Charge the year As at
March 31, 2010 2010-11 March 31, 2011
) Q) ®)
Depreciation and amortization 787,747 1,265,978 2,053,725
Total Deferred Tax Liability 787,747 1,265,978 2,053,725
Payments to statutory auditors (including service tax):
Particulars For the year For the year
2010-11 2009-10
(9] )
Audit fees for statutory and consolidated financial statements 992,700 440,300
Tax audit fees Nil 111,200
Total 992,700 551,500

Segment reporting:

As the Company publishes standalone financial statements along with the consolidated financial statements in the annual report, in terms of
AS-17'Segment Reporting', segment information has been provided in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Managerial remuneration:

(a)

(b)

Particulars For the year For the year
2010-11 2009-10
®) )
Managing Director
Salaries and bonus 3,511,779 2,741,468
Contribution to provident and other funds 259,200 259,200
Commission on profits (as computed below) 1,800,306 1,484,607
Total 5,571,285 4,485,275
Non Wholetime Directors
Sitting fees 154,000 99,000
Total 154,000 99,000
Note:

The employee wise break up of liability on account of gratuity, is not ascertainable and hence, not considered above.

Computation of net profit in accordance with section 309 (5), 198 and 349 of the Act and calculation of the Managing Director's

commission:
Particulars For the year For the year
2010-11 2009-10
(9] ®
Net profit as per profit and loss account 282,699,607 144,143,014
Add:
Managerial remuneration 5,571,285 4,485,275
Director’s sitting fees 154,000 99,000
Depreciation/amortisation charged in the accounts 2,833,007 4,835,543
291,257,899 153,562,832
Less:
Depreciation/amortisation as per Section 350 of the Act 2,833,007 4,835,543
Profit on sale of stake in a domestic subsidiary 108,223,342 Nil
Surplus on sale of assets 170,945 266,510
111,227,294 5,102,053
Profit as per section 309 (5), 198 and 349 of the Act 180,030,605 148,460,779
Maximum permissible remuneration to the Managing Director @ 5% of the profits 9,001,530 7,423,039
computed above
Commission @ 1% of net profit to the Managing Director 1,800,306 1,484,607
(as per service agreement)
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12.  Employee Benefits:

a)  Defined Contribution Plan:
Company's contribution to Provident Fund X 886,509 (3 1,059,246)
b)  Defined Benefit Plans - Gratuity:
Particulars For the year For the year
2010-11 2009-10
) )
a) Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet:
i) Present value of obligation:
Opening balance 1,609,049 996,165
Service cost 529,353 448,616
Interest cost 171,072 115,582
Actuarial loss on obligation (138,037) 48,686
Closing balance 2,171,437 1,609,049
Less:
ii)  Fair value of plan assets:
Opening balance 2,382,689 1,892,409
Expected return on plan assets less loss on investments 214,615 190,615
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets (214,615) (190,615)
Employers' contribution Nil 490,280
Closing balance 2,382,689 2,382,689
Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet Nil* Nil*
b) Expenses during the year:
(included in Schedule M under contribution to provident and other funds)
Service cost 529,353 448,616
Interest cost 171,072 115,582
Expected return on plan assets (214,615) (190,615)
Actuarial (gain)/loss 76,578 239,301
Total 562,388 612,884
¢) Actual return on plan assets Nil NIL
d) Break up of plan assets** :
(i)  Government of India s ecurities. NA NA
(ii)  Public securities NA NA
(iii)  State Government securities NA NA
(iv)  Private sector securities NA NA
(v)  Others (LIC of India — Insurer Managed Fund) 100% 100%
e) Principal actuarial assumptions:
Rate of discounting 8.25% 8%
Expected return on plan assets 8.25% 8%
Rate of increase in salaries 5% 5%
Attrition Rate 2% 2%

In assessing the Company's post retirement liabilities, the Company monitors mortality assumptions and uses up-to-date mortality
tables. The base being the LIC 1994-96 ultimate tables.

Expected return on plan assets is based on expectation of the average long term rate of return expected on investments of the fund
during the estimated term of the obligations.

The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

* The surplus of plan assets over defined benefit obligation has not been recognized as the Company believes there is no amount
recoverable in cash from the LIC of India.

*%*  The details of the composition of the plan assets, by category, from the insurers have not been received and hence the
disclosures as required by Accounting Standard (AS) 15 in “Employee Benefits” have not been given.
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Other disclosures:

Particulars As at As at

March 31,2011 | March 31,2010
) )

Defined benefit obligation 2,171,437 1,609,049

Plan assets 2,382,689 2,382,689

Surplus 211,252 773,640

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities — (gain) /loss (87,545) 48,686

Experience adjustments on plan assets — (loss) (214,615) (190,615)

Earnings per share:

The Company has not issued any potential equity shares and accordingly, the basic and diluted earnings per share are the same. Numbers
used for calculating basic and diluted earnings per share are as stated below:

Particulars For the year For the year
2010-11 2009-10
Weighted average number of equity shares 63,015,705 63,015,705
outstanding (Nos.)
() ®

Net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders 237,182,270 117,509,659
Basic and diluted earnings per share 3.76 1.86
Nominal value per equity share 2 2
(Refer Note 3 above)

Related party transactions:

(a)

Parties where control/significant influence exist and/or other related parties with whom transactions have taken place include:

Domestic subsidiaries

Alert Fire Protection Systems Private Limited
Eurotech Cylinders Private Limited

Logicon Building Systems Private Limited

Foreign subsidiaries (including a step down subsidiary)
Nitin Ventures FZE, UAE

Nitin Global Pte Limited, Singapore (effective July 23,2009)
New Age Company LLC, UAE* (effective April 1,2010)
(*Associate for the year 2009-10)

Un-incorporated Joint Venture
Oil Block (RJ-ONN-2004/1) (Ref.No.19)
(Name of the field in an un-incorporated joint venture)

Associate

Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited (effective December 29, 2010)

(Earlier Nitin Cylinders Limited and domestic subsidiary up to

December 28,2010, including for the year 2009-10) (Refer Note 21 (b), below)

Key Management Personnel (KMP) Represented on the Board
Nitin M. Shah (Chairman and Managing Director)
Rahul N. Shah (Whole time Director)

Relatives of KMP

Saroj N. Shah (spouse of Nitin M. Shah)
Kunal N. Shah (son of Nitin M. Shah)

Nitin M. Shah (HUF)

Rahul N. Shah (HUF)

Reshma N. Shah (daughter of Nitin M. Shah)




NITIN FIRE PROTECTION INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Aunnal Repore 2010-2077

(b) Transactions with related parties (excluding re-imbursements):

f

FIRE SAFETY AND PROTECTION

Sr. No.

Particulars

For the year
2010-11

]

For the year
2009-10

&

Capital transactions

Assets

Investments

Sale of investments

Associate

Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited

(Transaction entered into when it was a wholly owned subsidiary)

Subscription of equity shares
Foreign subsidiary
Nitin Global Pte Limited

Other investment
Un-incorporated joint venture
Oil block

(RJ-ONN-2004/1) (Ref.No.19)

Loans given

Domestic subsidiaries

Alert Fire Protection Systems Private Limited
Eurotech Cylinders Private Limited

Logicon Building Systems Private Limited

Associate
Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited
(*includes ¥ 568,000 when it was a domestic subsidiary)

Loans received back

Domestic subsidiaries

Alert Fire Protection Systems Private Limited
Eurotech Cylinders Private Limited

Logicon Building Systems Private Limited

Associate

Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited

(*includes ¥ 55,568,000 when it was a domestic subsidiary)
Liabilities

Unsecured loans taken

KMP’s

Nitin M. Shah

Rahul N. Shah

Unsecured loans repaid
KMP’s

Nitin M. Shah

Rahul N. Shah

365,700,000

Nil

22,637,177

96,500,000
97,000,000
32,461,000

95,568,000*

46,500,000
39,000,000
30,208,018

150,568,000*

35,000,000
15,00,000

60,000,000
15,00,000

Nil

4,761,000

15,807,724

Nil
Nil
Nil

55,000,000

Nil

Nil

21,200,000

Nil

25,000,000

Nil

Nil
Nil
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Sr. No. | Particulars For the year For the year
2010-11 2009-10
Q) )
II Revenue transactions
Income
1 | Sale of materials and components/ trading goods
Domestic subsidiaries
Alert Fire Protection Systems Private Limited 26,920,283 Nil
Eurotech Cylinders Private Limited 47,268,862 65,884,400
Logicon Building Systems Private Limited 4,013,000 546,430
Associate
Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited Nil 347,802,810
Foreign subsidiaries
(including a step down subsidiary)
Nitin Ventures FZE Nil 45,140
New Age Company LLC Nil 1,830,384
2 | Dividend
Domestic subsidiaries
Alert Fire Protection Systems Private Limited 15,000,000 Nil
Eurotech Cylinders Private Limited 20,000,000 Nil
3 | Interest and service charges
Associate
Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited 1,566,781 Nil
Expenditure
1 | Purchase of materials and components/DEPB License
Domestic subsidiaries
Alert Fire Protection Systems Private Limited 70,319,068 22,046,132
Eurotech Cylinders Private Limited 38,435,673 2,824,000
Logicon Building Systems Private Limited 26,117,336 1,912,488
Step down foreign subsidiary
New Age Company LLC 90,777,464 Nil
Associate
Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited 33,380,000 Nil
(transaction entered into when it was a domestic subsidiary)
2 | Rent
KMP
Nitin M. Shah 1,058,880 1,034,160
3 | Remuneration
KMP
Nitin M. Shah 5,571,285 4,485,275
4 | Servicing charges
Domestic subsidiary
Logicon Building Systems Private Limited 200,000 40,000
Proposed Dividend
KMP’s
Nitin M. Shah 12,312,730 8,606,500
Rahul N. Shah 4,035,000 2,821,000
Relatives of KMP
Saroj N. Shah 13,130,000 9,187,500
Kunal N. Shah 6,572,500 4,593,750
Nitin M. Shah (HUF) 2,920,000 2,035,744
Rahul N. Shah (HUF) 2,619,649 1,820,000
Reshma N. Shah 2,690,000 1,879,500
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(©)

Sr. No.

Particulars

For the year
2010-11
)

For the year
2009-10
)

I11

v

Guarantees given/released

Corporate financial guarantees
Domestic subsidiaries*

Alert Fire Protection Systems Private Limited
Eurotech Cylinders Private Limited
Logicon Building Systems Private Limited
(*guarantees given)

Associate®*

Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited
(**guarantees released)

Personal financial guarantees obtained
KMP’s :

Jointly of Nitin M. Shah and Rahul N. Shah
(Refer Note 4 above)

Standby letter of credit provided
Foreign subsidiaries

(including a step down subsidiary)

Nitin Ventures FZE

Nitin Global Pte

Associate

Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited

Nil
Nil
25,000,000

906,000,000

Nil

140,000,000
250,000,000

160,000,000

58,500,000
105,000,000
37,500,000

100,000,000

580,000,000

240,000,000
NA

NA

Amounts outstanding for related parties:

Sr. No.

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2011
Q

As at
March 31, 2010

9]

(@)

(i)

Assets

Investments

Equity shares

Domestic subsidiaries

Alert Fire Protection Systems Private Limited
Eurotech Cylinders Private Limited

Logicon Building Systems Private Limited

Foreign subsidiaries

Nitin Ventures FZE

Nitin Global Pte Limited

Associate

Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited

Other investment

Un-incorporated Joint Venture

Oil Block (RJ-ONN-2004/1) (Ref.No.19)
Loans receivable

Domestic subsidiaries

Alert Fire Protection Systems Private Limited
Eurotech Cylinders Private Limited
Logicon Building Systems Private Limited
Associate

Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited
Share application money

Foreign subsidiary

Nitin Ventures FZE

10,100,000
100,000
350,000

10,874,622
4,761,000

461,154,781

151,029,333

50,000,000
58,000,000
2,252,982

Nil

91,333,503

10,100,000
100,000
350,000

10,874,622
4,761,000

713,000,000

128,392,156

Nil
Nil
Nil

55,000,000

91,333,503
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Sr. No.

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2011
R®)

As at
March 31, 2010
®)

II

I

v

Trade receivables

(net of trade payables)

Domestic subsidiaries

Eurotech Cylinders Private Limited
Logicon Building Systems Private Limited

Trade receivables

(net of trade payables)

Foreign subsidiaries

(including a step down subsidiary)
Nitin Ventures Fze

New Age Company LLC

Associate

Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited
Liabilities

Unsecured loans

KMP

Nitin M. Shah

Trade payables

(net of trade receivables)

Domestic subsidiaries

Alert Fire Protection Systems Private Limited
Logicon Building Systems Private Limited
Foreign subsidiaries

(including a step down subsidiary

New Age Company LLC

Un-incorporated Joint Venture
Oil Block (RJ-ONN-2004/1) (Ref.No.19)

Dues
KMP
Nitin M. Shah

Guarantees given/obtained

Corporate financial guarantees

Domestic subsidiaries

Alert Fire Protection Systems Private Limited
Eurotech Cylinders Private Limited

Logicon Building Systems Private Limited

Associate
Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited

Personal financial guarantees obtained
KMP’s

Jointly of Nitin M. Shah and Rahul N. Shah
Standby letter of credit provided

Foreign subsidiaries

(including a step down subsidiary)

Nitin Ventures Fze

Nitin Global Pte

New Age Co. LLC

Associate
Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited

21,254,179
4,217,030

44,650
Nil

23,437,455

Nil

1,225,654

Nil

23,672,510

4,805,861

1,244,011

66,257,090
76,049,365
48,864,252

Nil

Nil

366,130,000

238,877,500
330,410,000

160,000,000

Nil
Nil

45,140
381,070

347,694,214

25,000,000

17,849,061
1,583,380

Nil

6,243,817

1,039,225

76,536,356
55,907,469
36,137,859

493,930,858

599,841,398

232,471,000
NA
NA

NA

Notes:

(a) Related party relationships are as identified by the Company on the basis of information available and accepted by the auditors.

(b)  Noamounthas been written off or written back in respect of debts due from or to related party.

D




NITIN FIRE PROTECTION INDUSTRIES LIMITED N —
Awnial Beport 2010-2011 ¢

15. Exchange differences:
Exchange gain included in the profit and loss account¥ 9,124,632 (X 9,878,012).
16. Operatinglease

a) Inrespect of a property acquired on lease, the future minimum lease rentals are as follows:

Future minimum lease payments as at
March 31, 2011 ) March 31, 2010 (%)
Not later than one year 395,448 395,448
Later than one year and not later than five years 1,977,060 1,977,060
Later than five years 1,581,792 1,977,240
Total 3,954,300 4,349,748

Note:
The impact of escalation in lease payments which may arise is not considered due to its uncertainty.
b) Lease payments recognized in the Profitand Loss Account: ¥ 2,287,730 (X 1,968,754)
17. Disclosuresin respect of a joint venture:
Information as required by AS27 'Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures':

(a) Name ofthe field in ajoint venture, description of interest etc.:

Name of the field Description of interest/ Proportion of Country of

in a joint venture (Description of job) ownership interest Incorporation Residence
RJ-ONN-2004/1 Non integrated joint venture 11.11% * India
Rajasthan (Ref.No.19) (crude oil block) (11.11%)

(*Country of Incorporation not applicable as it is an un-incorporated joint venture)

(b) Contingent liabilities in relation to interest in a joint venture: ¥ 46,439,705 (X 18,020,678) and share in contingent liabilities jointly
with other venturers: ¥ Nil R Nil).

(c)  Shareincontingent liabilities of a joint venture itself for which the Company is contingently liable: ¥ Nil (% Nil).
(d) Contingent liabilities in respect of liabilities of other venturers of a joint venture: ¥ Nil (X Nil).

(e) Capital commitments (net of advances) in relation to interests in a joint venture and not provided for: ¥ Nil (R Nil) and its share in
capital commitments (net of advances) that have been incurred jointly with other venturers and not provided for: ¥ Nil (X Nil).

(f)  Company's share of capital commitments (net of advances) of the joint venturers themselves and not provided for: ¥ Nil (¥ Nil).
18. Derivative instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposure:
(a)  Noderivative instruments were outstanding at the close of the year.

(b)  Theyearend foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are given below:

Particulars Currency As at As at
March 31, 2011 March 31, 2010
Amounts in Equivalent Amounts in Equivalent
foreign ®) foreign ®
currency currency

Receivables

Investment DHS 1,000,000 10,874,622 1,000,000 10,874,622
Investment USD 100,000 4,761,000 100,000 4,761,000
Share application money pending UsSD 2,301,025 91,333,503 2,301,025 91,333,503

allotment of equity shares

Sundry debtors for exports USD 13,760,828 614,420,989 7,843,291 354,046,133
Sundry debtors for exports EURO 37,725 2,385,729 Nil Nil
Advances to suppliers USD Nil Nil 300,960 13,585,334
Bank balance USD 800,000 35,720,004 Nil Nil
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Particulars Currency As at As at
March 31, 2011 March 31, 2010
Amounts in Equivalent Amounts in Equivalent
foreign ® foreign ®
currency currency
Payables
Secured loans (buyers line of credit) USD 6,903,178 308,226,880 4,236,515 191,236,323
Sundry creditors for imports USD 4,600,080 205,393,545 3,707,776 167,369,021
Sundry creditors for imports GBP 550 39,561 Nil Nil
Sundry creditors for imports EURO 43,824 2,771,417 85,841 5,198,510
Advance from a debtor USD 2,332,248 104,134,873 Nil Nil
Interest accrued but not due on secured loans| USD 4,727 211,089 Nil Nil

19.

20.

21.

The above out standings in foreign currency have been translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on the Balance Sheet date in
accordance with AS-11 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates (Revised 2003)".

Disclosure as per clause 32 of the Listing Agreement:

Loans and advances in the nature of loans given to subsidiaries and an associate:

Particulars Balance Maximum outstanding
As at As at For the year For the year
March 31, 2011 | March 31, 2010 2010-11 2009-10
(9] ) (9] )
Domestic subsidiaries
Alert Fire Protection Systems Private Limited 50,000,000 Nil 50,000,000 Nil
Eurotech Cylinders Private Limited 58,000,000 Nil 75,000,000 Nil
Logicon Building Systems Private Limited 2,252,982 Nil 24,490,000 21,200,000
Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited NA 55,000,000 Nil 55,000,000
Associate
Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited Nil NA 95,000,000 NA
Total 110,252,982 55,000,000 - -
Notes:
(a) Loans and advances shown above to domestic subsidiaries fall under the category of loans and advances in the nature of loans where
there is no repayment schedule, is repayable on demand and is interest free.
(b) As at the year-end, the Company has no loans and advances in the nature of loans to associates, wherein there is no repayment
schedule or repayment is beyond seven years and has no loans and advances to firms/companies in which the directors are interested.
(c)  The above subsidiaries/associate have not made investments in the shares of the Company.
(d) Loanstoemployees have been considered to be outside the purview of disclosure requirements.
() Theabove particulars do not include share application money pending allotment of equity shares.
a.  Associate becoming a step down subsidiary of the Company:
Pursuant to Nitin Ventures Fze a foreign subsidiary of the Parent Company increasing its ownership interest to 49% from 40% in New
Age Co. LLC (New Age), New Age has become a step down subsidiary of the Parent Company by virtue of the said subsidiary vesting
management control effective April 1,2010.
b. Domestic subsidiary becoming an associate of the Company:

Pursuant to sale of part stake in Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited (WNCL) and increase in it's paid up share capital; WNCL has
become an associate of the Parent Company effective December 29, 2010.

Consequent to dilution of equity stake in Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited in December 2010, the Company has taken over the
outstanding claim of a derivative contract amounting to ¥ 50,133,481 (excluding interest). The Company has obtained a legal opinion
mentioning that the said contract is in violation of the RBI regulations and hence, no liability is expected. Further, the Company has filed a
petition in the Hon'ble High Court of Bombay challenging the legality of the contract. Pending decision, no provision is made in the books
ofaccount.

[52)
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22.  Financial statements of subsidiaries (including a step down subsidiary):

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India vide its General Circular No.2 and 3 dated February 8,2011 and February 21,2011
respectively has granted general exemption from compliance of section 212 of the Act, subject to fulfillment of conditions stipulated
therein. The Company has satisfied the conditions stipulated therein and hence entitled to exemption. Necessary information relating to
subsidiaries (including a step down subsidiary) has been included in the consolidated financial statements.

23. Taxation:

(a) Inview of book profits being in excess of taxable profits, as per computation of income, the provision for tax has been made as per
MAT under section 115 JB of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The Company is entitled to avail credit under section 115JAA (1A) which
will be availed as and when due.

(b)  Provision for current tax includes ¥ 7,000 (% 15,000) for wealth tax.
24. Dividend in foreign currency:

Sr. No. Particulars For the year For the year
2010-11 2009-10

(a) Year to which dividend relates NA 2008-09

(b) Number of non-resident shareholders to whom remittance was made NA 1

(c) Number of shares on which remittance was made (* 10 paid up) NA 100*

(d) Amount remitted (3) NA 300

25.  The joint venture (referred to in note 17 above) for oil and gas producing activities is under exploratory phase. Hence, disclosures required
viz. net quantities of the Company's interest in proved reserves and proved developed reserves of oil (including condensate and natural gas
liquids), gas at the beginning and additions, deductions, production and closing balance of the year and the above disclosures on
geographical basis required pursuant to the Guidance Note on Accounting for Oil and Gas Producing Activities issued by the ICAI are
currently not applicable.

26. Interms of provision of sub section 1A of Section 115 O of the Income Tax Act, 1961, the Company has taken credit of corporate dividend
tax aggregating to X 5,813,063 (X Nil) on account of dividends received from its subsidiaries.

27. Turnoverincludes income from services of ¥ 15,707,439 X 8,736,456)

28.  The Board of Directors of the Company in its board meeting held on February 11,2011 has approved the amalgamation with itself of Alert
Fire Protection Systems Private Limited and Logicon Building Systems Private Limited with April 1,2010 being the appointed date. In this
regard, the Parent Company has received an in principle approval from both the stock exchanges. The Parent Company has since filed a joint
petition before the Hon'ble High Court of Bombay for the sanction of the scheme and approval is awaited.

29.  The accounts of previous year were audited by another Auditor and opening balances are as per such accounts.
30. Previous year:

Figures in parenthesis represent the corresponding previous year figures, which have also been regrouped/restated to conform to current
year's presentation, wherever applicable and current year's figures are stated in bold prints.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Nitin M. Shah Rahul N. Shah Ahbishek Shrivastava
Chairman and Wholetime Director Company Secretary

Managing Director

Mumbai
May 29, 2011
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I Registration Details

CIN No. | L29193MH1995PLC092323
Registration No. | 92323 | State Code
Balance Sheet Date | March 31, 2011 |

II.  Capital Raised During the Year (Amount in ¥ )

Public Issue I Nil | Rights Issue

Bonus Issue | Nil | Private Placement

III.  Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds (Amount in )

Sources of Funds

Total Liabilities [ 2207,120,890 | Total Assets

(Including Shareholders' Funds)

Paid - up Capital | 126,031,410 | Reserves & Surplus
Secured Loans | 479,081,775 | Unsecured Loans

Deferred Tax Liability | 2,053,725 |

Application of Funds

Net Fixed Assets | 26,786,883 | Investments

Net Current Assets | 1,080,019,381 | Miscellaneous Expenditure
Accumulated Losses | Nil |

IV.  Performance of Company (Amount in?%)

Turnover | 1,622,698,666 | Total Expenditure
(Total Income)

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax | 282,699,607 | Profit/(Loss) after Tax
Earning Per Share* | 3.76 | Dividend Rate

(*Based on weighted average number of equity shares- 63,015,705)

i -l
11

| Nil |

| Nil |

[ 2207,120,890 |

[ 1,138,032,090 |

| Nil |

| 638,392,736 |

| Nil |

[ 15339,999,059 |

| 237,182,270 |

| 50% |

V. Generic Names of Three Principal Products/Services of Company (as per monetary terms)
Item Code No. (ITC Code) Product Description
8424 8000 | | Fire Protection Systems

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Nitin M. Shah Rahul N. Shah Abhishek Shrivastava
Chairman & Wholetime Director =~ Company Secretary
Managing Director

Mumbai

May 29, 2011
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Auditors' Report To The Board of Directors of Nitin Fire Protection Industries Limited on the
Consolidated Financial Statements

1. We have audited the attached Consolidated Balance Sheet of Nitin Fire Protection Industries Limited (“the Company”) and its Subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) as at March 31, 2011 and the consolidated Profit and Loss Account and the Consolidated Cash
Flow Statement for the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management and have been prepared by the Management on the basis of separate financial statements and other financial information
regarding components. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We did not audit the financial statements of certain subsidiaries, which reflect total assets of ¥ 857,198,952 as at March 31, 2011, total
revenue of ¥ 818,377,476 and net cash outflows amounting to ¥ 35,226,325 for the year then ended and financial statements of an associate
in which the share of loss of the Group is ¥ 3,4236,567. These financial statements and other financial information have been audited by
other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion is based solely on the report of other auditors.

4. We have relied on the unaudited financial statements of certain subsidiaries, which reflect total assets of ¥ 3,916,484,180 as at March 31,
2011, total revenue 0% 2,519,314,581 and net cash inflows amounting to ¥ 286,707,651 for the year then ended. These unaudited financial
statements as approved by the respective Board of Directors of these companies have been furnished to us by the Management and our
report in so far as it relates to the amounts included in respect of the subsidiaries is based solely on such approved unaudited financial
statements.

5.  We report that the consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company's management in accordance with the
requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) 21, Consolidated financial statements, AS 23, Accounting for Investments in Associates in
Consolidated Financial Statements and AS 27, Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures, as notified by the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

6. (@)  The company executes composite contracts with its customers for the supply and installation of fire protection system. Based on the
nature of the activity, execution of work and the contracts entered into by the company, the contract revenue and contract costs need
to be accounted by adopting the percentage of completion method as prescribed under AS 7 “Construction Contracts”’. However,
the company has accounted the revenue as per AS 9 “Revenue Recognition” based on the dispatch of material and on completion of
installation work. The impact due to above is presently not ascertainable.

(b)  As stated in note 29 of the Schedule P, the Company is in dispute with a bank for a claim made by the bank for 350,133,481 on a
derivative contract entered into by its erstwhile subsidiary (the liability for which has been taken over by the Company) and which is
now an associate based on a sale of its 40% share and increase in paid up capital of the associate. The Company has not determined
the quantum of mark to market losses as of the balance sheet date on the above contract and have relied on a legal opinion in the
matter mentioning that no liability is expected. Pending final settlement of the matter, we are unable to quantify the extent of
provision that may be required to be made in this regard.

7. Based on our audit as aforesaid, and on consideration of reports of other auditors on the separate financial statements / consolidated
financial statements and on the other financial information of the component, and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, subject to the effects of our observations given in the paragraph 6 above, we are of the opinion that the attached
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(a) inthecase ofthe Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Group as at March 31,2011;

(b) inthecase ofthe Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, of the Profit of the Group for the year ended on that date; and

(c) inthecase ofthe Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the Cash Flows of the Group for the year ended on that date.
For Haribhakti & Co.

Chartered Accountant
FRN:103523W

Sd/-

Sarah George

Partner

Membership No.: 45255
Mumbai
May 29,2011
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2011

SOURCES OF FUNDS :
Shareholders' Funds :
Share capital

Reserves and surplus

Minority interest
Loan Funds :
Secured loans
Unsecured loans

Deferred Tax Liability
(Refer Note 12 (ii), Schedule P)

APPLICATION OF FUNDS :

Fixed Assets :

Tangible assets:

Gross block

Less : Accumulated depreciation

Net block

Capital work-in-progress -at cost
(advances on capital account)

Intangible assets:

Gross block

Less :Accumulated amortisation
Net block

Investments

Deferred Tax Asset

(Refer Note 12 (i), Schedule P)

Current Assets, Loans and Advances:

Current Assets :
Inventories

Sundry debtors

Cash and bank balances
Other current assets

Loans and Advances

Less : Current Liabilities and Provisions:

Current liabilities
Provisions

Net Current Assets

Total Funds Employed

Total Funds Utilised

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
In terms of our attached report of even date

Schedule

Reference

A
B

=<

F-2

P

FIRE SAFETY AND PROTECTION

As at As at
March 31, 2011 March 31, 2010
3 3

126,031,410 126,031,410
2.175.567.484 1,696,930,338
2,301,598,894 1,822,961,748

19,746,061 -
733,707,465 1,040,781,760
722.051.447 253,147,683
1,455,758,912 1,293,929,443
3,688,142 26,459,731
3,780,792,009 3,143,350,922
296,740,666 983,619,839
123.642.867 112,140,474
173,097,799 871,479,365
165,358,900 76,557,734
338,456,699 948,037,099
1,067,801,326 27,573,730
24.393.805 27,287,002
1,043,407,521 286,728
607,255,615 394,902,491
142,451 142,451
751,791,878 896,437,983
2,419,036,916 1,109,439,418
119,769,967 197,615,438
9.455.451 320,447
3,300,054,212 2,203,813,286
954,704,644 432,223,622
4,254,758,856 2,636,036,908
2,375,176,720 782,141,592
88,052,413 53.913,163
2,463,229,133 836,054,755
1,791,529,723 1,799,982,153
3,780,792,009 3,143,350,922

For Haribhakti & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Sd/-

Sarah George
Partner

Mumbai
May 29, 2011

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Nitin M. Shah
Chairman &

Managing Director

Mumbai
May 29, 2011

Sd/-

Rahul N. Shah
Wholetime Director

Sd/-

Abhishek Shrivastava
Company Secretary
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2011

FIRE SAFETY AND PROTECTION

For the year For the year
Schedule 2010-11 2009-10
Reference i i
INCOME:
Turnover 4,378,489,947 3,133,228,653
Other operating income K 25,615,315 9,896,166
Other income L 128,985,526 19,469,452
Total Income 4,533,090,788 3,162,594,271
EXPENDITURE:
Cost of goods sold M 3,171,045,411 2,253,414,299
Manufacturing, installation and other expenses N 561,760,324 317,173,837
Interest and finance charges (0] 118,048,520 92,013,724
Depreciation of tangible assets 54,102,458 37,514,712
Less: Charged to Revaluation Reserve 1,085,115 1,255,843
53,017,343 36,258,869
Amortisation of intangible assets 412,893 5,262,003
53,430,236 41,520,872
Total Expenditure 3,904,284,491 2,704,122,732
Profit before Tax and Minority Interest 628,806,297 458,471,539
Provision for Taxation
Current 63,360,371 66,232,547
Deferred (25,716,552) 14,763,914
Tax adjustment of earlier years (net) 11,039,095 7,573,011
Profit after Tax and before Minority Interest 580,123,383 369,902,067
Less:Share of minority interest in income 12,285,011 -
Add:Share of (loss)/profit in an associate (34,236,567) 48,146,172
Add:Prior years' adjustments - 1,280,419
Profit attributable to the Group 533,601,805 419,328,658
Add: Balance brought forward from previous year 953,848,215 602,127,214
Balance available for Appropriation 1,487,450,020 1,021,455,872
Appropriations:
Proposed dividend of ¥ 1.00 (X 3.50 of ¥ 10 each) on equity shares of X 2 each 63,015,705 44,110,994
Corporate dividend tax on proposed dividend 4,409,660 7,496,663
(Refer Note 25, Schedule P)
Corporate dividend tax on interim dividend - Subsidiaries 5,813,063 -
Transferred to General Reserve 28,000,000 16,000,000
Surplus carried forward to Consolidated Balance Sheet 1,386,211,592 953,848,215
1,487,450,020 1,021,455,872
Basic and diluted earnings per share 8.47 6.65
(Refer Note 6, Schedule P)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements P
The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
In terms of our attached report of even date
For Haribhakti & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Sarah George Nitin M. Shah Rahul N. Shah Abhishek Shrivastava
Partner Chairman & Wholetime Director ~Company Secretary
Managing Director
Mumbai Mumbai
May 29, 2011 May 29, 2011
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Cash flow from operating activities

Net profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Depreciation* and amortisation of intangibles

(* net of transfer from Revaluation Reserve)
Unrealised foreign exchange difference-net (gain)/loss
Interest income (gross)

Profit on sale of current investments

Profit on sale of stake in a subsidiary (net of expenses)
Provision for slow/non-moving inventory

Interest and finance charges

Bad debts written off/provision for doubtful debts
Credit balances appropriated

Surplus on sale of assets

Dividend from investments

Provision for gratuity/retirement benefits
Miscellaneous expenditure to the extent written off
Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for:

Inventories

Sundry debtors

Other current assets

Loans and advances

Sundry creditors

(Decrease) in working capital

Cash (used in) operations

Taxes paid (net of refunds, if any)

Net cash (used in) operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities

Payment for purchase of fixed assets

Purchase of investments

Sale of investments

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets

Dividends received from investments

Proceeds on maturity of fixed deposits with banks
Interest received

Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2011

f

FIRE SAFETY AND PROTECTION

For the year For the year
2010-11 2009-10
3 T
628,806,297 458,471,539
53,430,236 41,520,872
1,856,926 (4,593,842)
(3,776,570) (7,287,713)
(482,609) (11,397,579)
(113,078,580) -
18,810,790 -
118,048,520 92,013,724
30,962,160 10,341,884
(13,282,610) (3,381,456)
(170,945) (332,368)
(164,646) (194,821)
11,314,285 1,590,682
- 3,582,014
732,273,254 580,332,936
125,835,315 (236,245,763)
(1,343,562,418) (769,756,008)
(9,135,004) 8,192,338
(522,613,742) (263,869,978)
937,661,910 581,979,112
(811,813,939) (679,700,299)
(79,540,685) (99,367,363)
(66,514,571) (73,685,264)
(146,055,256) (173,052,626)
(553,783,750) (203,873,515)
(252,945,074) (134,745,281)
124,722,433 126,583,588
689,737,762 1,344,132
164,646 109,821
1,109,105 7,621,222
3,454,435 1,427,576
12,459,557 (201,532,456)
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FIRE SAFETY AND PROTECTION

For the year For the year
2010-11 2009-10
3 3
C  Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from secured borrowings (net) (304,729,498) 380,918,365
Minority interest 7,461,050 -
Proceeds from unsecured borrowings(net) 468,903,764 292,000,000
Interest and finance charges paid (117,507,538) (91,774,799)
Dividends distributed (including corporate dividend tax) (57,334,264) (39,897,877)
Proceeds from issue of share capital-foreign subsidiary - 4,761,000
Miscellaneous expenditure - (3,313,507)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (3,206,486) 542,693,183
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (136,802,185) 168,108,100
Cash and cash equivalents,(opening) 184,476,756 16,368,656
Add:Cash and bank balances taken over on acquisition of a step down subsidiary 71,509,171 -
(Less):Cash and bank balances on desubsidarisation of a subsidiary (13,661,562) -
Cash and cash equivalents,(closing) 105,522,180 184,476,756
Net (decrease)/increase as disclosed above (136,802,185) 168,108,100
Effect of exchange rate changes - profit - 1,000
Cash and cash equivalents as restated (136,802,185) 168,109,100
Notes:
1 Brackets indicate a cash outflow or deduction.
2 Payment for purchase of fixed assets includes:
(1) Deductions due to exchange rate variations;
(ii) Movement in capital work in progress;
(iii) Interest capitalised ¥ Nil (X 7,153,171)
3 Cash and cash equivalents include unpaid dividends amounting to ¥ 225,796 ( 139,340) not available for use by the Group.
As at As at
March 31, 2011 March 31, 2010
3 3
4 Components of cash and cash equivalents (closing):
Cash balance on hand 3,877,554 2,383,189
Bank balances:
With scheduled banks on:
-Current accounts 7,635,642 48,685,666
- Fixed deposit accounts (including interest accrued thereon) 10,687,078 13,138,682
- Margin deposit account 200,001 -
- Unclaimed and unpaid dividend accounts 225,796 139,340
- EEFC current accounts in US dollar 35,720,004 165,175
With others (outside India) on:
-Current accounts 57,863,183 133,103,386
- Fixed deposit accounts (including interest accrued thereon) 3,560,709 -
119,769,967 197,615,438
Less:Fixed deposits (pledged) 14,247,787 13,138,682
105,522,180 184,476,756
The schedules A to P form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
In terms of our attached report of even date
For Haribhakti & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Sarah George Nitin M. Shah Rahul N. Shah Abhishek Shrivastava
Partner Chairman & Wholetime Director ~ Company Secretary
Managing Director
Mumbai Mumbai
May 29, 2011 May 29, 2011
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Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2011
As at As at
March 31, 2011 March 31, 2010
3 3
Schedule A : Share Capital
(Refer Note 4, Schedule P)
Authorised :
300,000,000 Equity shares of ¥ 2 each 600,000,000 600,000,000
(60,000,000 Equity shares of ¥ 10 each)
Total 600,000,000 600,000,000
Issued and Subscribed:
63,015,705 Equity shares of T 2 each fully called up 126,031,410 126,031,410
(12,603,141 Equity shares of % 10 each fully paid up)
Per Consolidated Balance Sheet 126,031,410 126,031,410
Note:
Equity shares issued and subscribed includes following issues for consideration other than cash:
a. 900,000 (180,000 of% 10 each) Equity shares of ¥ 2 each fully paid up were issued pursuant to a
contract.
b. 5,000,000 (1,000,000 of% 10 each) Equity shares of 2 each fully paid up were issued as bonus
shares by capitalisation of free reserves to the shareholders in the ratio of 1:4 equity share for
every share held in2001-02.
Schedule B: Reserves and Surplus
Asset Revaluation Reserve :
Balance, beginning of the year 9,078,748 10,334,591
Less : Charged to depreciation of tangible assets 1,085,115 1,255,843
Balance, end of the year 7,993,633 9,078,748
Securities Premium Account :
Balance, beginning of the year 669,388,375 669,388,375
Balance, end of the year 669,388,375 669,388,375
General Reserve :
Balance, beginning of the year 64,615,000 48,615,000
Add: Transferred from consolidated profit & loss account 28,000,000 16,000,000
Balance, end of the year 92,615,000 64,615,000
Statutory Reserve
Balance, beginning of the year - -
Add:Acquired on acquisition of a step down subsidiary 19,358,884 -
Balance, end of the year 19,358,884 -
Profit and Loss Account :
Balance carried from consolidated profit and loss account 1,386,211,592 953,848,215
Per Consolidated Balance Sheet 2,175,567,484 1,696,930,338
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Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2011

As at As at
March 31, 2011 March 31, 2010
3 3
Schedule C :Minority Interest
(Refer Note 3 (b) (viii), Schedule P)
Share capital 19,746,061 -
Per Consolidated Balance Sheet 19,746,061 -
Schedule D: Secured Loans
(Refer Note 14, Schedule P)
From banks :
Working capital loans :
Rupee loans 270,977,840 598,116,976
Foreign currency loans* 459,006,655 262,730,172
729,984,495 860,847,148
Term loans :
Rupee loans - 18,245,034
Foreign currency loans - 158,001,646
- 176,246,680
From banks and a company:
Vehicle loans 3,722,970 3,687,932
Per Consolidated Balance Sheet 733,707,465 1,040,781,760
(*includes buyers line of credit availed by some of the Group components-short term)
Schedule E: Unsecured Loans
Short term loans and advances:
From a bank 722,051,447 225,700,000
(Refer Note 21, Schedule P)
From others 2,000,000
From the Managing Director - 25,000,000
Interest accrued and due - 447,683
Per Consolidated Balance Sheet 722,051,447 253,147,683
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Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2011

As at As at
March 31, 2011 March 31, 2010
kd 3
Schedule G : Investments
(Refer Note 3 (f) ,Schedule P)
1. In an Associate Company 418,027,967 228,497,000
(Refer Note 16 (a), Schedule P)
2. In a Non-integrated Un-incorporated Joint Venture for Crude Oil Block 151,029,333 128,392,156
(Investment of ¥ 22,637,177 made during the year)
3. In Equity Shares:
Equity shares of ¥10 each
2,300 of Andhra Bank 23,000 23,000
(2,300)
5,899 of Man Infraconstruction Limited* 873,885 -
)
9,899 of Valecha Engineering Limited* 1,035,480 -
)
35,000 of Asian Granito Limited 3,550,436 3,550,436
(35,000)
4,183 of Aurionpro Solutions Limited 1,290,218 775,791
(2,681) 1,502 shares acquired during the year
10,000 of Omnitech Infosolutions Limited 1,481,465 931,395
(5,000) 5,000 shares acquired during the year
Nil of Nagarjuna Fertilisers & Chemicals Limited - 551,870
(10,000)
Nil of Petronet LNG Limited - 1,114,757
(10,000)
Nil of UCO Bank - 306,431
(5,000)
Nil of Adhunik Metaliks Limited - 1,191,253
(10,000)
Nil of C & C Constructions Limited - 569,214
(2,241)
Nil of Magma Fincorp Limited - 1,436,606
(5,000)
Nil of Sejal Architectural Glass Limited - 1,070,653
(16,000)
Nil of Vipul Dye Chem Limited - 17,626
(1,550)
Face value of 1 each
245,500 of Sujana Tower Limited* 8,372,363 -
)
1,950 of Ruchi Infrastructure Limited 104,701 104,701
(1,950)
Nil of Suven Life Sciences Limited - 1,064,459
(20,000)
Face value of ¥ 2 each
Nil of Aban Offshore Limited - 1,253,375
(1,000)
16,731,547 13,961,567
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Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2011

As at As at
March 31, 2011 March 31, 2010
3 3
4. In Government Securities
Six Years National Savings Certificate VIII Issue 5,000 5,000

(Deposited with the sales tax department)

5. In Units of a Mutual Fund
Nil units of SBI Infrastructure Fund of ¥10 each - 2,585,000
(258,500) 258,500 units redeemed during the year

6. In Fixed Income Plans (USD) :

200,000 units of ICICI Bank Limited 8,599,170 8,599,170
(200,000)
7. 100,000 units of J.M. Morgan Chase & Company 4,812,375 4,812,375
(100,000)
8. In a Fixed Income Plan (Euro)
90,000 units of Db Cap Fndg XI 6,109,880 6,109,880
(90,000)
9. In Ordinary shares with no par value (USD)
500 shares of Research in Motion Limited 1,669,503 1,669,503
(500)
10.  Call deposits-(USD)
200 Numbers of Call Vrn 270,840 270,840
(200)
Per Consolidated Balance Sheet 607,296,248 394,902,491
(* acquired during the year)
Aggregate book value of unquoted investments 569,062,300 356,894,156
Aggregate book value of quoted investments 38,233,948 35,423,335
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 429,480,750 33,373,936
Net asset value of units of a mutual fund Nil 2,585,000
Notes:
1. All investments are other than trade and fully paid up.
2. Investments as stated in sl.nos.1, 2 and 4 above are long term and others are current.
3. Investments as stated in sl. nos.1 to 4 above are stated at cost, sl. no. 5 at NAV and others
at market rate.
4. Investments as stated in sl. nos. 6,7, 8. 9 and 10 above are pledged with a bank for loans

availed thereagainst.

Schedule H: Current Assets
Inventories:

(Refer Note 3 (g), Schedule P)
Stock-in-trade:

- Trading goods 177,540,795 92,021,983
- Materials and components* 574,251,083 318,851,353
(* net of provision for slow and non-moving inventory of ¥ 21,276,378 (% Nil))
- Raw materials - 243,492,062
- Finished goods - 81,616,927
- Steel scrap - 3,126,525
Manufacturing work-in-progress - 151,414,508
Stores and spares - 5,914,625
751,791,878 896,437,983
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Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2011

As at As at
March 31, 2011 March 31, 2010
3 3

Schedule H: Current Assets (Contd...)
Sundry Debtors:
(Unsecured)
Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months:
-Considered good 1,003,023,848 192,225,396
-Considered doubtful 28,989,781 -
Other debts-considered good 1,416,013,068 917,214,022

Less:Provision for doubtful debts

Cash and Bank Balances:

2,448,026,697
28,989,781

1,109,439,418

2,419,036,916

1,109,439,418

Cash balance on hand 3,877,554 2,383,189
Bank balances:
With scheduled banks on:
- Current accounts 7,635,642 48,685,666
- Margin deposit account 200,001 -
- Fixed deposits (including interest accrued thereon) 10,687,078 13,138,682
(Deposited with the sales tax department and also refer Notes 5 I (a) and (c), Schedule P)
- Unclaimed and unpaid dividend accounts 225,796 139,340
(As per contra- Schedule J)
- Exchange Earners Foreign Currency (EEFC) current accounts in USD 35,720,004 165,175
With others (outside India) on:**
- Current accounts 57,863,183 133,103,386
- Fixed deposits (including interest accrued thereon) 3,560,709 -
(**Refer Note 5 1 (a) Schedule P)
119,769,967 197,615,438
Other Current Assets:
(Considered good)
DEPB Licence 9,455,451 320,447
9,455,451 320,447
Per Consolidated Balance Sheet 3,300,054,212 2,203,813,286
Schedule I : Loans and Advances
(Unsecured and considered good)
Loans to bodies corporate 96,855,138 34,548,341
Loans to employees and others 1,993,714 1,925,507
Advances to suppliers 574,838,337 72,350,830
Other advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 274,240,070 119,736,035
Advance payments against taxes* 6,777,385 7,024,890
Advances to an associate company 196,615,215
Deposit with excise authorities - 22,804
Per Consolidated Balance Sheet 954,704,644 432,223,622

(* net of provision for tax)
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Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2011
As at As at
March 31, 2011 March 31, 2010
3 3
Schedule J : Current Liabilities and Provisions
Current Liabilities:
Sundry creditors 2,243,572,630 754,623,181
Advances from customers 117,860,100 8,052,451
Creditors for capital expenditure - 2,396,853
Investor Education and Protection Fund in respect of:*
- Unclaimed and unpaid dividends 225,796 139,340
(As per contra- Schedule H)
Other liabilities 11,583,728 15,741,069
Interest accrued but not due on loans 690,455 149,473
Dues to directors 1,244,011 1,039,225
2,375,176,720 782,141,592
Provisions:
For income tax** 8,279,966 482,547
For wealth tax** 135,207 158,867
For fringe benefit tax** - 73,410
For gratuity - 1,590,682
For dividend (proposed) on equity shares 63,015,705 44,110,994
For corporate dividend tax on proposed dividend 4,409,660 7,496,663
For retirement benefits 12,211,875 -
88,052,413 53,913,163
Per Consolidated Balance Sheet 2,463,229,133 836,054,755

( * The figure reflects the position as of March 31, 2011. The actual amount to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund in this respect shall
be determined on the due date.)

(** net of payments)
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Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2011

FIRE SAFETY AND PROTECTION

Schedule K: Other Operating Income
Commission- (Gross)

Debts written off in earlier years, Realised
Credit balances appropriated
Miscellaneous receipts

Sale of scrap

For the year For the year
2010-11 2009-10
4 3
83,849 498,784
7,736,044 525,631
14,180,200 3,381,457
154,033 60,115
3,461,189 5,430,179

Per Consolidated Profit and Loss Account 25,615,315

Schedule L : Other Income

(Refer Note 3 (h) (v), Schedule P)

Surplus on sale of investments (net)

Dividend from long term investments- Other than trade
Interest on fixed deposits and others- (Gross)

Gain on foreign exchange fluctuation on consolidation (net)
Profit on sale of stake in a domestic subsidiary

Surplus on disposal of fixed assets (net)

Miscellaneous receipts

9,896,166

—_—

482,609 11,397,579
164,646 194,821
3,776,570 7,287,713
10,312,054 256,971
113,078,580 -
170,945 332,368
1,000,122

Per Consolidated Profit and Loss Account 128.985.526

Schedule M : Cost of Goods Sold
(Refer Note 3 (h) (vi), Schedule P)
Raw Materials:

19,469,452

Opening inventory 243,492,062 328,123,330
Add:Purchases (net) 214,427,856 425,839,666
457,919,918 753,962,996
Less:Closing inventory 320,635,918 243,492,062
137,284,000 510,470,934
Materials and Components:
Opening inventory 318,851,353 127,238,627
Add:Inventory acquired on acquisition of a step down subsidiary 82,717,072 -
Purchases (net) 2.051,705,571 1,128.436,461
2,453,273,996 1,255,675,088
Less:Closing inventory 595,527.461 318,851,353
1,857,746,535 936,823,735
Add:Provision for slow/non-moving inventory 18,810,790 -
1,876,557,325 936,823,735
Purchase of goods for resale
Opening inventory 92,021,983 99,688,253
Add:Purchases (net) 1,153,300,544 930,676,939
1,245,322,527 1,030,365,192
Less:Closing inventory 177,540,795 92,021,983
1,067,781,732 938,343,209
Variation in inventories:
Closing inventories:*
Finished goods 28,662,567 81,616,927
Manufacturing work-in-progress 102,345,964 151,414,508
Steel scrap 15,727,075 3,126,525
146,735,606 236,157,960
Less:
Opening inventories:
Finished goods 81,616,927 16,880,186
Manufacturing work-in-progress 151,414,508 87,054,195
Steel scrap 3,126,525 -
236,157,960 103,934,381
(Decrease)/increase in inventories (89,422,354) 132,223,579

Per Consolidated Profit and Loss Account 3.171,045.411

(* Not reflected as closing inventories in the balance sheet as these relate to an erstwhile subsidiary.

2,253.414,299

-Refer Notes 3 (b) (i) and 20 (b), Schedule P) @
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Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2011

For the year For the year
2010-11 2009-10
3 3
Schedule N :Manufacturing, Installation and Other Expenses
Manufacturing and Installation Expenses:
Consumption of stores and spares 26,329,365 13,746,216
Electricity charges 15,773,421 11,948,261
Sub-contract charges and site expenses 23,643,081 18,308,350
Water charges 314,802 370,381
Repairs to :
- Factory buildings 18,550 602,304
- Machinery 1,052,931 1,234,003
1,071,481 1,836,307
Other manufacturing expenses 3,818,319 3,779,057
70,950,469 49,988,572
Operating Expenses:
Conveyance and travelling 24,798,198 24,080,203
Miscellaneous expenses 43,482,679 20,933,196
Rent and lease rent 49,438,646 18,133,481
Repairs to :
- Buildings - 1,503,307
- Other assets 7,268,085 1,463,428
7,268,085 2,966,735
Insurance premium 3,760,462 1,182,169
Payments to auditors 1,944,282 1,602,308
Legal and professional fees 30,075,889 20,174,598
Donations and charities 10,634,802 9,343,672
Vehicle expenses 9,491,809 2,974,011
Sitting fees to Non Executive Directors 159,000 99,000
Miscellaneous expenditure to the extent written off - 3,582,015
181,053,852 105,071,388
Personnel Expenses:
Salaries, wages and bonus 185,801,179 82,271,436
Contribution to provident*, gratuity and other funds 2,681,252 4,361,804
(*including administrative charges)
Employees welfare 6,800,156 4,133,732
Director's remuneration 11,518,567 10,308,399
206,801,154 101,075,371
Sales and Distribution Expenses:
Sales promotion and advertisement 39,879,161 15,393,849
Discount, commission, rebates etc. 13,460,322 20,950,614
Bad debts written off/provision for doubtful debts 30,962,160 10,341,884
Distribution expenses (net) 16,649,940 10,947,434
Rates and taxes 2,003,266 3,404,725
102,954,849 61,038,506
Per Consolidated Profit and Loss Account 561,760,324 317,173,837
Schedule O : Interest and Finance Charges
Interest:
On fixed period loans 5,826,741 4,814,373
On cash credit facility 57,716,359 52,720,273
Others (including interest on buyers line of credit) 16,929,593 7,113,487
80,472,693 64,648,133
Loan processing and other financial charges 51,338,767 27,388,038
(Gain) on foreign exchange fluctuations (net) (13,762,940) (22,447)
Per Consolidated Profit and Loss Account 118,048,520 92,013,724

(69
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Schedule P

Forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2011
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Particulars of Group components consolidated in the Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS):

Group components consolidated in the CFS along with the Parent Company, its relationship with the Parent Company, respective country of
incorporation and the Parent Company's/Group's ownership interest therein are given below:

SI. No. Particulars Country of Proportion of ownership interest(%)
incorporation As at As at
March 31, 2011 | March 31, 2010
1 Domestic Subsidiaries
(a) Alert Fire Protection Systems Private Limited India 100.00 100.00
(b) Eurotech Cylinders Private Limited India 100.00 100.00
(c) Logicon Building Systems Private Limited India 100.00 100.00
2 Foreign Subsidiaries (including a step down subsidiary)
(a) Nitin Ventures FZE UAE 100.00 100.00
(b) Nitin Global Pte. Ltd. Singapore 100.00 100.00
(effective July 23, 2009)
(c) New Age Company LLC* UAE 49.00 40.00
(effective April 1, 2010)
3 Associate
(a) Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited(@ India 40.00 100.00
(effective December 29, 2010)
4 Non-integrated un-incorporated Joint Venture
(a) Oil Block - RJ-ONN-2004/1 *K 11.11 11.11
Rajasthan
(field in the non-integrated un-incorporated Joint Venture)

(*A step down subsidiary with shareholding through Nitin Ventures FZE, a foreign subsidiary and consolidated by virtue of control over
ownership. Associate as at March 31,2010) (Refer Note 20 (a), below)

(@ Wholly owned domestic subsidiary as at March 31, 2010, on which control was lost as on December 28, 2010 and earlier known as
Nitin Cylinders Limited) (Refer Note 20 (b), below)

(** Country of incorporation is not applicable as it is an unincorporated Joint Venture)
2. (A) The Group and nature of operations:

Nitin Fire Protection Industries Limited (NFPIL or the 'Parent Company') is a public limited company and made an initial public offer
('IPO") in May 2007. NFPIL's shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and the National Stock Exchange Limited
and is also the flagship company of the Group, which apart from the Company itself comprises of its subsidiaries (including a step
down subsidiary), its interest in a non-integrated un-incorporated joint venture and share of profits in an associate. NFPIL together
with its subsidiaries (including a step down subsidiary) are principally engaged in the business of manufacturing fire fighting
equipment (gas based and water based fire extinguishers), providing turnkey solutions including procurement, designing, system
integration, commissioning and installation of safety and security solutions/intelligent building management systems, supply of high
pressure seamless compressed natural gas (CNG) cylinders/cascades/ oilfield and natural gas equipments and its spare parts,
electronic precision instruments, security control items, pumps and execution of annual maintenance contracts for fire
protection/intelligent building management systems/pumps. NFPIL has also entered into a non-integrated un-incorporated joint
venture for oil exploration block. The associate is in the business of manufacturing high-pressure seamless compressed natural gas
(CNG) cylinders. The Group undertakes project related and manufacturing/marketing activities from Maharashtra, Andhra Pradesh,
Himachal Pradesh and Tamil Nadu in India, Abu Dhabi, Dubai and Jabel Ali in United Arab Emirates (UAE) and Singapore.

(B) Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements:

(i)  The accompanying consolidated financial statements (CFS) have been prepared in accordance with the principles and
procedures for the preparation and presentation as laid down under Accounting Standard (AS) - 21 'Consolidated Financial
Statements', AS-23 'Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements' and AS-27 'Financial
Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures' notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (the 'Rules') (as
amended) issued by the Central Government in exercise of the power conferred under sub-section (I) (a) of section 642 of the

D
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(i)

Companies Act, 1956 (the 'Act'), guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India and other relevant
pronouncements of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). Accounting policies have been consistently applied
except where a newly issued accounting standard, if initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a
change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. Management evaluates all recently issued or revised accounting standards on
an ongoing basis. Reference in these notes to Company or Group shall mean to include any or all of its aforesaid Group
components unless otherwise stated.

The Notes to the CFS are intended to serve as a means of informative disclosure and a guide for better understanding of the
Group's position. Recognising this purpose, the Parent Company has disclosed only such Notes from the individual financial
statements, which fairly present the needed disclosures. Practical considerations made it desirable to exclude Notes to the
Financial Statements, which in the opinion of the Group's management, could be better viewed, when referred from the
individual financial statements of the Group.

3. Accounting policies:

Significant accounting policies followed by the Group are summarised below:

(@)

(b)

Basis of accounting:

(M)

(ii)

(iif)

The Parent Company maintains its accounts in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)
under the historical cost convention, except for revaluation of certain fixed assets, on accrual basis of accounting. GAAP
comprises mandatory accounting standards under the Rules issued by the Central Government in exercise of the power
conferred under sub-section (I) (a) of section 642, the relevant provisions of the Act, guidelines issued by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India and other relevant pronouncements of the ICAL.

The preparation of the CFS in conformity with GAAP requires that the management of the Group make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of the year, the reported balances of assets and liabilities
and the disclosure relating to contingent assets and liabilities as at the date of the CFS. These estimates are based upon the
management of the Group's best knowledge of current events and actions. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

The accounts of all the domestic subsidiaries and an associate are prepared on the same basis as that of the Parent Company
(except that no revaluation of fixed assets is carried out by any of the domestic subsidiaries and an associate) and those of the
foreign subsidiaries (including a step down subsidiary), have been prepared in compliance with local laws and applicable
accounting standards.

Principles of Consolidation:

The CFS have been prepared on the following basis:

(M)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The CFS of NFPIL and its subsidiaries (including a step down subsidiary), are combined on a line by line basis by adding
together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after fully eliminating intra group balances
and transactions and also unrealized profits resulting there from, if any, in accordance with AS-21 'Consolidated Financial
Statements'. The amounts shown in respect of reserves (other than asset revaluation reserve and securities premium)
comprises the amount of relevant reserves as per the balance sheet of the parent company and its share in the post acquisition
increase in the relevant reserves of the subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are those in which the Parent Company directly has an interest
of more than one-half of the voting power or otherwise have power to exercise control over the operations. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which effective control is transferred to the Group and are no longer consolidated from the date
of disposal. The difference between the proceeds from disposal of investment in a subsidiary and the carrying amount of its
assets less liabilities as of the date of disposal is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account as the profit or loss on
disposal of investment in a subsidiary and the results of operations are included in the CFS up to the date of cessation of parent
subsidiary relationship.

The difference between the costs of investments in subsidiaries (including a step down subsidiary) over the net assets at the
time of acquisition of shares in the subsidiaries is recognised in the CFS as 'Goodwill on Consolidation' and is included under
intangibles in the schedule of fixed assets, being an asset in the CFS. The net asset value considered for the purpose of goodwill
in respect of trenches of investment, is the value as at the date of the first investment for acquiring the subsidiary. Net asset
value is determined on the basis of book values of assets and liabilities as per the financial statements of the subsidiaries as on
the date of investment.

The Group's interest in a non-integrated un-incorporated joint venture and other investments (other than in an associate) are
accounted as specified in AS-13 'Accounting for Investments'.

Investment in an associate, where the Parent Company holds more than 20% of the equity is accounted for using the equity
method (in the CFS) in accordance with AS-23 'Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial
Statements' as per which the share of loss/profit of associates has been deducted/added to the cost of investment. The excess of
cost of investment over the proportionate share in equity of an associate as at the date of the acquisition of stake has been
identified as goodwill and is included in the carrying amount of the investment of the associate. The carrying amount of the
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™)

(vi)

(vi)

investment is adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the share of net assets of the associate. The consolidated
profit and loss account includes the Group's share of profit/loss of the associate. The company accounts for its share of post-
acquisition changes in net assets of associates, after eliminating unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Parent Company and its associate to the extent of its share, through its profit and loss account, to the extent such
change is attributable to the associates' profit and loss account. An associate is an enterprise in which the investor has
significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.

The financial statements of the domestic/foreign subsidiaries (other than a step down subsidiary) used in the consolidation are
drawn up to the same reporting date as that of the Parent Company i.e. March 31, 2011. In respect of a step down subsidiary that
follows a different accounting year, the accounts are prepared upto the reporting date of the Parent Company to facilitate
consolidation. The statutory accounting year of the step down subsidiary is the calendar year. The Group's share in revenue
/capital transactions for a period of nine months i.e. April to December of each year is based on audited accounts and for the
balance period of three months, i.e. January to March of each year is based on un-audited accounts, which is certified by the
management.

The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries (not including a step down subsidiary) whose operations are considered as
integral foreign operations, are recorded in a currency other than of its incorporation as it is acceptable to local government
authorities while that ofa step down subsidiary whose operations are also considered integral are recorded in its local currency
and then translated for incorporation in the CFS in local currency as under:

(a) Fixed assets are converted at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of purchase. Depreciation is accounted at the same
exchange rate at which the assets are translated.

(b)  Revenueitems (except depreciation, opening/closing inventories and income tax) are converted at the simple average of
monthly exchange rates prevailing during the year.

(c)  Monetary items are converted at the year-end exchange rate.
(d) Non-monetary items (excluding closing inventories) are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
(e) Contingent liabilities, if any, are translated at the year-end exchange rate.

Exchange gain or loss arising out of '(a) to (d)' above, is charged and disclosed separately as a net amount to/in the
consolidated profit and loss account.

The CFS have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for all major transactions and other events in similar
circumstances except as stated hereunder:

(a) Differences in accounting policies between the Parent Company and those adopted by foreign subsidiaries (including a
step down subsidiary) and an associate:

(1) The Parent Company, foreign subsidiaries and an associate provide depreciation in different methods and at
differentrates on tangible fixed assets.

(2) Foreign subsidiaries recognize tax assets or liabilities in accordance with the applicable local legislation.
Deferred tax assets or liabilities in respect of foreign subsidiaries is not recognized.

(3) TheParent Company and a foreign subsidiary follow different methods for valuation of inventories.

(4) Investments by a foreign subsidiary as at the year end are accounted at market rates, whereas the Parent Company
accounts the same at cost and provision is made to recognize any declines, other than temporary, in the carrying
amount of each investment.

(5)  Aretirement benefit in the form of gratuity is not provided in respect of a foreign subsidiary. Further, a step down
subsidiary provides for gratuity in accordance with the local labour laws. Whereas, the Parent Company provides
for gratuity on the basis of an actuarial valuation carried out every year.

(6) The Parent Company recognises revenues on project related activites as per AS-9, whereas a domestic/foreign
subsidiary recognises the same as per percentage of completion method.

It is not practical to adopt uniform accounting policies. As certified by the management, the proportion of these items
vis-a-vis results/assets of the Group is not significant and it has been relied by the auditors.

(b) Difference in accounting policy between the Parent Company and that adopted by a domestic subsidiary during the
previous year ended March 31,2010:

The Parent Company follows the written down value method for providing depreciation, whereas a domestic subsidiary which
is into manufacturing of high pressure seamless compressed natural gas (CNG) cylinders follows straight line method for
providing depreciation, as in the opinion of the management of the Group, this would result in a more appropriate presentation
of'the financial statements of the said wholly owned domestic subsidiary. Consequent to this, consolidated depreciation charge
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(©)

(d)

(©

(viii)

(ix)

x)

for the afore said previous year ended is lower by X 34,952,056 with corresponding increase in consolidated profit before tax,
consolidated reserves and surplus and consolidated net block of tangible fixed assets. The proportion of such written down
value of tangible fixed assets is ¥ 702,905,451 this is 80.66% of total tangible fixed assets.

Minority interest's share of net profit for the year of a step down foreign subsidiary is identified and adjusted against the profit
after tax ofthe group. Minority interest, consisting of equity attributable to them on the date of such investments were made by
a Group component and movement in their equity since the date of parent subsidiary relationship, has been disclosed in the
consolidated balance sheet separately from liability and equity of shareholders of the Parent Company.

The CFS are presented, to the extent possible, in the same format as that adopted by NFPIL for its standalone financial
statements.

Investments, if any, held by subsidiaries in the Parent Company is eliminated and resultant goodwill is recognised in the CFS.

Fixed assets and capital work-in-progress:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition/installation/construction or at revalued amounts, net of accumulated depreciation,
amortization and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and other attributable costs of bringing the asset
to their working condition for their intended use. Adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the fixed
assets are also capitalised.

Capital work in progress (CWIP) includes cost of fixed assets not ready to use, interest on loans attributable to the acquisition
of qualifying fixed assets upto the date of their commissioning, advances paid towards acquisition of fixed assets (unsecured
and considered good unless otherwise stated) and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations relating to specific
borrowings attributable to the cost of fixed assets not ready to use.

Machinery spares which can be used only in connection with an item of fixed asset and whose use is not of regular nature are
capitalized and depreciated over the estimated useful life of the relevant asset.

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment:

(M)

(i)

(iii)

Depreciation-tangibles:

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on written down value method in accordance with the provisions of Section 205(2) (b)
of the Act, in the manner and at the rates specified in Schedule XIV to the Act. Depreciation on additions/deductions is
calculated pro rata from/to the number of days of additions/ deductions including incremental costs arising on account of
translation of foreign currency liabilities for acquisition of fixed assets. In respect of an asset for which impairment loss is
recognised, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the assets over its remaining useful life except in case of
revalued assets where depreciation is computed on such revalued amounts and an appropriate amount transferred from
revaluation reserve to profit and loss account. Individual assets costing less than ¥ 5,000 are depreciated in full in the year of
acquisition. Cost of leasehold land is amortised in proportion to the period of lease.

Amortisation-intangibles:
(Other than for goodwill arising on consolidation of subsidiaries, a step down subsidiary and an associate)

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost and amortised so as to reflect the pattern in which the asset's economic benefits
are consumed. Expenditure on computer software and technical know how fees are amortised on straight-line method over a
period of two years.

Impairment of assets:

The carrying amounts of fixed assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date by the Group to determine if there is any
indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss will be recognised wherever the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets net selling price and
value in use. In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to the present value by using weighted
average cost of capital. A previously recognised impairment loss is further provided or reversed depending on changes in
circumstances. However, the carrying value after reversal is not increased beyond the carrying value that would have prevailed
by charging usual depreciation if there was no impairment.

Goodwill arising on consolidation:

Goodwill arising on consolidation is in respect of acquisition of subsidiaries (including a step down subsidiary) and an associate. In
respect of subsidiaries (including a step down subsidiary), goodwill is included under intangibles in the schedule of fixed assets and
in respect of an associate; goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment of the associate in the schedule of
investments. Goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiaries is amortised over a period of five years and is stated net of amortisation
but that arising on acquisition of a step down subsidiary and an associate is not amortised. However, goodwill arising on
consolidation (subsidiaries, a step down subsidiary and an associate) is evaluated for impairment annually and whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying amount may be impaired, for diminution other than temporary and is stated net of
impairment losses, if any.
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(f) Investments:

(@

(h)

(@)

Trade investments are investments made to enhance the Group's business interests. Investments that are readily realisable and
intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term
investments.

(1)  Long term investments other than in an associate but including interest in a non-integrated un-incorporated joint venture are
carried at cost and provisions recorded to recognise any declines, other than temporary, in the carrying amount of each
investment. Investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method in the CFS.

(ii) Current investments are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. In case of investments in mutual funds, which are
unquoted, net asset value is taken as the fair value.

Inventories:
Inventories of the Group are valued as follows:

Items of inventories are valued at lower of cost, computed on FIFO basis and net realisable value. Such costs include material cost
and other costs incurred in bringing the goods to their present location and condition. In case of manufactured inventories and work in
progress, cost includes an appropriate share of labour and overheads. Scrap is valued at net realisable value.

Goods in transit are valued at cost, which represents the costs incurred upto the stage at which the goods are in transit.
Provision for obsolescence is made, wherever necessary.
Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and it can be reliably
measured.

(1)  Revenue from domestic sales (other than project related activities)is recognized on dispatch which coincides with transfer of
significant risks and rewards to customers and stated net of custom duty, taxes, returns and trade discounts, as applicable.
Revenue from export sales is recognised on the date of bill of lading and includes foreign exchange fluctuation on exports.

(i)  The revenues in respect of project related activities are recognized on percentage completion method as specified in AS- 7
'Construction Contracts (Revised 2002)". Percentage of completion is determined based on surveys of work performed
certified by an operating agency.

(i) Income from services rendered on project related activities is recognised on due dates of the relevant contracts and is exclusive
of service tax, wherever recovered and income from management services provided by a foreign subsidiary is accounted on
accrual basis.

(iv) Liquidated damages/penalties, are provided based on management's assessment of the estimated liability, as per contractual
terms and/or acceptance.

(v)  Dividend income on investments is accounted for when the right to receive the payment is established. Other income is
accounted on accrual basis as and when the right to receive arises.

(vi) The Group is entitled to refund of Special Additional Duty paid on imported goods traded or consumed in its activities within
the prescribed time limit. Accordingly, refund is accrued on sale/consumption of such goods.

Taxation:
1. Indian companies
(1)  Taxexpense comprises current tax including wealth tax and deferred tax charge or credit.

(a)  Current tax including wealth tax are measured at the amounts expected to be paid to the Tax Authorities in
accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 prevailing for the relevant assessment years.

(b)  Deferred tax charge or credit is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax charge or credit is recognised, subject to the consideration of prudence, on
timing differences, being the difference between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one
period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods in the profit and loss account and the
cumulative effect thereof is reflected in the balance sheet. In respect of deferred tax charge or credit resulting from
timing differences which originate during the tax holiday period but is expected to reverse after such tax holiday
period, deferred tax charge or credit is recognised in the year in which the timing differences originate using the
tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
pertaining to consolidated entities are not set off against each other as the Parent Company does not have a legal
rightto do so.

(ii)  Tax on distributed profits payable is as per the provisions of Section 1150 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 is in accordance
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(k)

M

(m)

with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Corporate Dividend Tax regarded as tax on distribution of profits issued by the
ICAl and s not considered in determination of the profits for the year.

2. Foreign companies
Foreign companies recognise tax expenses in accordance with the applicable local laws.
Consolidated cash flow statement:

The consolidated cash flow statement is prepared by the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature and presents the cash flows by operating, investing and financing activities of the Group. Cash and
cash equivalents presented in the consolidated cash flow statement consists of cash balance on hand and balances with banks.

Foreign currency transactions and balances:
(Other than those relating to foreign subsidiaries including a step down subsidiary)
(1)  Initial recognition

Transactions for import/export of goods are recorded at a rate notified by the customs authorities for invoice purposes. Other
foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange
rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

(i) Conversion:

Monetary items are translated at the year-end exchange rate and non-monetary items are reported using the exchange rate that
existed on the date of the transaction. Group's share in contingencies and capital commitments of an associate is translated at
the year-end exchange rate.

(iii) Exchange differences:

Exchange differences arising on settlement of monetary items or on reporting monetary items at rates different from those at
which they were initially recorded during the year or reported in the previous financial statements are recognised as income or
expenses in the year in which they arise, taken to the relevant revenue heads in the profit and loss account except in cases where
they relate to acquisition of fixed assets, in which case they are adjusted to the carrying costs of such assets and disclosed as a
netamount in the CFS.

(iv) Forward exchange contracts not intended for trading or speculation purposes:

The premium or discount arising at the inception of forward exchange contracts is amortised as expense or income over the life
of the contract. Exchange differences on such contracts are recognised in the profit and loss account in the year in which the
exchange rates change. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of forward exchange contract is recognised as
income or as expense for the year.

Retirement benefits:
1. Indian companies:

Employee Benefits such as salaries, allowances, non-monetary benefits and employee benefits under defined contribution
plans such as provident and other funds, which fall due for payment within a period of twelve months after rendering service,
are charged as expense to the profit and loss account in the period in which the service is rendered.

Employee Benefits under defined benefit plans, gratuity which fall due for payment after a period of twelve months from
rendering service or after completion of employment, are measured by the projected unit cost method, on the basis of actuarial
valuations carried out by third party actuaries at each balance sheet date. The Company's obligations recognized in the balance
sheet represent the present value of obligations as reduced by the fair value of plan assets, where applicable. Actuarial Gains
and losses are recognised immediately in the Profit and Loss Account.

2. Foreign company:
Provision is made for end-of-service gratuity payable to the employees at the reporting date in accordance with the local labour
laws.

Earnings per share:

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity sharcholders (after deducting
attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) and
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares, except where the results are anti-dilutive. The number of shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share
splits.
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(n) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets:

(0)

(@

(1)

(s)

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of
past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in
the Notes to the CFS. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the CFS.

Borrowing costs:

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of cost of such asset
till such time as the asset is ready for its intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

Operating leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased asset are classified as
operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Profit and Loss Account on a straight line basis over
the lease period unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the users benefit.

Proposed dividend:

Dividend proposed by the directors as appropriation of profits is provided for in the books of account of the relevant Group
component pending approval of shareholders at the annual general meeting.

Miscellaneous expenditure

Miscellaneous expenditure is charged to revenue in the year of its occurrence.

4. Sub division of shares

Effective November 8, 2010, the Parent Company has subdivided the face value of equity shares from ¥ 10 each to ¥ 2 each (sub division),
after obtaining shareholders' approval vide special resolution passed at the 15" Annual General Meeting of the Parent Company held on
September 21, 2010. The basic and diluted earnings per share disclosed (Refer Note 6 below) have been computed for the current year and
recomputed for the previous year based on the revised face value of 32 each.

5. Contingent liabilities and capital commitments:
(Other than attributable to a joint venture and an associate -Refer Notes 15 and 16 below)

Sr. No. Particulars As at As at

March 31,2011 | March 31, 2010
(9] ®

11

Contingent liabilities
Performance, bid bond and other bank guarantees given 37,254,746 71,176,647

(fixed deposits deposited as margin money % 3,994,624 (X 713,915) and mortgage of
fixed assets belonging to the Parent Company provided)

Bond issued to the Development Commissioner, VSEZ for adherence to terms and Nil 162,500,000
conditions of setting up an SEZ unit.
Un-expired letters of credit (fixed deposits deposited as margin money 83,471,974 52,349,918
T Nil X 12,114,642).

Corporate financial guarantees given by the Parent Company on behalf of its

domestic subsidiary

- Limit 325,000,000 1,206,000,000
- Outstanding 189,876,359 662,512,542
Standby letter of credit provided by the Parent Company on behalf of its foreign

subsidiaries (including a step down subsidiary)

- Limit 970,000,000 240,000,000
- Outstanding 935,417,500 232,471,000
Income tax matter dispute in appeals 803,444 1,396,973

Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 184,405,600 23,250,580
being provided for (net of advances on capital account).
(Cash flow is expected on execution of such capital contracts on progressive basis).

Note: *Contingent liabilities in respect of matters arising in the ordinary course of business, it is anticipated that no material liabilities will

arise.
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The Parent Company has not issued any potential equity shares and accordingly, the basic and diluted earnings per share are the same.
Numbers used for calculating basic and diluted earnings per share are as stated below:

Particulars For the year For the year
2010-11 2009-10
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (Nos.) 63,015,705 63,015,705
] ®
Net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders 533,601,807 419,328,658
Basic and diluted earnings per share 8.47 6.65
Nominal value per equity share (Refer Note 4 above) 2 2

Related party transactions:

(a) Parties where control (other than subsidiaries/a step down subsidiary)/significant influence exists and/or other related
parties with whom transactions have taken place include:

Associates

Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited (effective December 29, 2010)
(Domestic subsidiary upto December 28, 2010 including for the year 2009-10)
NewAge Co. LLC (uptoMarch31,2010)

Un-incorporated Joint Venture
Oil Block (RJ-ONN-2004/1) (Ref.No.19)
(Name of the field in an un-incorporated joint venture)

Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Nitin M. Shah (Chairman and Managing Director)
Rahul N. Shah (Wholetime Director)

Relatives of KMP's

Saroj N. Shah (wife of Nitin M. Shah)

Kunal N. Shah (son of Nitin M. Shah)

Nitin M. Shah (HUF)

Rahul N. Shah (HUF)

Reshma N. Shah (daughter of Nitin M. Shah)

(b) Transactions between the Group and related parties (excluding re-imbursements):

Sr. No.

Particulars

For the year
2010-11
)]

For the year
2009-10

]

(@)

(i)

(iii)

Capital transactions

Assets

Investment

Un-incorporated joint venture

Oil Block (RJ-ONN-2004/1) (Ref.No.19)

Purchase of immovable property/refund received of advance given
KMP

Nitin M. Shah

(*purchase of immovable property)

Relative of KMP
Saroj N. Shah
(*refund received of advance given)

Loans given

Associate

Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited
New Age Company LLC

22,637,177

Nil

Nil

95,000,000
NA

15,807,724

45,100,000%*

5,100,000*

NA
165,526,748
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Sr. No. | Particulars For the year For the year
2010-11 2009-10
(4] 9]
(iv) | Loans received back
Associate
Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited 95,000,000 NA
v) Accumulated profits received
Associate
New Age Company LLC NA 29,071,537
Liabilities
1) Unsecured loans
KMP’s
Nitin M. Shah 35,000,000 25,000,000
Rahul N. Shah 1,500,000 Nil
(i) | Unsecured loans repaid
KMP’s
Nitin M. Shah 60,000,000 Nil
Rahul N. Shah 1,500,000 Nil
I Revenue transactions
Income
@) Sales of material and components/trading goods
Associate
New Age Company LLC NA 5,342,260
(i) Interest and service charges
Associate
Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited 1,566,781 Nil
Expenditure
@@ Rent
KMP/Relative of KMP’s
Nitin M. Shah 1,058,880 1,034,160
Saroj N. Shah 1,522,140 1,522,140
(ii)) | Remuneration*
KMP’s/Relatives of KMP’s
Nitin M. Shah 5,571,285 4,485,275
Rahul N. Shah 1,572,200 2,834,656
Saroj N. Shah 1,572,200 Nil
Kunal N. Shah 2,802,882 2,988,468
I Proposed Dividend
KMP’s
Nitin M. Shah 12,312,730 8,606,500
Rahul N. Shah 4,035,000 2,821,000
Relatives of KMP’s
Saroj N. Shah 13,130,000 9,187,500
Kunal N. Shah 6,572,500 4,593,750
Nitin M. Shah (HUF) 2,920,000 2,035,744
Rahul N. Shah (HUF) 2,619,649 1,820,000
Reshma N. Shah 2,690,000 1,879,500
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Sr. No.

Particulars

For the year
2010-11

(9]

For the year
2009-10

&

IV

VI

Personal financial guarantees released
Associate
Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited

KMP’s and relative of a KMP

Jointly of Rahul N. Shah and Nitin M. Shah
Relatives of a KMP

Jointly of Rahul N. Shah and Nitin M. Shah
KMP’s

Jointly of Nitin M. Shah and Rahul N. Shah

Personal financial guarantees obtained
KMP’s and relatives of KMP
Jointly of Nitin M. Shah and Rahul N. Shah

Standby letter of credit facility provided
Associate

Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited

906,000,000

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

160,000,000

Nil

41,500,000

45,000,000

100,000,000

580,000,000

NA

(* excluding incremental liability for gratuity as employee wise break up of such liability based on estimation is not ascertainable).

Amounts outstanding for transactions between the Group and related parties:

Sr. No.

Particulars

As at

March 31, 2011

(9]

As at

March 31, 2010

9]

®

I
(@)

(i)

(iii)

111

Assets

Investments

Associate

Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited
New Age Company LLC

(equity shares)

Un-incorporated joint venture
Oil Block (RJ-ONN-2004/1) (Ref.No.19)

Trade receivable

(net of trade payable)

Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited
Liabilities

Unsecured loan

KMP

Nitin M. Shah

Trade payable
Un-incorporated joint venture
Oil block (RJ-ONN-2004/1)

Dues
KMP
Nitin M. Shah

Personal financial guarantees obtained
KMP’s and relative of KMP jointly with the Parent Company
Jointly of Nitin M. Shah and Rahul N. Shah

418,027,967
NA

151,029,333

23,437,455

Nil

4,805,861

1,244,011

Nil

NA
429,005,161

128,392,156

NA

25,000,000

6,243,817

1,039,225

1,093,772,256
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Sr. No. | Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2011 | March 31, 2010
(&) )
v Standby letter of credit facility provided
Associate
Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited 160,000,000 NA
Notes:

(a) Related party relationships are as identified by the Group on the basis of information available and accepted by the auditors.

(b) Noamounthas been written off or written back in respect of debts due from or to related party.

8. Effects of acquisition/disposal of subsidiaries (including a step down subsidiary) on the CFS is as under:

Name of the company Effect on group profit Net assets
) )

Acquisition:
New Age Company LLC 82,105,508* 1,023,762,327*
(Nitin Global Pte Limited) (8,768,313) (8,768,313)
Disposal:
Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited 159,578,193* 768,675,137%*
(NA) (NA) (NA)

(* increase) (** decrease)
9. Segment reporting:

The Group's activities involve predominantly one business segment i.e. manufacturing fire fighting equipment (gas based and water based
fire extinguishers), providing turnkey solutions including procurement, designing, system integration, commissioning and installation of
safety and security solutions/intelligent building management systems, manufacturing CNG cascades and execution of annual
maintenance contracts for fire protection/intelligent building management systems which is considered to be within a single business
segment since these are subject to similar risks and returns. Accordingly, the above business activity comprise the primary basis of
segmental information as set out in these CFS, which therefore reflect the information required by AS 17 - Segment Reporting, with respect
to primary segment. The auditors rely upon the above classification of primary segment.

The Group has identified India and rest of the world as geographical segments for secondary segmental reporting. Geographical sales and
services are segregated based on the location of the customer who is invoiced or in relation to which the sale is otherwise recognised. Assets
(in India) other than receivables used in the Group's business or liabilities contracted have not been identified to any of the reportable
segments, as these are used interchangeably between segments by the Group. Assets located outside India other than receivables mentioned
above, is in respect of Group's wholly owned subsidiaries located outside India and Group's share of accumulated profits in an associate.
Capital expenditure (capex) by foreign subsidiaries of the Parent Company is considered as expenditure incurred towards fixed assets
located outside India. Rest of the capex is in respect of assets located in India and can be used interchangeably between the segments by the
Group. As the capex by the foreign subsidiaries is less than 10% of the total capex incurred by the rest of the Group components, the same is
not disclosed.

Secondary segmental information:

Particulars India Rest of the world Total
For the year For the year For the year
2010-11 ) 2010-11 ) 2010-11 )
Segment sales and services 1,363,834,968 3,014,654,979 4,378,489,947
(1,084,883,339) (2,048,345,314) (3,133,228,653)
Segment assets 225,904,670 1,316,391,917 1,542,296,587
(312,898,208) (771,555,490) (1,084,453,698)
Notes:

(@) As per AS 17 “Segment Reporting”, the Parent Company has reported segment information on consolidated basis including
businesses conducted through its subsidiaries and an associate.

(b) The investment in a non-integrated un-incorporated joint venture is less than 10% of the net assets of the Group. Hence, the same is
not considered as a separate segment.
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10. Derivative instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposure:
(a) Noderivative instruments were outstanding at the close of the year.

The details of outstanding forward exchange contract entered into by the Group is as under:

As at As at
March 31, 2011 March 31, 2010
Currency Amount Equivalent Amount Equivalent
outstanding in (9] outstanding in ()
foreign currency foreign currency
Hedging commitment outstanding
Secured loans USD Nil Nil 3,000,000 135,420,000
No. of contracts outstanding Nil Nil 1 -
(b) Theyearend foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by derivative instruments or otherwise are given below:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2011 March 31, 2010
Currency Amounts Equivalent Amounts Equivalent
outstanding in ® outstanding in ®
foreign currencies foreign currencies
Receivables
Sundry debtors for exports USD 13,759,828 | 614,376,339 16,428,470 | 741,581,106
Sundry debtors for exports EURO 37,725 2,385,729 137,487 8,326,213
Sundry debtors for exports GBP Nil Nil 51,622 3,511,876
Advances to suppliers USD Nil Nil 585,240 | 26,417,701
Advances to suppliers GBP Nil Nil 50,707 3,449,581
Bank balance USD 800,000 | 35,720,004 3,659 165,175
Payables
Secured loans (including buyers line of credit) USD 7,976,420 | 356,147,135 8,792,248 | 396,882,133
Secured loans (buyers line of credit) GBP 581,662 | 41,833,160 239,126 | 16,638,796
Sundry creditors for imports USD 5,814,446 | 259,615,033 12,572,465 | 567,521,126
Sundry creditors for imports GBP 376,086 | 27,048,107 99,877 6,794,826
Sundry creditors for imports EURO 43,824 2,771,417 85,841 5,198,510
Advance from a debtor USD 2,332,248 | 104,134,873 Nil Nil
Interest accrued but not due on loans UsSD 9,491 423,780 2,760 124,582
Interest accrued but not due on loans GBP 3,262 234,657 Nil Nil

The above out standings in foreign currencies have been translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at the year-end in accordance
with AS-11 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates (Revised 2003)' or at forward cover rate, as applicable.

11.  Disclosures pursuant to AS-7 (Revised):

Sr.No. Particulars For the year For the year
2010-11 2009-10
® )
(a) Contract revenue recognized 1,718,481,453 978,846,098
(b) Gross amount due from customers for contract work 981,305,234 320,249,545
() Gross amount due to customers for contract work Nil Nil
(d) Contracts in progress Nil Nil

12. Deferred taxation:

Computation of deferred tax asset in respect of un-absorbed losses and unabsorbed depreciation/amortisation of a subsidiary is not made for
the year under review. Further, computation of cumulative deferred tax assets or liabilities has not been made in respect of foreign
subsidiaries of the Parent Company. In the opinion of the management, the impact is not material.
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As at (Credit) As at
Component March 31, 2010 for the year March 31, 2011
) ) (9]

Depreciation and amortization 26,459,731 (22,771,589) 3,688,142
Total Deferred Tax Liability 26,459,731 (22,771,589) 3,688,142
Depreciation and amortization 142,451 Nil 142,451
Total Deferred Tax Assets 142,451 Nil 142,451

13.  Exchange differences:

Exchange gain (other than gain on translation on consolidation) included in the consolidated profit and loss account: I 10,174,286
(exchange loss, ¥ 24,591,318).

14. Details of secured loans:

(a)  Loansunder different categories (other than vehicle loans) are secured by way of first/second charge of the tangible assets (except in
case of'sl. no. (vi) below), guarantees etc. wherever applicable, details of which are as mentioned below:

(i)  Entirecurrentassets;

(i1) Tangible fixed assets viz. buildings, buildings on leasehold land, plant and machinery, electrical installation, furniture, fixtures
and office equipment's;

(iii) Personal guarantees of some of the Directors of the respective Group Component;
(iv) Corporate guarantee of the Parent Company;
(v)  Equity shares belonging to the promoter of the Parent Company;
(vi) Investments purchased there against.
(b)  Vehicle loans from banks and a company are secured by the underlying asset.
15. Disclosuresinrespect of a joint venture:
Information as required by AS27 'Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures':

(a) Name ofthe field in ajoint venture, description of interest etc.:

Name of the field Description of interest/ Proportion of Country of

in a joint venture (Description of job) ownership interest Incorporation Residence
RJ-ONN-2004/1 Non integrated joint venture 11.11% * India
Rajasthan (Crude oil block) (11.11%)

(*Country of incorporation not applicable as it is an unincorporated joint venture)
(b)  The financial of the joint venture as of March 31,2011 are not available and hence, other disclosures relating to the joint venture have
notbeen given.
16. Disclosures in respect of Associates:

(a) Investments:

Name of the company | No. of equity | Original cost | Face value Goodwill/ Accumulated| Carrying amount
shares held | of investment capital reserve | profit/(loss) of investment
As at
®) ® ® March 31, 2011()
Worthington Nitin 2,336,496 452,264,534 710 Nil (34,236,567) 418,027,967
Cylinders Limited (NA) (NA) (NA) (NA) (NA)
New Age Co. LLC NA NA AED 1,000 NA NA NA
(1,200) (51,064,290) (119,000,335) | (58,432,375) (228,497,000)

(b)  Group's share in contingencies and capital commitments for which it is contingently liable: ¥ 65,504,610 (3 3,819,196)

(c)  Group's share in contingencies for which it is severally liable : ¥ Nil (X Nil)
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17. Proposed amalgamation of wholly owned domestic subsidiaries of the Parent Company:

18.

19.

20.

21.

The Board of Directors of the Parent Company in its board meeting held on February 11, 2011 has approved the amalgamation with itself of
Alert Fire Protection Systems Private Limited and Logicon Building Systems Private Limited with April 1, 2010 being the appointed date.
In this regard, the Parent Company has received an in principle approval from National Stock Exchange of India Limited and Bombay
Stock Exchange Limited. The Parent Company has since filed a joint petition before the Honorable High Court of Bombay for the sanction
ofthe scheme and which the approval is pending.

Taxation:

(a) Inview of book profits being in excess of taxable profits of the Parent Company, as per computation of income, the provision for tax
has been made as per MAT under section 115 JB of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The Parent Company is entitled to avail credit under
section 115JAA (1A) and credit will be availed as and when due.

(b)  Provision for current tax includes: ¥ 82,000 (X 125,000) for wealth tax.
Financial information of subsidiaries (including a step down subsidiary):

Financial information of subsidiaries (including a step down subsidiary) is as under:

Particulars Alert Fire Eurotech Logicon Building | Nitin Ventures|Nitin Global New Age
Protection Systems| Cylinders Systems FZE Pte Limited | Company LLC
Private Private Private
Liamited Limited Limited
) ) ) ) ) )

Share capital 100,000 100,000 175,000 102,208,125| 4,761,000 38,717,767
(including share application money)
Reserves and surplus 116,071,069 241,909,799 15,097,770 441,878,084 | 23,985,167 164,391,404
Total assets 281,949,516 438,879,830 119,656,058 | 1,180,447,935| 576,520,149 | 1,076,562,214

(Fixed assets, capital work in progress,
deferred tax asset, current assets and loans
and advances)

Total liabilities 182,486,995 196,870,031 104,388,288 | 1,695,976,653 | 569,235,751 873,453,044
(Loan funds, deferred tax liability, current
liabilities and provisions)

Investments (except in case of investment 16,708,548 Nil 5,000 Nil| 21,461,768 Nil
in subsidiaries and a step down subsidiary)

Turnover 271,115,288 433,705,339 109,031,728 963,111,168 | 494,268,604 | 1,008,976,690
Profit before taxation 29,460,642 52,783,771 (5,694,567) 174,544,230 | 16,337,092 157,317,531
Provision for taxation (including deferred 11,165,940 18,196,582 Nil Nil 1,120,239 Nil
tax and charge for earlier years)

Profit after taxation 18,294,702 34,587,189 (5,694,567) 174,544,230 15,216,853 157,317,531
Proposed dividend Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Changes in Group components:
a. Associate becoming a step down subsidiary of the Parent Company:

Pursuant to Nitin Ventures Fze a foreign subsidiary of the Parent Company increasing its ownership interest to 49% from 40% in New
Age Co. LLC (New Age) New Age has become a step down subsidiary ofthe Parent Company effective April 1,2010.

b. Domestic subsidiary becoming an associate of the Parent Company:

Pursuant to sale of part stake in Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited (WNCL) and increase in its paid up share capital, WNCL has
become an associate of the Parent Company effective December 29,2010.

Unsecured loans from banks:

Unsecured loans from banks of ¥ 722,051,447 (% 225,700,000) represents amounts withdrawn by foreign subsidiaries (including a step
down subsidiary) against standby letter of credit facility availed and is guaranteed by the Parent Company.
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22.  Operating lease:

23.

24.

25.

26.
27.

28.

a)  Inrespectofaproperty acquired on lease, the future minimum lease rentals are as follows:

Future minimum lease payments as at
March 31,2011 }) March 31, 2010 )
Not later than one year 395,448 395,448
Later than one year and not later than five years 1,977,060 1,977,060
Later than five years 1,581,792 1,977,240
Total 3,954,300 4,349,748

Note:
The impact of escalation in lease payments which may arise is not considered due to its uncertainty.
b) Lease payments recognised in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account: ¥ 49,438,646 (3 16,585,606).

The joint venture (referred to in Note 15 above) for oil and gas producing activities is under exploratory phase. Hence, disclosures required
viz. net quantities of the Group's interest in proved reserves and proved developed reserves of oil (including condensate and natural gas
liquids), gas at the beginning and additions, deductions, production and closing balance of the year and the above disclosures on
geographical basis required pursuant to the Guidance Note on Accounting for Oil and Gas Producing Activities issued by the ICAI are
currently not applicable.

The statutory auditor's of the Parent Company have not audited the financial statements of subsidiaries (including a step down foreign
subsidiary), an un-incorporated joint venture and an associate.

In terms of provision of sub section 1A of Section 115 O of the Income Tax Act, 1961, the Parent Company has taken credit of corporate
dividend tax aggregating to ¥ 5,813,063 (Z Nil) on account of dividends received from its subsidiaries.

Turnover includes income from services of< 19,401,408 (3 45,843,754).

Figures pertaining to subsidiaries (including a step down subsidiary) have been reclassified wherever necessary to bring them in line with
the Parent Company's financial statements.

Employee Benefits: (Parent Company)
a)  Defined Contribution Plan:

Company's contribution to Provident Fund ¥ 886,509 (% 1,059,246)
b)  Defined Benefit Plans - Gratuity:

Particulars For the year For the year
2010-11 2009-10
() ®
a) Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet:
i) Present value of obligation:

Opening balance 1,609,049 996,165
Service cost 529,353 448,616
Interest cost 171,072 115,582
Actuarial loss on obligation (138,037) 48,686
Closing balance 2,171,437 1,609,049
Less:

ii)  Fair value of plan assets:

Opening balance 2,382,689 1,892,409
Expected return on plan assets less loss on investments 214,615 190,615
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets (214,615) (190,615)
Employers' contribution Nil 490,280
Closing balance 2,382,689 2,382,689
Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet Nil* Nil*
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29.

30.

1l G EEBE

Particulars For the year For the year
2010-11 2009-10
) ()
b) Expenses during the year:
(included in Schedule N under contribution to provident and other funds)
Service cost 529,353 448,616
Interest cost 171,072 115,582
Expected return on plan assets (214,615) (190,615)
Actuarial (gain)/loss 76,578 239,301
Total 562,388 612,884
¢) Actual return on plan assets Nil Nil
d) Break up of plan assets** :
(i)  Government of India s ecurities. NA NA
(ii))  Public securities NA NA
(i)  State Government securities NA NA
(iv)  Private Sector securities NA NA
(v)  Others (LIC of India — Insurer Managed Fund) 100% 100%
e) Principal actuarial assumptions:
Rate of discounting 8.25% 8%
Expected return on plan assets 8.25% 8%
Rate of increase in salaries 5% 5%
Attrition Rate 2% 2%

In assessing the Company's Post Retirement Liabilities, the Parent Company monitors mortality assumptions and uses up-to-date
mortality tables. The base being the LIC 1994-96 ultimate tables.

Expected return on plan assets is based on expectation of the average long term rate of return expected on investments of the fund
during the estimated term of the obligations.

The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

® The surplus of plan assets over defined benefit obligation has not been recognized as the Company believes there is no amount
recoverable in cash from the LIC of India.

**  The details of the composition of the plan assets, by category, from the insurers have not been received and hence the
disclosures as required by Accounting Standard (AS) 15 in “Employee Benefits” have notbeen given.

Other disclosures:

Particulars As at As at

March 31,2011 | March 31, 2010
®) ®)

Defined benefit obligation 2,171,437 1,609,049

Plan assets 2,382,689 2,382,689

Surplus/(deficit) 211,252 773,640

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities — (gain) /loss (87,545) 48,686

Experience adjustments on plan assets — gain/(loss) (214,615) (190,615)

Consequent to dilution of equity stake in Worthington Nitin Cylinders Limited in December 2010, the Parent Company has taken over the
outstanding claim of a derivative contract amounting to ¥ 50,133,481 (excluding interest). The Parent Company has obtained a legal
opinion mentioning that the said contract is in violation of the RBI regulations and hence, no liability is expected. Further, the Parent
Company has filed a petition in the Hon'ble High Court of Bombay challenging the legality of the contract. Pending decision, no provision
ismade in the books of account of the Parent Company.

The consolidated accounts of previous year were audited by another Auditor and opening balances are as per such consolidated financial
statements.
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31. Previousyear:

Pursuant to disclosures made in Note 8 above, the CFS for the year ended March 31, 2011 are to that extent not comparable with the
corresponding consolidated financial figures of the previous year presented. Figures in parenthesis represent the corresponding previous
year figures, which have also been restated/reworked to conform to current year's presentation, wherever applicable and current year's
figures are stated in bold prints.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Nitin M. Shah Rahul N. Shah Ahbishek Shrivastava
Chairman and Wholetime Director Company Secretary

Managing Director

Mumbai
May 29, 2011
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’ FIRE SAFETY AND PROTECTION

NITIN FIRE PROTECTION INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Regd. Office: 501 Delta, Technology Street, Hiranandani Gardens, Powai, Mumbai 400 076, India.

Please complete the attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the Meeting hall.
Please also bring your copy of the enclosed Annual Report.

ATTENDANCE SLIP

I hereby record my presence at the 16th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Thursday, August 11, 2011, at 12.30 p.m. at
Kamalnayan Bajaj Hall, Bajaj Bhavan, Ground Floor, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg, 226, Nariman Point, Mumbai-400 021, India.

Regd Folio No.:/DPID NO:

No. of shares:

Name of the shareholder (in block capitals)

Signature of the shareholder or proxy

FIRE SAFETY AND PROTECTION

NITIN FIRE PROTECTION INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Regd. Office: 501 Delta, Technology Street, Hiranandani Gardens, Powai, Mumbai 400 076, India.

PROXY FORM
Regd Folio No./DPIDNO. No. of shares
1/ We of being a member/members of the above Company,
hereby appoint Mr./Mrs. of or failing
him/her Mr./Mrs. of or failing
him/her Mr./Mrs. of or failing him/her as

my /our proxy to attend and vote for me /us and on my/our behalf at the 16th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday,
August 11,2011 and any adjournment thereof.

AS WITNESS my/ our hand at on this day of 2011. Affix Re. 1

revenue

stamp &

. . sign across
Signature by the said &

Note:
The proxy form must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting.






NITIN FIRE PROTECTION INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Regd. Office: 501 Delta, Technology Street, Hiranandani Gardens, Powai, Mumbai 400 076, India.

ELECTRONIC CLEARING SERVICE (CREDIT CLEARING)
MANDATE FORM FOR PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND

To,

Bigshare Services Private Limited,
E-2, Ansa Industrial Estate,
Sakivihar Road, Saki Naka,
Andheri (E), Mumbai - 400 072.

Dear Sirs,
Payment of Dividend under the Electronic Clearing System (ECS)

I/We hereby give my/our mandate to credit my/our dividend on the shares held by me/us under the Folio mentioned, directly to my/our
bank account through the Electronic Clearing System ( ECS). The details of the bank account are given below.

Name of the sole / first shareholder
(in block letters)

Folio No.:

Name of the bank

Branch address and telephone no(s) of the branch

9 digit code number of the bank and branch as appearing
on the MICR cheque issued by the bank

Account type Savings Current Cash credit

Account number as appearing on the cheque book

Bank account ledger folio no. (if any)

Please attach a blank cancelled cheque or a photo copy (xerox copy) of a cheque issued to you by your bank for verification of the
above particulars.

I/we hereby declare that the particulars given above are correct and complete. The present mandate will supercede my/our earlier bank
mandate, if any, given. If the transaction is delayed or not effected at all because of incomplete or incorrect information, I/We would
not hold the Company / the user institution responsible. I / we agree to discharge the responsibilities expected of me as a participant
under the scheme.

Place:

Date:
Signature of sole / first shareholder
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NITIN FIRE PROTECTION INDUSTRIES LIMITED

a0!, Delta. Technology Street. Hiranandani Gardens, Powai. Mumbai - 400078. INDIA
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